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Management Discussion and Analysis

GENERAL OVERVIEW

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) hereby
presents the audited consolidated annual results of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended
31st December, 2023. It reports that there was a significant
increase in the consolidated profit after taxation of the Group for
the year under review, which was mainly attributable to the
improvement in performance of the property development and
trading business of the Group and in results of the Group’s joint

venture.

There was a rise in the revenue generated from the property
development and trading segment during the year under review.
However, an unrealized loss on fair value changes of the investment
properties of the Group in Shanghai, the People’s Republic of
China (“China”) of HK$109,255,000 (2022: HK$75,204,000) was
recorded upon market valuation as at year end pursuant to
applicable accounting standards. Hence, it only resulted in a slight
improvement in the segment profit of property development and
investment business to HK$99,085,000 for the year under review
(2022: HK$98,828,000).

During the year 2023, the Group recorded a net gain on trading
securities investment of HK$2,287,000 (2022: HK$8,161,000) and
received dividend from a long-term equity investment of the Group
of HK$18,470,000 (2022: HK$22,054,000). There were an
increment in the interest income to HK$72,633,000 (2022:
HK$70,210,000) and a reduction in a net exchange loss to
HK$5,907,000 (2022: HK$28,577,000), but both the administrative

expenses and finance costs increased.

As a result, excluding the loss on fair value changes of the
investment properties, the Group reported operating profit before
taxation of HK$223,819,000 for the year under review (2022:
HK$217,288,000).

In addition, the Group shared a net profit of a joint venture of

HK$22,645,000 (2022: net loss of HK$15,289,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Taking account of taxation of HK$90,201,000 (2022:
HK$107,806,000), it was reported a consolidated profit after
taxation attributable to shareholders of the Company of
HK$42,684,000 for the year ended 31st December, 2023, a
significant increase of approximately 1.49 times as compared with
that of HK$17,168,000 for the corresponding period in 2022.
Basic earnings per share amounted to 2.12 HK cents (2022: 0.87
HK cents).

DIVIDEND

The Board has declared an interim dividend of 10 HK cents per
share for the year ended 31st December, 2023 (2022: 8.50 HK
cents per share) payable to the shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on Friday, 3rd May, 2024
(the “Record Date”). Shareholders will be given an option to elect
to receive shares of HK$0.50 each in the capital of the Company
credited as fully paid in lieu of cash in respect of all or part of the

interim dividend (the “Scrip Dividend Scheme”).

The Scrip Dividend Scheme is conditional upon consent of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) to
grant listing of and permission to deal in the new shares of the
Company to be allotted thereunder. For the purpose of determining
the number of new shares of the Company to be allotted under the
Scrip Dividend Scheme, the market value of a new share will be
calculated as an amount equal to 95% of the average of the closing
prices per share of the Company traded on the Stock Exchange for
the five consecutive trading days up to and including the Record
Date. A circular providing full details of the Scrip Dividend
Scheme, together with a form of election, will be sent to the
shareholders of the Company in electronic form by email or in
printed form by post (as the case may be) in due course. Cash
dividend warrants and/or share certificates for the scrip dividend

are expected for despatch on Thursday, 13th June, 2024.

OPERATIONS REVIEW

The Mainland of China, particularly Shanghai, is the principal base

of the Group’s operations.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023, the property investment
segment was the Group’s primary profit maker by contributing a
segment profit of HK$54,091,000 (2022: HK$94,780,000), which
was derived from the rental and property management fee from the
investment properties of the Group in Shanghai, however, this was
partly offset by the unrealized loss on fair value changes of these

investment properties upon revaluation at year end.

The property development and trading segment was the secondary
profit contributor of the Group and this generated a segment profit
of HK$44,994,000 (2022: HK$4,048,000) which was attributable

to the properties sales in Shanghai.

Securities trading business reported a segment profit of
HK$2,104,000 (2022: HK$7,984,000) which was mainly
attributable to the sale proceeds from the trading securities held by
the Group in the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(“Hong Kong”) of China. This business ranked third in terms of

profit contribution amongst the operating segments of the Group.

The other business segments of the Group reported loss during the

year under review.

Property Development and Investment

Property development and investment remained the core business
and the principal source of profit of the Group for the year ended
31st December, 2023 by contributing a total segment profit of
HK$99,085,000 (2022: HK$98,828,000). Tomson Riviera was the

prime source of operating profit of the Group.

This business segment generated total revenue of HK$459,870,000
which accounted for approximately 81.05% of the gross proceeds
from operations of the Group for the year 2023 and was solely
derived from the projects in Pudong of Shanghai, China.
Nevertheless, an unrealized loss on fair value changes of the
investment properties of the Group in Pudong of HK$109,255,000
was recorded at year end. The property projects in Hong Kong and
the Macao Special Administrative Region (“Macau”) of China did

not record any revenue.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Tomson Riviera, Shanghai

Tomson Riviera is a notable high-rise residential development along
the riverfront of Lujiazui of Pudong and right opposite the Bund.
There are four residential towers of which two towers are earmarked
for sale while the other two towers are for leasing to maximize the

return on investment.

As at 31st December, 2023, the total residential gross floor area
available for sale of Towers A and C was approximately 3,200
square meters while of the total residential gross floor area of
Towers B and D of approximately 58,400 square meters, about
67% was leased.

For the year 2023, total revenue of HK$293.39 million was
recognized and this accounted for approximately 51.71% of the
gross proceeds from operations of the Group. The revenue was
principally attributable to sale proceeds recognized with the rest

derived from rental income and property management fee.
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Commercial and Industrial Buildings, Shanghai

Rental income and property management fee from the Group’s
commercial and industrial property portfolio in Pudong, which
comprised, inter alia, Tomson Commercial Building, Tomson
International Trade Building, Tomson Waigaoqiao Industrial Park,
the commercial podium of Tomson Business Centre and the office
premises on the entire 72nd Floor of Shanghai World Financial
Center, provided a steady recurrent revenue of HK$90.71 million
to the Group and this accounted for approximately 15.99% of the
gross proceeds from operations of the Group for the year under
review. Nevertheless, the Group recorded an unrealized net loss on
fair value changes of the aforesaid investment properties of
HK$109.26 million in the annual results of the Group for the year
2023.
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Miscellaneous Residential Developments in Shanghai

Tomson Golf Villas and Garden have been developed in phases
around the periphery of Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club in
Pudong since 1996 and there are now less than ten residential units
and around one hundred car parking spaces available for sale.
During the year under review, the project recognized revenue of
HK$75.78 million from sale of both residential unit and car
parking spaces as well as leasing of the residential units and this
represented approximately 13.35% of the gross proceeds from
operations of the Group.

In addition, the Group holds less than ten car parking spaces at
Xingguo Garden, a residential development of the Group in Puxi,
for sale.
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Jinqiao Town Project, Shanghai

The Group holds three land lots with aggregate site area of
approximately 328,687.5 square meters located in Jinqiao Town of
Pudong and to the north of a stream named Zhangjiabang for
residential purpose. Real estate ownership certificates of the said
land lots were obtained in June 2020. The project is known as
“Tomson Foresta” and it is scheduled to complete the project
development in six phases over the coming four years.
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The first phase of the project is a low-density residential
development with total gross floor area of approximately 25,900
square meters and the construction works are under way. Subject to
the policies of and approval from the local government, it is
expected to launch the first phase for sale in the second quarter of
2024 and deliver the properties to the buyers by the end of 2024.

Construction of the second and the third phases of the residential
development of the project started in November 2022 and April
2023 respectively. There will be low-rise apartment buildings with
total residential gross floor area of approximately 61,300 square
meters and townhouses with total residential gross floor area of
approximately 38,700 square meters. It is expected to complete the
development of these two phases in 2026.

It is now targeted to carry out the construction of low-rise
apartment buildings with total residential gross floor area of
approximately 108,700 square meters in mid-2024 and resume in
the end of 2024 the construction of a low-density residential
development with total gross floor area of approximately 29,400
square meters, where the superstructure has been topped out.

The construction works of the last phase of the project are expected
to commence in 2025 and will comprise townhouses with total
residential gross floor area of approximately 55,800 square meters.
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One Penha Hill, Macau

The Group holds a 70% interest in the development of a residential
condominium, namely One Penha Hill, at Penha Hill within a

designated World Heritage Zone of Macau.

The project is earmarked for sale purpose and no revenue was
generated during the year under review under the impact of poor
market sentiment. As at 31st December, 2023, residential units
with saleable area of approximately 6,700 square meters were

available for sale.
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Office premises in Tower II, Admiralty Centre,
Hong Kong

The Group acquired an office premises situated at the whole 13th
Floor of Tower II, Admiralty Centre, Hong Kong by tender in
2022 as a strategic long-term investment for the Group. The Group
recovered the possession of the property through legal procedures
in the first half of 2023.

Having considered that the property is situated in a Grade A
commercial-cum-office building in a strategic location in the key
financial and commercial district in Hong Kong, the Group expects
that the property will generate stable recurring rental income and it
may be used as the Company’s headquarter in Hong Kong at

opportune time.
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Hospitality and Leisure Industry X & B 1H i 3 B
Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club, Shanghai T Z2EE LW RS LR

The Group operates an 18-hole golf course of international A A 1 AE B T OR A8 — AT A
standards, Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club, in Pudong of P Y 1) 18 R = AT R Bk — i B B
Shanghai. The Club generated revenue of HK$51,361,000, being WHRESWRRG - ZHRgREE_ZF
approximately 9.05% of the gross proceeds from operations of the TEET A= HIREEE AR A
Group, and reported gross profit of HK$26.33 million for the year 51,361,000 7C » {1 4% £ [ 58 75 i 2 40
ended 31st December, 2023. The revenue was mainly attributable BH £19.05% - M Bk 15 B F 426,330,000
to golfing activities of the Club and the annual membership fee was JG o WA F R B wZ ke 2 m # K ERIE
the secondary source of income. After making provision for B o AR LA A T R U AR o
depreciation of fixed assets, the Club reported a segment loss of KM B 2 % > sz akg R
HK$4,132,000 for the year under review (2022: HK$8,923,000). B 4F B2 B 15 2 Bl 1H4,132,0009 7T (—
AR 18,923,000% 00 e
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InterContinental Shanghai Pudong, Shanghai

The Group holds a 50% interest in InterContinental Shanghai
Pudong hotel in Lujiazui of Pudong. The hotel reported an average
occupancy rate of approximately 71.20% during the year under
review and the Group shared a net profit of HK$22,645,000 from
this investment (2022: net loss of HK$15,289,000). The great
improvement in results was mainly attributable to the recovery of
economic activities in post pandemic era. In addition, during the
year 2023, the hotel confirmed with the local government the
amount of the rental for provision of quarters to the medical
professionals from other provinces in the first half of 2022 when
the COVID-19 spread in Shanghai and such amount was received
in full. It is expected that the operation results of the hotel will be
further improved in 2024. The hotel management will continue to
focus on controlling operating costs, increasing marketing efforts
on guest rooms operations and food and beverage operations to

maintain the profitability of the hotel.
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Securities Trading

For the year under review, the Group’s securities trading business
in Hong Kong reported revenue of HK$53,554,000 and this
accounted for approximately 9.44% of the gross proceeds from
operations of the Group. The revenue was mainly attributable to
gross proceeds from sale of trading securities while the dividend
income from those securities was the secondary source. After taking
account of an unrealized gain on changes in fair value, the Group
recorded a net gain on its trading securities investments of
HK$2,287,000 (2022: HK$8,161,000).

As at 31st December, 2023, the aggregate fair value of the Group’s
listed securities investments held for trading amounted to
HK$49,257,000, representing approximately 0.27% of the Group’s
total assets. Those securities are in the property development and
investment industry.

Media and Entertainment Business

The Group has participated in the production of live entertainment
shows for years and has also set up its film distribution business.
Gross revenue received and receivable from this segment for the
year ended 31st December, 2023 amounted to HK$2,579,000 and
this accounted for approximately 0.46% of the Group’s gross
proceeds from operations. The revenue for the year under review
was solely derived from investments in the production of live
entertainment shows in Hong Kong and a segment loss of
HK$276,000 (2022: HK$650,000) was recorded. The Group
intends to continue in participating in investments in various live
performances under appropriate conditions in the future.
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Investment Holding

In addition to its own property development projects, the Group
holds a 13.483% interest in the registered capital of Shanghai
Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port Co. Ltd. (“SZMP”) as a
long-term equity investment and the fair value of this investment
amounted to HK$293,949,000, representing approximately 1.60%
of the Group’s total assets, as at 31st December, 2023. SZMP is an
unlisted company established in Shanghai and is principally
engaged in property development and investment in Shanghai.
Dividend of HK$18,470,000 (2022: HK$22,054,000) was received
from SZMP during the year under review and an unrealized loss on
change in fair value of such investment of HK$8,421,000 was
charged to the investment reserve of the Group in 2023 (2022: gain
of HK$44,240,000) pursuant to applicable accounting standards.

Discloseable Transaction

As disclosed in the announcements published by the Company on
22nd September, 2023, 21st December, 2023 and 15th March,
2024, the Group has entered into an equity transfer agreement as
supplemented by two supplemental agreements, pursuant to which
the Group has agreed to sell and transfer 100% equity interest in
Shanghai Cheng Qi Technology Limited, which is an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and holds the entire
interests in a non-core project of the Group, Tomson Waigaoqiao
Industrial Park, to an independent third party at a consideration of
RMB405.84 million (the
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, the

Disposal”). Pursuant to the Rules

Disposal constitutes a discloseable transaction of the Company. The
Group has received 40% of the consideration and the Disposal is
expected to be completed in mid-April 2024 upon receipt of the

remaining 60% of the consideration.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Share Capital

The Company issued 81,122,062 new shares of HK$0.50 each on
15th June, 2023 at a price of HK$1.5998 per share to the
shareholders of the Company who have elected to receive shares of
the Company, credited as fully paid, in lieu of cash under scrip
dividend scheme in respect of the interim dividend for the year
ended 31st December, 2022. There were 2,052,147,187 issued
shares in the capital of the Company as at 31st December, 2023.

Liquidity and Financing Position

As at 31st December, 2023, total assets of the Group decreased by
approximately 2.31% to HK$18,361,211,000 (2022:
HK$18,795,314,000). Equity attributable to owners of the
Company was HK$12,006,560,000 (2022: HK$12,388,347,000)
in total, representing a decrease of approximately 3.08% which was
mainly attributable to depreciation in value of Renminbi during the
year under review, while the equity attributable to owners of the
Company per share amounted to approximately HK$5.85 (2022:
HK$6.29).

The Group’s operations and investments for the year ended 31st
December, 2023 were funded by cash on hand, revenue from

operating and investing activities, and bank borrowings.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents of
the Group amounted to HK$3,541,040,000 (2022:
HK$3,966,071,000), a decrease of approximately 10.72%. During
the year under review, the Group achieved net cash inflow of
HK$102,810,000 from its investing activities. After taking account
of net cash outflows of HK$299,903,000 and HK$100,603,000
from its operating and financing activities respectively, the Group
recorded a net decrease in cash and cash equivalents of
HK$297,696,000 during the year under review (2022:
HK$136,246,000). The net cash outflow was mainly attributable to
the payment of construction cost of the properties under

development of the Group.
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Cash and cash equivalents of the Group are mainly denominated in
the local currencies of the jurisdictions in which it operates. Hence,
of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents of HK$3,541,040,000 as
at 31st December, 2023, around 88.32% and 10.04% were
denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong Dollar respectively.

As at 31st December, 2023, of the liabilities of the Group of
HK$6,218,040,000 (2022: HK$5,967,079,000 excluding contract
liability which represented the deposits received from sale of
properties), about 60.30% were tax payables under current
liabilities, about 14.64% were deferred tax liabilities, about 17.39%
were trade and other payables and accruals, about 6.04% were
borrowings, about 1.35% were liabilities classified as held for sale
and the remainder was lease liability. Details of the trade and other
payables and accruals, lease liability, borrowings and deferred
taxation are shown in Notes 24(d), 25, 27 and 28 to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year under
review on pages 152 and 153, and pages 155 to 157 respectively.

The Group’s borrowings as at 31st December, 2023 amounted to
HK$375,811,000 (2022: HK$242,451,000), equivalent to
approximately 3.13% (2022: 1.96%) of the equity attributable to
owners of the Company at the same date. All of the borrowings
were under security and subject to floating interest rates.
Approximately 55.43% of the borrowings were denominated in
Renminbi while the rest was denominated in Hong Kong Dollar.
Of these borrowings, approximately 51.50% were due for
repayment within one year from the end of the reporting period,
approximately 6.93% were repayable more than one year but not
exceeding two years from the end of the reporting period,
approximately 20.79% were due for repayment more than two years
but not exceeding five years from the end of the reporting period
while the remaining 20.78% were repayable more than five years
from the end of the reporting period. The Group did not employ
any other financial instruments for financing and treasury

management.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments in
relation to expenditure on properties under development of
HK$2,308,957,000 (2022: HK$384,951,000) which were
contracted but not provided for. The increase in commitments was
mainly attributable to the development of Jinqiao Town project in
Shanghai. The Group anticipates that these commitments will be
funded from its future operating revenue, bank borrowings and

other sources of finance where appropriate.
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As at 31st December, 2023, the Group recorded a current ratio of
2.05 times (2022: 2.12 times) and a gearing ratio (total liabilities to
equity attributable to the owners of the Company) of 51.79%
(2022: 49.15%). There was no significant change in the current
ratio while a slight rise in the gearing ratio was mainly attributable

to raising of new borrowing.

Charge on Assets

As at 31st December, 2023, assets of the Group with an aggregate
carrying value of HK$648,980,000 (2022: HK$476,321,000) were
pledged for securing the Group’s borrowings of HK$375,811,000
(2022: HK$242,451,000). Details of the assets pledged are set out
in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group

for the year under review on page 178.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated
in Renminbi, and the liabilities are well covered by the assets.
Should there be a depreciation in value of Renminbi, there may be
an adverse impact on the Group’s results and net asset value. The
other assets and liabilities of the Group are denominated in either
Hong Kong Dollar or United States Dollar. Hence, the Group

anticipates that the exchange risk exposure is manageable.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31st
December, 2023 (2022: Nil).

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial situation, operating results and business
prospects may be directly or indirectly affected by a number of risks
and uncertainties including business risks, operational risks,
financial risks and changes of local laws and regulations in the
jurisdictions in which it operates. Information on the estimation
uncertainty, capital risk management and financial risks
management is set out respectively in Notes 4, 29 and 30(b) to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year under
review on pages 117 to 119, and pages 158 to 171.
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Property development and investment is the principal business
segment of the Group and price fluctuation is a major risk that may
affect the Group’s results and asset value. The management holds a
positive view of the potential demand from target customers for
properties in Shanghai and Macau of China and will be cautious in
formulating the Group’s business plan and monitor closely the
marketing and pricing strategies of the Group’s property projects to

maximize the return on investment.

There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those
stated above which are not known to the Group or which may not
be imminent or material now but could turn out to be impending

or significant in the future.

PROSPECTS

Worldwide economy has been recovering in the post pandemic era.
However, the recent Israel-Palestine conflict and prolonged military
conflicts between Russia and Ukraine result in severe uncertainties
in the financial and political situation of the whole world and other
geo-political factors have further negatively affected the global
economic development. The Group would keep monitoring the
international situation closely especially when contemplating any
future development, and any financial impact on the operations of
the Group, should this happen, would be reflected in the financial
statements of the Group for the year 2024. Whilst property
development and investment will remain the focus of the Group’s
business and investment strategies, the Board would regularly
review the business portfolio of the Group and prudently explore
and evaluate other potential investment opportunities. It will be the
objective of the Group to maintain an optimum balance in the
allocation of its resources both geographically and in different

business segments.

The property market will likely be volatile in the short term under
the weight of high interest rates and subdued sentiment. The Board
is cautiously optimistic about the economic development of the
Mainland of China in the long run. The Group has built up its
reputation as a developer of high-end residential properties in the
Mainland and will endeavour to maintain the momentum in its sale
and leasing plans for the property portfolio. It is anticipated that
Tomson Riviera and One Penha Hill will be the Group’s principal
sources of profit in the year 2024. At the same time, the Group is

actively carrying out the construction works and preparing for the
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marketing plan of Jinqiao Town project in Pudong, Shanghai and
this project will form an important component of the Group’s
property development and investment segment and will be the

major profit contributor in next few years.

In light of volatility in the Hong Kong and global financial markets
and economic conditions, the management will continue to adopt a
conservative approach in managing the securities trading portfolio
of the Group, with an emphasis on securities with steady recurrent

yield.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31st December, 2023, the Group engaged around 400
employees in total in its various offices including Hong Kong and
Shanghai. Total emoluments paid to staff and directors of the
Group during the year under review amounted to HK$64,099,000.
Remuneration and benefits packages are generally structured with
reference to market terms and practice, as well as individual
responsibilities, performance and qualifications. Discretionary

bonus may be paid based on individual contribution.

On the other hand, the Company welcomes Mr Ng Chi Him to
join the Board as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company with effect from 1st January, 2023. It also expresses its
sincere gratitude to Mr Sean S ] Wang, who had retired by rotation
at the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company in
2023 and did not seek for re-election, for his contributions to the
Company during his tenure of office as an independent

non-executive Director.

Taking this opportunity, the Board would like to express its
gratitude to the management and all the staff members of the

Group for their devotion and hard work over the years.

On behalf of the Board
Hsu Feng
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 26th March, 2024
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Corporate Governance Report
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“Board”) is

committed to maintaining good corporate governance standards

The Board of Directors of the Company (the

and procedures which emphasize management of high quality,

transparency and accountability to all shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles set out in Part 2 of
Appendix C1 (previously known as Appendix 14) to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”), and has complied with the
applicable code provisions contained therein during the year ended
31st December, 2023 and up to the date of this Report, except
that:

(a) Madam Hsu Feng takes up both the posts of Chairman of the
Board and Managing Director of the Company. While this is
a deviation from the CG Code, dual role leadership provides
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
with a strong and consistent leadership and allows for more
effective operation of the business. The Board is of the view
that adequate check and balance of power is in place.
Responsibilities for the Company’s daily business management
are shared amongst Madam Hsu and other members of the
executive committee of the Board. Besides, all major decisions
are made in consultation with members of the Board or
appropriate committees of the Board in accordance with the
provisions of the code on risk management and internal

control of the Group.
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CORPORATE CULTURE

The Board has established the Group’s purposes, values and
strategies, and has satisfied itself that the Group’s culture is aligned.
Acting with integrity and leading by example, the Directors
promote the desired culture to instill and continually reinforce
across the Group the values of acting lawfully, ethically and
responsibly. A healthy corporate culture is important to good
corporate governance, which is crucial for achieving sustainable
long-term success of the Group. The Group has adopted
anti-corruption and whistleblowing policies to uphold business
integrity in its operations, and to provide forums for reporting

issues and concerns on any misconduct.

The Group is committed to seeking progress while maintaining
stability and strives to improve operational efficiency and
strengthen the risk control measures. Effective risk control will
remain as the core competitiveness and investment highlight of the
Group, while the Group will strive to explore other business

opportunities.

In addition, the Group aspires to create an environment that values
diversity. The Group takes into consideration diverse background,
experience, perspectives and gender in staff recruitment and
development. The gender ratio (male: female) in the workforce
including senior management as at the end of the year under review

was approximately 53:47.

THE BOARD

The Board commits itself to acting in the best interests of the
Group and the shareholders of the Company. It is accountable to
the shareholders for the long-term performance of the Group, while
taking into consideration the interests of other stakeholders. Since
the retirement of Mr Sean S J Wang as an independent
non-executive Director at the conclusion of the Company’s annual
general meeting held on 8th June, 2023 (the “2023 AGM”), the
Board is composed of six members, including three executive
Directors, namely Madam Hsu Feng (Chairman and Managing
Director), Mr Albert Tong (Vice-Chairman) and Mr Tong Chi Kar
Charles (Vice-Chairman), and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar, Mr Lee Chan Fai
and Mr Ng Chi Him. The Board has established an executive
committee, an audit committee, a nomination committee and a
remuneration committee (collectively, the “Board Committees”) to

assist the operation of the Board.
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The Company recognizes that a diverse board is crucial to the
Board’s performance and development of the Company. The Board
has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Diversity Policy”) which
sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. It believes
that diversity should be viewed from its widest perspective.
Accordingly, in selection of candidates to the Board, the
nomination committee of the Board (the “Nomination
Committee”) takes into account a range of measurable objectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience and qualifications, skills,
knowledge and length of service, having due regard to the
Company’s own business model and specific needs from time to
time. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the candidates will bring to the Board with due
regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board. During the year
under review, the Nomination Committee has conducted an annual
review of the structure, size and composition of the Board with
reference to the above measurable objectives and the
implementation and effectiveness of the Diversity Policy and the
Nomination Committee agreed that the diversity of the Board was
achieved. With reference to the opinion from the Nomination
Committee, the Board considers that its members coming from a
variety of business and professional background, the Board has an
appropriate size and balanced structure and composition with
diverse mix of skills, experience, expertise and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s

business and development.

In addition, there are one female Director and five male Directors,
so the Board considers that the Company has achieved gender
diversity at the Board level and targets to maintain at least the
current level of female representation. The Company will ensure
that gender diversity is taken into account when recruiting staff
members of senior level and ensure that sufficient resources are
available for providing appropriate trainings and career development
to develop a pipeline of potential successors to the Board and

maintain gender diversity.
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All the Directors have signed service contracts or letters of
appointment with the Company which set out the key terms and
conditions of their appointment. Biographical details of the existing
Directors and relevant relationships among them together with
their respective roles on the Board and its committees are set out in
the Profile of the Directors and Officers on pages 40 to 44.

All existing Directors have disclosed to the Company the offices
held in other public companies or organisations and the time
involved and the Company has received confirmations from each
Director that he/she has devoted sufficient time to perform his/her
responsibilities as a Director and has given sufficient attention to

the affairs of the Company during their tenure of office.

Throughout the year 2023, not less than one-half of the Board
members were independent non-executive Directors. Since the
retirement of Mr Sean S J Wang at the conclusion of the 2023
AGM, there are three independent non-executive Directors of the
Company representing one-half of the Board and one of them has
appropriate professional accounting qualifications as required by
the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive Directors have
contributed valuable independent views and proposals for the
Board’s deliberation and decisions. The Company has received a
written confirmation from each of the incumbent independent
non-executive Directors of his independence in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers all of the independent non-executive Directors to be

independent.

None of the independent non-executive Directors of the Company
are appointed for a specific term, but they are subject to retirement
and re-election at least once every three years at annual general
meetings of the Company pursuant to the Articles of Association of

the Company (the “Articles”).

The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration matters
covering formulation of corporate strategies, approval of annual and
interim results, changes of members of the Board and its
committees, major acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions,
and monitoring and controlling other significant operational and
financial matters of the Group. The Board Committees oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and assist in sharing the
Board’s responsibilities according to their respective clear written
terms of reference. The Board Committees report regularly to the

Board on their decisions and recommendations.
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The Company has also established mechanisms to ensure
independent views are available to the Board. This is achieved by
maintaining an appropriate proportion of independent
non-executive Directors in the Board and providing the Directors
with sufficient resources to perform their duties including, inter
alia, seeking, at the Company’s expenses, external independent
professional advice, if necessary, as well as encouraging all Directors
to express freely their independent views and opinions during the
Board meetings or the Board Committees’ meetings. On the
recommendation from the Nomination Committee after
conducting an annual review, the Board considers that the

implementation of mechanisms is effective.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Group are delegated to the management and the management also
provides support to the Board to formulate overall strategic
direction, long term objectives and business plans of the Group.
Both the Board and the management have clearly defined
authorities and responsibilities under various risk management,
internal control and check-and-balance mechanisms. The
management is responsible for implementing the strategies and
plans adopted by the Board and the Board Committees and assumes
full accountability to the Board for the operation of the Group.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year and as and when
required. Sufficient notices are given to all Directors at least 14
days before the regular Board meetings. All Directors are consulted
whether to include any matters in the agenda. Agenda and
accompanying board papers are given to all Directors in a timely
manner before the appointed date of each regular Board meeting.
Drafts and final versions of minutes are circulated to the Directors
for comment and record respectively. During the year 2023, there
were four regular Board meetings. Besides, a Vice-Chairman of the
Board had an annual meeting in 2023 to exchange opinions with
the independent non-executive Directors of the Company without

the presence of the other Directors.

All members of the Board have been provided with monthly
management updates to keep them up-to-date with material
developments of the Group’s operations, performance, financial
position and prospects. The Board has agreed on a procedure to
enable the Directors to seek external independent professional
advice whenever deemed necessary, at the Company’s expense, to

assist them to perform their duties.
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The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors for their liabilities arising out of the
discharge of their duties. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an

annual basis.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Company strives to attain and maintain high standards of
corporate governance best suited to the needs and interests of the
Group. Good corporate governance is crucial to an orderly and
effective operational system, which will enhance operational
efficiencies, thereby bolstering sharcholder value. The Board is
responsible for the corporate governance functions. During the year
ended 31st December, 2023, the Board has discharged the

following corporate governance duties:

(a) review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate

governance;

(b) review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, including
reviewing and revising the provisions of the code on risk

management and internal control of the Group;

(c) review, monitor and revise the Company’s code of practice for
securities transactions by the Directors and relevant employees

(the “Code of Practice for Securities Transactions”);

(d) review the Company’s compliance with the code provisions of
the CG Code and relevant disclosure in interim and annual

reports; and

(e)  arrange seminars and briefings to Directors, review and monitor
the training and continuous professional development of the
Directors, details of which are set out in the paragraph headed
“Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional Development”

in this Report.
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Executive Committee

An executive committee (the “Executive Committee”) was
established by the Board in June 2005 with specific written terms
of reference. The Executive Committee is composed of all the
executive Directors of the Company, namely Madam Hsu Feng,
Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles. Madam Hsu Feng
is the chairman of the Executive Committee. The Executive
Committee may convene meetings as it considers necessary for
reviewing and approving, inter alia, any matters concerning the
day-to-day management of the business of the Company and any

matters to be delegated to it by the Board from time to time.

Audit Committee

An audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) was set up by the
Board in April 1999 with specific written terms of reference. The
Audit Committee is composed of all the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company at all times during the year under
review. Subsequent to the retirement of Mr Sean S J Wang and up
to the date of this Report, Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar, Mr Lee
Chan Fai and Mr Ng Chi Him are the members of the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr Cheung Siu
Ping, Oscar who possesses appropriate professional accounting

qualifications as required under the Listing Rules.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is required to
monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the Company,
to review significant financial reporting judgements, to evaluate the
overall effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, and to oversee the relationship with the
Company’s auditor (the “Auditor”). The terms of reference of the

Audit Committee are available on the Company’s website.

During the year 2023, the Audit Committee held three meetings
for reviewing the interim and annual financial statements as well as
the accounting and financial reporting matters of the Group;
evaluating the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group, the significant risks faced by the Group and also the
resource adequacy and effectiveness of internal audit function;
reviewing the internal audit and enterprise risk assessment reports
of the Group for approval by the Board; reviewing the Group’s
whistleblowing policy and considering the engagement and scope of

services and the remuneration of the Auditor.
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The Audit Committee concluded that in 2023 the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and the internal audit
function of the Company were implemented effectively. The Audit
Committee was satisfied with the related resources of the internal
audit function and the resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and related budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting functions as well as the
implementation, application and effectiveness of the whistleblowing

policy of the Group.

In March 2024, the Audit Committee held a meeting to review the
annual consolidated financial statements of the Group for 2023 and
consider the re-appointment and proposed remuneration of the
Auditor. On the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the
Board resolved to submit the consolidated financial statements for
review and to propose the re-appointment and proposed
remuneration of the Auditor for approval by the shareholders at the
annual general meeting of the Company for 2024 (the “2024
AGM”).

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established by the Board with
effect from 31st December, 2021 with specific written terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the Company’s website. Subsequent to the retirement
of Mr Sean S ] Wang and up to the date of this Report,
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar, Mr Lee Chan Fai and Mr Ng Chi
Him, being all independent non-executive Directors of the
Company, and Mr Albert Tong, an executive Director of the
Company, are members of the Nomination Committee while
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar acts as the chairman of the

Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience of the Board members), and makes recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board. The Nomination Committee is
also responsible for assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and makes recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-election of Directors and succession
planning for Directors. The Board has adopted a director nomination
policy that the Nomination Committee will evaluate and recommend
candidates for directorship to the Board by giving due consideration
to the criteria, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and

educational background, professional experience and qualifications,
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skills, knowledge, length of service, independent view and potential
contributions that the individuals can bring to the Board and
. . , .
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business before
making recommendation to the Board. The Nomination Committee
shall review and make recommendations to the Board on any change
to the Diversity Policy and the director nomination policy of the

Company.

During the year ended 31st December, 2023, two meetings of the
Nomination Committee were held for an annual review of the
structure, size and composition of the Board, to assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors, to make
recommendations to the Board on the re-election of retiring
Directors of the Company, and to review the Diversity Policy and
the mechanisms in relation to independent views available to the

Board.

At the 2023 AGM, Mr Ng Chi Him, who was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company with effect
from Ist January, 2023, was subject to retirement while Madam
Hsu Feng was subject to retirement by rotation. The Nomination
Committee recommended the Board to propose re-election of
Mr Ng and Madam Hsu as Directors at the 2023 AGM and they

were duly re-elected.

Pursuant to the Articles, Mr Albert Tong and Mr Lee Chan Fai
shall retire by rotation at the 2024 AGM. Having considered the
selection criteria of the Company including the review of the
overall contribution and service to the Company and a range of
diversity perspectives at a meeting held in March 2024, the

Nomination Committee recommended to the Board to propose
re-election of Mr Tong and Mr Lee as Directors at the 2024 AGM.

In addition, Mr Lee Chan Fai has been serving on the Board as an
independent non-executive Director for more than eighteen years
since his appointment in 2005. According to the requirement of the
CG Code, further appointment of Mr Lee shall be subject to a
separate resolution to be approved by the shareholders of the
Company. The Company shall state in the circular in respect of the
2024 AGM the reasons why the Board considers Mr Lee is still
independent and the Company’s recommendation to its

shareholders to vote in favour of the re-election of Mr Lee.
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Remuneration Committee

A remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) was
established by the Board in June 2005 with specific written terms
of reference. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the Company’s website. The principal
duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all
Directors and senior management’s remuneration and the
remuneration packages of individual Directors and senior
management of the Company. Subsequent to the retirement of
Mr Sean S ] Wang and up to the date of this Report, Mr Cheung
Siu Ping, Oscar, Mr Lee Chan Fai and Mr Ng Chi Him, being all
independent non-executive Directors of the Company, and
Mr Albert Tong, an executive Director of the Company, are
members of the Remuneration Committee while Mr Cheung Siu

Ping, Oscar acts as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

According to the remuneration policy of the Company, no Director
or any of his or her associates is involved in deciding his or her own
remuneration. The remuneration of the Directors and senior
management of the Company is determined with reference to their
expertise and experience, level of responsibility, the performance
and remuneration benchmarks from other companies and prevailing

market conditions.

During the year 2023, a meeting of the Remuneration Committee
was held for an annual review of the remuneration policy and
packages for all the Directors and senior management of the
Company. Details of the emoluments paid to the Directors and
senior management of the Company for the year ended 31st
December, 2023 are set out in Note 11 to the consolidated

financial statements on pages 130 to 132.
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Attendance Records at Meetings 7 o Al B

o EFREE T _=F1+ A
=t —HILFEENRITZ R KRG -
HEEMEGHR ULFERLZRES 14
ZEREMHMZE B & &k R

The attendance of individual Directors at general meeting, regular
meetings of the Board and meetings of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee held during

the year ended 31st December, 2023 is set out below:

mr
Number of meetings attended/held
S/ BTN RS A
General Audit Nomination Remuneration
Meeting Board Committee ~ Committee =~ Committee
Name of Directors EEEAH BRRKE HHR HRZBEE WRAUZEE FWZHEA
Executive Directors WiTER
Madam Hsu Feng fr Mmut 11 44 NIARER NARER NARER
(Chairman of the Board and (HEH G FIT
Managing Director) HHAAH)
Mr Albert Tong b TR 11 414 NIAREM 2/2 1/1
(Vice-Chairman of the Board) (EH R F )
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles BT REE 11 44 NAARER NARER NAREH
(Vice-Chairman of the Board) EL VA EY A,
Independent Non-Executive Directors B 3. 3 #i47 # %
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar IR 11 414 313 202 1/1
(Chairman of the Audit Committee, (BEHEHE
the Nomination Committee and REFHE R
the Remuneration Committee) %L &)
Mr Lee Chan Fai BRI 11 4/4 313 202 11
Mr Ng Chi Him RAMEE 1 414 3/3 2/2 1/1
(appointed on Ist January, 2023) (RoF =4
—H—HEZ)
Mr Sean S ] Wang EO Rl %k 1 1 1/1 11 N/A R
(retired at the conclusion of the (PR =EE
2023 AGM) BER B4
#E)

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND
CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL

DEVELOPMENT

=R ARG R
F #E S 5E R

On appointment to the Board, each of the new Directors of the

KRN wl A4 BALNESR - £ HERAT
I HE F R I Mk B — & 2w ) A
SO - LR AR B fobn R AR
T HEE B A 40~ A B R 22 B 0 R
55 o LA AR AR B AR A 2R 1 B

Company is given a comprehensive orientation package, including
the latest information of the Group, induction into their
responsibilities and duties, terms of reference of the relevant Board

Committees and other related regulatory requirements.
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Throughout the course of their directorship, to keep them abreast
of the latest developments in the legislative or regulatory
environment, the Directors are regularly provided with updates and
briefings on the Listing Rules and other applicable legal and
regulatory requirements. Circulars or guidance notes issued by
various regulatory authorities or organizations, where appropriate,

are given to the Directors for reading and reference.

In order to assist the Directors to participate in continuous
professional development, the Company encourages the Directors
to enroll in a wide range of professional development seminars and
conferences. During the year ended 31st December, 2023, the
Company organized three in-house seminars on areas of corporate
governance, information technology as well as legislative and
regulatory requirements so as to help the Directors refresh their

knowledge and skills.

A summary of the continuous professional development in which
the Directors participated during the year ended 31st December,
2023 is as follows:
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T

Continuous Professional Development

Types Subjects
Name of Directors HEREEL T 2H F
Executive Directors HiTES
Madam Hsu Feng fr WL 1,2 A B
Mr Albert Tong % F IR e A 1,2 A, B
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles IR e 1,2 AB
Independent Non-Executive Directors B PATE S
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar i JE o AR 1,2 A, B
Mr Lee Chan Fai 2B SR 1,2 A, B
Mr Ng Chi Him S H S 1,2 A B
(appointed on Ist January, 2023) (/A ——
—H—H#EZA(F)
Mr Sean S ] Wang @l e A N/A A7 N/A A7
(retired at the conclusion of the (B 3K =4 F
2023 AGM) A K 47 R )
Types: FHA -
1:  Attending in-house briefings/training, seminars, conference or 1: HEAREmRE Y w0 B
forums B
2:  Reading relevant information and updates, and watching 2 BIEAHERKEHRER > KBE

training webcasts

Gl o
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Subjects:
A:  Subjects relevant to the businesses of the Group

B:  Legal, regulatory, finance and general management updates

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted its own Code of Practice for Securities
Transactions on terms no less exacting than the required standard
of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix C3 (previously known as
Appendix 10) to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors of the
Company in office during the year ended 31st December, 2023 and
each of them has confirmed compliance with the required standard
set out in the Model Code and the Code of Practice for Securities
Transactions throughout the year or up to the retirement date (as

the case may be).

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring that proper
risk management and internal control systems are maintained
within the Group and for overseeing the effectiveness of these
systems in order to safeguard the sharcholders’ investments and the
Group’s assets against misappropriation and to manage the
operational risks. The Company has adopted a code applicable to
the Group in respect of material internal controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk
management functions since 2005. The Group’s code on risk
management and internal control is reviewed by the Company
regularly and modified pursuant to operational requirements of the

Group.

The risk management and internal control systems are intended to
manage, not eliminate, significant risks of failure to achieve the
Group’s business objectives, so they can only provide reasonable

but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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The operating units of the Group, as the risk owners, go through
the following processes on an ongoing basis and report results to

the management:

(a) identify their own significant risks in the Group’s operation
environment and evaluate the impacts of those risks on the

Group’s business and financial position;
(b) develop necessary measures to manage those risks; and
(c) monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures.

The Group regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information as set out in the code on risk management and internal
control to ensure that inside information remains confidential until
the disclosure of such information and the dissemination of such

information is efficiently and consistently made.

The Board has authorized the Audit Committee to review the
effectiveness of the systems of risk management and internal control of
the Group regularly and the Audit Committee held a meeting in 2023
for that purpose. The Board, based on the review of the Audit
Committee, considered that the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems had been adequate and effectively implemented and
the Group had complied with the provisions on risk management and
internal control as set out in the CG Code and the Group’s code on
risk management and internal control during the year ended 31st
December, 2023.

An external service provider has been engaged for providing internal
audit services to the Group during the year under review. The
Board reviewed and approved, after a review made by the Audit
Committee, the internal audit and enterprise risk assessment reports

of the Group for 2023.

The Board also considered that, after a review made by the Audit
Committee, the Group’s internal audit function had been
effectively implemented and adequately resourced with experienced
external service provider in 2023 and the resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and related
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting

functions were adequate.
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Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company acknowledge that they are
responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for each
financial period. In preparing the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2023, the
Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently; have made judgements and estimates that were
prudent and reasonable; and have prepared the consolidated

financial statements on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the Auditor to the shareholders are to form
an independent opinion, based on the audit, on those consolidated
financial statements and their opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2023 is
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 61 to 67.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The fee in respect of audit service provided to the Group by the
Auditor for the year ended 31st December, 2023 amounted to
HK$3,268,000, and the Auditor did not provide any non-audit

services during the year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary has day-to-day knowledge of the
Company’s affairs and supports the Board by ensuring board
procedures are followed and board proceedings are efficiently and
effectively conducted. The incumbent is also responsible for
apprising the Board of all applicable law, rules, regulations and
corporate governance developments. During the year under review,
the Company Secretary has taken relevant professional training as
required by Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board maintains a continuing dialogue with the Company’s
shareholders through various channels including the Company’s
general meetings. An annual general meeting of the Company was
held on 8th June, 2023 at which all the Directors at that time
(including the Chairman of the Board and chairman of the
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee) attended either in person or by means of electronic
facilities to communicate with the shareholders of the Company.
Representatives of the Auditor also attended that meeting to answer
questions about the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31st December, 2022.

In order to further enhance communication with the shareholders
of the Company and enable the Company’s shareholders to have
timely and updated information of the Group, the Company has
set up its own website at www.tomson.com.hk. All corporate
communications and regulatory announcements are published by
the Company on its website and the HKEXnews website of Hong

Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited in a timely manner.

In addition, the Company’s sharcholders and the investment
community may send their enquiries in respect of the Company by
addressing them to the Company Secretary of the Company
through mail to the Company’s office in the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (“Hong Kong”) of the People’s Republic of
China at Rooms 1501-2 and 1507-12, 15th Floor, Wing On
Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong or by email to

ir@tomson.com.hk.

The Board considers that the shareholders communication policy

has been effectively operated during the year under review.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene
an Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”) and
Put Forward Proposals at General Meetings

(a) Any one or more shareholders of the Company holding in
aggregate not less than one-tenth of the voting rights, on a
one vote per share basis, in the share capital of the Company
have the right to ask the Board to convene an EGM by
depositing a duly signed written requisition stating the general
nature of business(es) to be transacted at the EGM or the
objects of the EGM at the office of the Company in Hong
Kong at Rooms 1501-2 and 1507-12, 15th Floor, Wing On
Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for the
attention of the Company Secretary of the Company.

If within 21 days of deposit of a valid requisition (which has
been duly verified with the share registrar of the Company)
the Board does not proceed to duly convene an EGM, the
requisitionists may themselves convene a physical EGM at

only one location.

(b) The procedures for nomination of Directors by the
shareholders of the Company are available on the Company’s

website at www.tomson.com.hk.

Procedures for Putting Forward Enquiries
to the Board

Shareholders can direct their enquiries about their sharcholdings to
the share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong, Tricor
Secretaries Limited, at 17/F., Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt

Road, Hong Kong.

To the extent that such information of the Group can be made
available to the public, shareholders may at any time put forward
enquiries to the Board through the Company Secretary in writing by
mail to the office of the Company in Hong Kong at Rooms 1501-2
and 1507-12, 15th Floor, Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught Road

Central, Hong Kong or by e-mail to ir@tomson.com.hk.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, pursuant to which
the Company aims at providing stable and sustainable returns to
the shareholders of the Company. The dividend payout ratio shall
be determined or recommended, as appropriate, by the Board at its
absolute discretion after taking into account, inter alia, the Group’s
operation performance and business development plans,
consolidated financial results, liquidity position and indebtedness,
capital and investment requirements and any other factors that the
Board may deem relevant, and subject to the statutory and
regulatory restrictions under the Cayman Islands laws and the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association. Besides, no
dividend would be payable except out of the retained earnings and/

or share premium of the Company.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

The Company has adopted an anti-corruption policy, pursuant to
which the Company aims at setting out the basic standard of
conduct expected of all directors of the Group and employees of all
levels, and the Company’s policy on acceptance of advantage and
handling of conflict of interest when dealing with the business of

the Group.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Company has adopted a whistleblowing policy to allow all
employees of the Group or related third parties to raise concerns, in
confidence, through designated reporting channel while the Audit

Committee is supervising the enforcement of the policy.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the constitutional documents of the
Company during the year ended 31st December, 2023 and up to
the date of this Report.
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CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP

The Group pledges itself to contribute to the well-being of the
society. During the year under review, the Group has made
charitable donations to various international and local charitable
organizations, including World Vision Hong Kong, Médecins Sans
Fronti¢res, Orbis Hong Kong and Senior Citizen Home Safety
Association, to support their activities in the provision of relief
against poverty and education, children sponsorship, medical
humanitarian assistance to ease the suffering of people in crisis

situations, health promotion and communal welfare.

In addition, the Company has participated in the “Heart to Heart
Project” organized by The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups
since its launch in 2005, to sponsor service projects proposed by
volunteer groups of those schools enrolled under the project so as
to encourage youth volunteers to serve the community and to

promote the concept of mutual help among neighborhood.
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On behalf of the Board
Albert Tong

Vice-Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26th March, 2024
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Profile of the Directors and Officers

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Madam Hsu Feng, aged 73, has been a director of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) since January 1990
and now acts as an executive Director of the Company. She was
appointed Managing Director of the Company in December 2001
and the chairman of the executive committee of the Board of
Directors of the Company (the “Board”) in June 2005. She was also
elected as Chairman of the Board in December 2006.

Madam Hsu has been engaged in the property development, and
hospitality and leisure business in the Mainland of the People’s
Republic of China (“China”) over three decades. She is also the
Honorary Consul of the Principality of Monaco in Shanghai,
China. She has been a director of Rivera (Holdings) Limited
(“RHL”) since 1990. RHL had been a listed company in the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (“Hong Kong”) of China since
1970’s and withdrew the listing of its shares on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in August 2021. RHL
has been engaged in property development and investment. In
addition, she has over 10 years’ experience in film production, and
in property development and investment as well as retail industry

in Taiwan.

Madam Hsu Feng is the mother of Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong
Chi Kar Charles, who are Vice-Chairmen of the Board and
executive Directors of the Company. Madam Hsu, Mr Albert Tong
and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles (collectively “Tong Family”) are all
directors of Step Famous Investment Limited (“Step Famous”) and
altogether hold the entire interests in the issued capital of Step
Famous. In addition, both Madam Hsu and Mr Albert Tong are
directors of King China Holdings Limited (“King China”) while
Tong Family are all directors of E-Shares Investments Limited
(“E-Shares”). Madam Hsu is the owner of King China and
E-Shares. Mr Albert Tong, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles and King
China are substantial sharcholders of the Company while Step
Famous and E-Shares are shareholders of the Company. All of them
have notifiable interests in the Company under Part XV of the
Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”).

As at the date of the Report of the Directors, pursuant to the SFO,
Madam Hsu is interested and taken to be interested in a total of

857,764,478 issued shares of the Company.

EHRRBATBN BN

PiTES

WLt 735 H—ULEFE AR
AT A 2%\ B HL B & 2 ] (RS [ A 4R
M) zEHE WHAEARA ZHUITE
Fo BN EFE AT ABEAELA
AR ZEEREH LR —FFERAFENA
WRERARFAESRF ((EHF) BT
ZHITRB G Z IR o FALR ZFEFAN
AR EERER

TRl L HE R EE N RSB ([ )
A ML GE 2 5 i BR % > DL SO B T
W AR = 1 4F o IR J5 R4 B A 1
R R B 2 A EEE A UL
AR ATV T 4R A BR 2\ (T )
ZH#EH I H— LB FAE AU AE
AR AT B ([Fds]) b &k —
T AN H R H A A S 5
AR A EAR BT AL o I — B
[ M7 B % R B0 o Be A RTE R R
B Rl B MY EERMBEL KT
5 36 T5 W A AR 2 KRR

M L ERERE EFRAITES
B TR R T E AR BB - IR
T TR R TR (R
MR B 5B EARA A ([
B zHERERERFTFAERZ BT
JeA 2 ZIRELE o WA & KRG T
] 2 A WY N 2 o e R A PR A W) (T 6
#|) ZEF > MY RKE S E-Shares
Investments Limited ([ E-Shares |) Z #
oo R4+ 7y 80 #E ) E-Shares Z 5 A
N o & TR e ~ 51 5 o i T S 3 1
A E 2 FE R > 1 HE S X E-Shares
PN A Z R o 15045 2 AR AR A s (B
75 B B (<G8 5 R & e pi) 1)
XV FF A H AR Z AN Al AR o

AR AR A R GE S
W BIGEG) 238 R L WA &
B A A 3£857,764,478 1 A /A A E 8%
ATy o

Annual Report 2023 4F FE4F




Profile (_)f the Directors and Officers
wERERFATBANB @A

The total of the annual basic salary and housing allowance of
Madam Hsu for her services in management of the Company has
been increased from HK$8,502,100 to HK$8,647,700 with effect
from 1st January, 2024, which was approved by the Board on
recommendation of its remuneration committee with reference to

her responsibilities and prevailing market conditions.

Mr Albert Tong, aged 41, has been appointed an executive
Director of the Company since December 2001 and a member of
the executive committee and remuneration committee of the Board
since June 2005. He was elected as Vice-Chairman of the Board in
December 2006. He has also been appointed to act as a member of
the nomination committee of the Board with effect from December
2021. He has joined the Group and taken up directorships of the
subsidiaries of the Company since March 2001. He has actively
participated in the Group’s business development, corporate
management, property trading and securities investment for more
than two decades. He also has been a director of RHL since March
2001.

Mr Albert Tong is a son of Madam Hsu Feng, Chairman of the
Board and Managing Director of the Company, and the younger
brother of Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, Vice-Chairman of the Board
and executive Director of the Company. They all are directors of
Step Famous and altogether hold the entire interests in the issued
capital of Step Famous. They are also directors of E-Shares. In
addition, both Mr Albert Tong and Madam Hsu Feng are directors
of King China. Madam Hsu is a controlling sharcholder of the
Company, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles and King China are
substantial sharcholders of the Company while Step Famous and
E-Shares are shareholders of the Company. All of them have
notifiable interests in the Company under Part XV of the SFO.

As at the date of the Report of the Directors, pursuant to the SFO,
Mr Albert Tong is interested in 304,108,315 issued shares of the
Company.

The total of the annual basic salary and housing allowance of
Mr Albert Tong for his services in management of the Company
has been increased from HK$3,325,000 to HK$3,378,300 with
effect from 1st January, 2024, which was approved by the Board on
recommendation of its remuneration committee with reference to

his responsibilities and prevailing market conditions.
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Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, aged 43, has been appointed an
executive Director of the Company and a member of the executive
committee of the Board since October 2008. He was also elected as
Vice-Chairman of the Board in December 2010. He has joined the
Group since December 2000 and has participated in property
trading and business management of the Shanghai office of the
Group. He also acts as a director of a number of subsidiaries of the
Company. He now principally engages in property development
and trading business in the Mainland of China. He also has been a
director of RHL since August 2019.

In addition, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles had been a member of the
13th Tianjin Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference during the period from January
2013 to January 2018.

Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles is a son of Madam Hsu Feng, Chairman
of the Board and Managing Director of the Company, and the
elder brother of Mr Albert Tong, Vice-Chairman of the Board and
executive Director of the Company. They all are directors of Step
Famous and altogether hold the entire interests in the issued capital
of Step Famous. They are also directors of E-Shares. Madam Hsu
Feng is a controlling sharcholder of the Company, Mr Albert Tong
is a substantial shareholder of the Company while Step Famous and
E-Shares are shareholders of the Company. All of them have
notifiable interests in the Company under Part XV of the SFO.

As at the date of the Report of the Directors, pursuant to the SFO,
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles is interested in 310,244,303 issued
shares of the Company.

The total of the annual basic salary and housing allowance of
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles for his services in management of the
Company has been increased from HK$2,392,250 to
HK$2,426,700 with effect from 1st January, 2024, which was
approved by the Board on recommendation of its remuneration
committee with reference to his responsibilities and prevailing

market conditions.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar, aged 59, has been appointed an
independent non-executive Director of the Company and the
chairman of the audit committee of the Board since September
2004. He was also appointed a member of the remuneration
committee of the Board in June 2005 and then has been appointed
as the chairman of this committee since April 2011. He has been
further appointed to act as the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Board with effect from December 2021. Save as

disclosed, Mr Cheung does not hold any position in the Group.

Mr Cheung is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

He is practising as a certified public accountant in Hong Kong and

is the sole proprietor of Oscar S. P. Cheung & Co..

The annual director’s fee of Mr Cheung has been increased from
HK$180,600 to HK$185,400 with effect from 1st January, 2024,
which was approved by the Board, under the authorization of the
shareholders at the 2023 annual general meeting of the Company
and on recommendation of the remuneration committee of the
Board with reference to his responsibilities and prevailing market

conditions.

Mr Lee Chan Fai, aged 61, has been appointed an independent
non-executive Director of the Company and a member of each of
the audit committee and remuneration committee of the Board
since December 2005. He has also been appointed to act as a
member of the nomination committee of the Board with effect
from December 2021. Save as disclosed, Mr Lee does not hold any

position in the Group.

He graduated from Department of Architecture of The University
of Hong Kong, is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Architects and is qualified as a Registered Architect in Hong Kong
and a First Class Registered Architect in the Mainland of China.
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Mr Lee has acted as a director of Marco Asia Limited and J&DP
Architects Limited (ZEI8 #5EHTA PR/ 7)) since the 1990’s, and a
director of J&P Architects Limited (2808 55t #0A PR 7))
since January 2015. He was a director of JSP Architects Limited
during the period from 2008 to July 2012. He has extensive

experience in architectural design.

The annual director’s fee of Mr Lee has been increased from
HK$180,600 to HK$185,400 with effect from 1st January, 2024,
which was approved by the Board, under the authorization of the
shareholders at the 2023 annual general meeting of the Company
and on recommendation of the remuneration committee of the
Board with reference to his responsibilities and prevailing market

conditions.

Mr Ng Chi Him, aged 64, has been appointed an independent
non-executive Director of the Company and a member of each of
the audit committee, nomination committee and remuneration
committee of the Board since January 2023. Save as disclosed,

Mr Ng does not hold any position in the Group.

He holds a Bachelor of Laws degree and is a member of The Law
Society of Hong Kong. He was admitted as a solicitor in Hong
Kong in 1993. He practised as a partner of Edward Lau, Wong &
Lou during the period from February 2018 to September 2019 and
has been a practising partner of Patrick Chu, Conti Wong Lawyers
LLP since 31st August, 2019.

Mr Ng had been an independent non-executive director of RHL
during the period from July 2019 to August 2021.

The annual director’s fee of Mr Ng has been increased from
HK$180,600 to HK$185,400 with effect from 1st January, 2024,
which was approved by the Board, under the authorization of the
shareholders at the 2023 annual general meeting of the Company
and on recommendation of the remuneration committee of the
Board with reference to his responsibilities and prevailing market

conditions.
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OFFICERS RARITBANE

Ms Lee Yuen Han, aged 57, joined the Group in 1991 and was WL L ST R — UL —
appointed the Company Secretary of the Company in March 1998. A K — LIUNFE Z AR A
She had also acted as the Deputy General Manager of the Company AR ZAFRE A -FFHLHE/NA
since August 2005 and was promoted to the Senior Deputy General TR AT AN R 2 @ R ik &
Manager of the Company in March 2022. TS ATHEARRA R Z R AR S ACHE o

She attained a bachelor’s degree in economics and a master’s degree A A4 A58 R B R R A A
in business studies, and is an associate of The Chartered RIS NN AP S /NI < B /AR =4
Governance Institute established in England and The Hong Kong HEBAFRGHEATZE - -

Chartered Governance Institute.

Mr Wong Chi Keung, aged 47, joined the Group in 2008. He was EEWEA - 470 I FF/NEMR
appointed the Chief Accountant of the Company in February 2018 AL AR NFEHERAT S
and was promoted to the Financial Controller of the Company in AKPNFZBEFH Wik —F 4 = H
March 2022. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of FERANFZ MR - A FEES

Certified Public Accountants. Agz&s -
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The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) hereby
presents its Report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31st December, 2023 and the
Independent Auditor’s Report thereon.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group in the course of the year were
property development and investment, hospitality and leisure
business, securities trading, as well as operation of and investment

in media and entertainment business.

During the year under review, the Company acted as an investment
holding company and the principal activities and other particulars
of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are listed under Note
40 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 181 to 188.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the performance and position of the Group’s business
for the year ended 31st December, 2023, an indication of the
future development of the Group’s business as well as an analysis of
the Group’s principal risks and uncertainties are set out in the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 to 20. This

discussion forms part of this Report.

A discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance as well as its compliance with laws and regulations,
and an account of the Group’s relationships with its employees,

customers and suppliers are set out below in this Report.

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st December,
2023 and the Group’s financial position as at the end thereof are
set out on pages 68 to 190. An analysis by operating segments and
geographical location is set out in Note 6 to the consolidated

financial statements on pages 123 to 127.

As at the date of this Report, the Board is not aware of any
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since the

end of the year under review.
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DIVIDEND

The Board has declared an interim dividend of 10 HK cents per
share for the year ended 31st December, 2023 (2022: 8.50 HK
cents per share) to shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on Friday, 3rd May, 2024 (the
“Record Date”). Shareholders will be given an option to elect to
receive shares of HK$0.50 each in the capital of the Company (the
“Share(s)”) credited as fully paid in lieu of cash in respect of all or
part of the interim dividend (the “Scrip Dividend Scheme”).

The Scrip Dividend Scheme is conditional upon consent of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) to
grant listing of and permission to deal in the new Shares to be
allotted thereunder. For the purpose of determining the number of
new Shares to be allotted under the Scrip Dividend Scheme, the
market value of a new Share will be calculated as an amount equal
to 95% of the average of the closing prices per Share traded on the
Stock Exchange for the five consecutive trading days up to and
including the Record Date. A circular providing full details of the
Scrip Dividend Scheme, together with a form of election, will be
sent to the shareholders of the Company in electronic form by
email or in printed form by post (as the case may be) in due course.
Cash dividend warrants and/or share certificates for the scrip
dividend are expected to be despatched on Thursday, 13th June,
2024.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed for the

following periods:

(a) For the purpose of determining the shareholders who qualify
for the interim dividend for 2023, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 30th April, 2024
to Friday, 3rd May, 2024, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of Shares will be effected. In order to
qualify for the interim dividend, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with Tricor Secretaries Limited, the Company’s share registrar
in the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“Hong
Kong”) of the People’s Republic of China (“China”), not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 29th April, 2024 for registration;

and
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(b) The annual general meeting of the Company has been
convened for Thursday, 6th June, 2024 (the “2024 AGM”).
For the purpose of determining the shareholders who are
entitled to attend and vote at the 2024 AGM, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 31st
May, 2024 to Thursday, 6th June, 2024, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of Shares will be effected. In
order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2024 AGM, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar
in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited not later than
4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 30th May, 2024 for registration.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, the Group’s five largest customers
contributed approximately 40.92% of the Group’s gross proceeds
from operations with the largest customer accounting for
approximately 25.66% of the Group’s gross proceeds from
operations while approximately 98.78% of the Group’s purchases
were attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers with the
largest supplier accounting for approximately 80.10% of the

Group’s purchases.

None of the Directors of the Company, their close associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5% interest in the number of issued Shares) have any interest

in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31st December, 2023, the Group donated
approximately HK$257,000 for charitable and other causes.
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FIXED ASSETS

During the year ended 31st December, 2023, the Group added fixed
assets amounting to HK$22,775,000 (2022: HK$206,647,000) while
it disposed of and wrote off fixed assets with an aggregate net book
value of HK$318,000 (2022: written off of HK$19,000).

Movements in fixed assets of the Group during the year are shown
in Notes 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements on
pages 136 to 140.

A schedule of the principal properties held by the Group, either
under development or for sale or investment purposes, is set out on
pages 191 to 196.

BORROWINGS AND DEBENTURES

Details of borrowings of the Group as at 31st December, 2023 are

set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements on page

155.

No debentures of any class were issued by the Company or any of

its subsidiaries, or were in issue, at any time during the year.

No interest expenses attributable to properties under development

were capitalized by the Group during the year (2022: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review, the Company issued and allotted
81,122,062 new Shares at a price of HK$1.5998 per Share to the
shareholders who elected to receive Shares credited as fully paid in
lieu of cash for the interim dividend of the Company for the year
ended 31st December, 2022. All these newly issued Shares rank

pari passu in all respects with the then existing issued Shares.

As at 31st December, 2023, 2,052,147,187 Shares were in issue
and fully paid. Details of the share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements on page

154.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December, 2023, there was no
purchase, sale or redemption made by the Company, or any of its

subsidiaries, of the Company’s listed securities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

There were no equity-linked agreements entered into by the
Company during the year under review or subsisted at the end of

the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and the

Companies Act of the Cayman Islands.

RESERVES

The retained earnings and share premium of the Company as at
31st December, 2023 amounted to HK$1,314,974,000 (2022:
HK$1,358,139,000) and HK$265,030,000 (2022: HK$343,349,000)

respectively. These reserves are available for distribution.

The Board recommends that the retained earnings of the Group as
at 31st December, 2023 amounting to HK$9,585,651,000 be

carried forward.

Other movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are shown in the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity and Note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 73 and 74, and page 180 respectively.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and financial position of the Group for

the preceding five financial years is set out on pages 198 and 199.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company as at the date of this Report and
those who were in office during the year under review and up to

the date of this Report are:

Executive Directors

Madam Hsu Feng (Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr Albert Tong (Vice-Chairman)

Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles (Vice-Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar
Mr Lee Chan Fai
Mr Ng Chi Him
(appointed on Ist January, 2023)
Mr Sean § ] Wang
(retired at the conclusion of the

annual general meeting held on 8th June, 2023)

Mr Sean S ] Wang, an independent non-executive Director of the
Company, retired by rotation at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 8th June, 2023 pursuant to the Articles of

Association of the Company and did not stand for re-election.

A profile of the existing Directors of the Company as at the date of
this Report is shown on pages 40 to 44.

Information relating to emoluments paid to the Company’s
Directors during the year is set out in Note 11 to the consolidated

financial statements on pages 130 to 132.

All Directors of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation
at annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company. Article 116 of the Articles
of Association of the Company provides that at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors of the Company for the time
being or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then
the nearest number to but not more than one-third shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The Directors
to retire each year shall be those who have been longest in office
since their last election and are eligible for re-election. In this
connection, Mr Albert Tong and Mr Lee Chan Fai shall retire by
rotation at the 2024 AGM. Being eligible, they offer themselves for

re-election.
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The re-election of the retiring Directors of the Company is subject
to separate resolutions to be approved by the shareholders at the
2024 AGM and details of those retiring Directors will be disclosed
in a circular of the Company to be sent to the shareholders together
with the notice of the 2024 AGM in electronic form by email or in
printed form by post (as the case may be).

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

The Directors of the Company who are proposed for re-election at
the 2024 AGM do not have any unexpired service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by
the employing company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ and officers’
liability insurance throughout the year under review, which
provides appropriate cover for the directors and officers of the

Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31st December, 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors of the Company in shares, debentures and underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)), which were required, pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein
(including interests and short positions which they were taken to
have under Section 344 of the SFO) or which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

(the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:
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(I) The Company @O ARaAH
Shares of HK$0.50 each 4 JBE T AF0.509 Jo =2 % 4y
Number of Shares
Bt % H
Personal Family Corporate Other
Name of Directors Interests Interests Interests Interests
EFRA i\ 23 % JB B 2 2 v B 2 {23
Madam Hsu Feng fr it @ 270,389,412 (B)(i) Nil 8 587,375,066 (B)(ii), (iii) ~ Nil &
Mr Albert Tong BRI (4) 304,108,315 (C) Nil 4 Nil ¥ (B)(iii) Nil 4
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles % 73 %tk (4) 310,244,303 (D) Nil 4 Nil # (B)(iii) Nil 4
(IT) The Company’s associated corporation (I1) A 2w Z FH Bk 3
Tomson Entertainment Co. Limited B B W 22 B Oy A PR 2 W]
(“Tomson Entertainment”) (G R4 ])
Shares of NTD10 each w1002
Number of shares of Tomson Entertainment
% BB g 2 Iy B H
Personal Family Corporate Other
Name of Director Interests Interests Interests Interests
wHHEA flEl A HE #2 X B HE f2 2w HE 4 I Al 1 £
Madam Hsu Feng & #%+ () 1,350,000 Nil 1,125,000 Nil
Notces: MEE -

(A) Madam Hsu Feng is the mother of Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong (A) Rt TR A XSG T R EE

Chi Kar Charles. They are substantial shareholders and directors of BRI o S Ry R E A R A A
Step Famous Investment Limited (“Step Famous”). ((ERD) 2 T EBRHRLEF -

(B) Madam Hsu Feng was interested and deemed to be interested in (B) MR GHESH LM E M) - i+

an aggregate of 857,764,478 issued Shares, representing 41.798% Ny W = i N =S e

interests in the total number of issued Shares, pursuant to the SFO 857,764,478k CBEAT IR AR - A 2 BT IR

in the following ways: B A2 41.798% E 4

(i)  She held in her capacity as a beneficial owner an interest in () WUHEREZESAZ FHE
270,389,412 issued Shares (being 13.176% of the total number 270,389,412 % & 817 e (BIE
of issued Shares); BT B2 13.176%) ZHESS
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D)

(E)

(i)  She held the entire interests in the issued capital of the
following shareholders of the Company and was therefore
deemed to have an interest in 457,083,484 issued Shares (being
22.273% of the total number of issued Shares) which were
beneficially held by these companies:
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i) WHEA NI ALAZERZE
BT AR Z AR LS -
BMAHEZSAAEGRFAZ
457,083,484/ T g 17 Ik iy (BRI 4%
Ty ¥ 2 22.273%) 2 MESE -

Name of companies Number of Shares held
AR Fin 5 A1 Iy 2 BOH
King China Holdings Limited $ % 5 ¥4 R 2 7 266,357,280
E-Shares Investments Limited 190,726,204

457,083,484

(iii) Step Famous held in its capacity as a beneficial owner an
interest in 130,291,582 issued Shares (being 6.349% of the
total number of issued Shares). Madam Hsu was entitled to
exercise 66% interests in the issued capital of Step Famous.
Pursuant to the SFO, Madam Hsu was therefore deemed to be
interested in the aforesaid Shares through a corporation

controlled by her.

Mr Albert Tong held in his capacity as a beneficial owner an interest
in 304,108,315 issued Shares (being 14.819% of the total number of

issued Shares).

Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles held in his capacity as a beneficial owner
an interest in 310,244,303 issued Shares (being 15.118% of the total

number of issued Shares).

Madam Hsu Feng held, in her capacity as a beneficial owner, a
personal interest in 1,350,000 shares (being 54%) in the capital of
Tomson Entertainment. The Company held an interest in 1,125,000
shares (being 45%) in the capital of Tomson Entertainment through
its wholly-owned subsidiary and Madam Hsu was (by virtue of her
beneficial interest in the Company as disclosed in the above Note
(B)) deemed to be indirectly interested in these shares through a
corporation controlled by her pursuant to the SFO. In conclusion,
Madam Hsu was interested and deemed to be interested in a
total of 2,475,000 shares (being 99%) in the capital of Tomson

Entertainment pursuant to the SFO.

(©

(E)
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F54130,291,582 /% B B 47 4> (B
CEEAT e A2 6.349% ) 2 HE
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MBI > i s
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BEATHR O A8 2 15.118%) Z HERS o

L EUHEAERES AN S h
RN F5 A7 5 B 44 i A 221,350,000
JB B (R549% ) 2 HE %5 o A28 Al 3 8
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the Company and
their associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
debentures and underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as at 31st December, 2023, which were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein (including interests or short positions
which they were taken to have under Section 344 of the SFO) or
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Listing Rules.

SHARE SCHEME

The Company has not adopted any incentive scheme involving
shares of the Company or its principal subsidiaries during the year
ended 31st December, 2023.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year nor at the end of the year ended 31st
December, 2023 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or

debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

Madam Hsu Feng, Chairman of the Board and Managing Director
of the Company, along with Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong Chi
Kar Charles, being Vice-Chairmen of the Board and executive
Directors of the Company, are directors and shareholders of Rivera

(Holdings) Limited (“RHL”).

RHL is engaged in property development and investment in
Shanghai of China, particularly in Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area, through its subsidiaries and associated company.
Property development and investment, with particular focus on
Pudong New Area in Shanghai, is one of the principal businesses of
the Group. The business of RHL in the property sector in Shanghai
(the “Excluded Business”) may therefore potentially compete with

the Group’s business.
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In this connection, Madam Hsu, Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong
Chi Kar Charles are considered to have interests in a business which
may compete or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group, other than that business where the
Directors of the Company have been appointed or were appointed
as directors to represent the interests of the Company and/or the
Group, pursuant to the Listing Rules. Nevertheless, the Group’s
business and the Excluded Business are managed by their respective
independent management and administration. The target market
segments of the Group’s business are different from that of the
Excluded Business. Besides, the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company keep monitoring the operations of the
Group. The Group is capable of carrying on its business

independently of, and at arm’s length from, the Excluded Business.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company or
any entity connected with him (within the meaning of Section 486
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, were entered into during the year
ended 31st December, 2023 or subsisted at the end of the year or

at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of any business of the Group were entered

into or subsisted during the year ended 31st December, 2023.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with its suppliers and customers to achieve its
short-term and long-term goals. To maintain its competitive status,
the Group aims at providing quality products and services to its

customers.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Company recognizes that employees are one of the Group’s
valuable assets and the Group is conscious of the importance of an
effective staff management and incentive structure. The Group
provides competitive remuneration packages and makes regular
review to attract and motivate its employees. Remuneration and
benefits packages are generally structured by reference to market

terms, individual responsibilities, performance and qualifications.

Directors’ emoluments are determined with reference to their
responsibilities and prevailing market conditions. The emoluments of
the executive Directors of the Company for their services in
management of the Group are determined by the Board on the
recommendation of its remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”). The fees of the independent non-executive Directors of
the Company are fixed by the Board under the authorization of the
shareholders of the Company and on the recommendation of the

Remuneration Committee.

PENSION SCHEMES

The Company participates in a pension scheme, which was
registered under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Ordinance”), for all its employees
in Hong Kong. The scheme is a defined contribution scheme
effective from December 2000 and is funded by contributions from
employer and employees in accordance with the provisions of the
MPF Ordinance. If the employer makes any voluntary
contributions for the employees under the scheme, forfeited
contributions in this nature can be applied to reduce the amount of

future voluntary contributions payable by the employer.

The employees of the Group in the Mainland of China are
members of respective state-managed defined contribution
retirement benefits schemes operated by the local governments. The
employers and the employees are obliged to make contributions at a

certain percentage of the payroll under rules of the schemes.

Furthermore, the Group and its employees in the Macao Special
Administrative Region (“Macau”) of China shall make
contributions of a fixed amount per quarter to the Social Security

Fund under the obligation system pursuant to the laws of Macau.
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During the year under review, the total amount contributed by the
Group to the said schemes and charged to the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss amounted to HK$5,339,000 (2022:
HK$5,332,000) and no contributions were forfeited.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. It continually
seeks to identify and manage environmental impacts attributable to
its operation activities to minimize the impacts as far as possible. It
adheres to the principle of recycling and reduction and implements
green office practices such as double-sided printing and copying
and reducing energy consumption by switching off idle lightings

and electrical appliances.

The Group also seeks to reduce its material consumption and
construction wastes in construction works. The Group has prescribed

environmental protection measures in its operation control.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company will publish its Environmental, Social and
Governance Report 2023 separately on the Company’s website at
www.tomson.com.hk and on the website of Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited at www.hkexnews.hk at the same time as the

publication of this Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group commits itself to comply with the relevant laws and
regulations including, inter alia, the Listing Rules, the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and other applicable local laws and
regulations in various jurisdictions in which it operates.
Furthermore, the Group, acting as a property developer, is subject
to environmental protection laws and regulations, including air and
noise pollution and discharge of construction wastes and water in
the Mainland and Macau of China. To the best knowledge of the
Board, the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and
regulations that have significant impact on the Group during the

year under review.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS

As at 31st December, 2023, the following shareholders (other than
the Directors of the Company) were interested, directly or
indirectly, in 5% or more of the number of issued Shares and
underlying shares of the Company and those interests were required

to be recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of the SFO:

(I) Substantial Shareholder of the Company

Name of shareholder

B 3K 4

Jik 3¢ 2 BE 2 B IR AT

AR A= —H o R

WAL A SRR AN B B H] s A
ARy ml 2 EEEAT By R B B Ay B
5%ER LA B HERT > T % S5 HE i 2 28 IR R
I KA B ARG 2633610 2 B i Bk % A
THiAEZ B A

D AAFZ EREE

Number of Shares held

(proportion to the number of issued Shares)
B ¥ A B0y 2 BUH

eI BEHZASLL)

King China Holdings Limited #f %4 H A R A (2)

(IT) Other Persons

Name of shareholders

Jie 5 4 1l

266,357,280 (12.979%)

an H i A+

Number of Shares held

(proportion to the number of issued Shares)
Frdi A e < W H
(WeBfTRMBHZAT)

E-Shares Investments Limited (a)
Step Famous Investment Limited (“Step Famous”)

HERBE AR A F (HEE]) b)

Notes:

(a) King China Holdings Limited and E-Shares Investments Limited
were the beneficial owners of these Shares respectively. They were
wholly owned by Madam Hsu Feng in her capacity as a beneficial
owner. Pursuant to the SFO, their interests in these Shares therefore
constituted part of the total interests of Madam Hsu Feng in the
capital of the Company as disclosed in Note (B) to the above
paragraph headed “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
Securities” in this Report.

(b)  Step Famous was the beneficial owner of these Shares. Madam Hsu
Feng was entitled to exercise 66% interests in the issued capital
of Step Famous. Pursuant to the SFO, Step Famous’ interests in
these Shares constituted part of the total interests of Madam Hsu
Feng in the capital of the Company as disclosed in Note (B) to the
above paragraph headed “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
Securities” in this Report.
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190,726,204 (9.294%)

130,291,582 (6.349%)

(@) S FELBE AR AN A K E-Shares
Investments Limited 73 Al £ 3% %5 B 17y 2
HREAAN MEmM LU HEHAE
ANEMEEHAZEANF o I R
GEHREMEGE) - 25 NaWa 2
T 103 R 2 A S 4 2 TR A A
[ 2 B LR | — /i 2 MeE®)
Jr B% % 2 AR L b R 2 AR S F R
A 2 W G R 2 — Ry

(b) EBERZERMS ZEEHAN - R L
Al AT R 2 OB AT R I 66% HE
f o MRUE G 2F B B R ) o o R R
A7 2 T 3 R i W AR iR A 7 ORI A
R ERZERMER R
Wi 5 (B) BT 48 e 2 TR Al & L BT £ 1 2 &
A A A o 2 W g AR — R A o



Save for the above interests, the Directors of the Company are not
aware of any person (other than the Directors of the Company)
who had, directly or indirectly, interests or short positions in the
number of issued Shares and the underlying shares of the Company
and those interests or short positions were required to be recorded
in the register kept under Section 336 of the SFO as at 31st
December, 2023.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this Reporrt,
the Company has maintained a sufficient public float as prescribed

by the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31st December, 2023 have been audited by the Auditor of
the Company, Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and there was no
change in the Auditor of the Company in the previous three
financial years. They will retire at the conclusion of the 2024 AGM

and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu have been registered with the
Accounting and Financial Reporting Council of Hong Kong as a

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor.

On behalf of the Board
Albert Tong

Vice-Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26th March, 2024
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Deloitte.

TO THE MEMBERS OF

TOMSON GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tomson
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 68 to 190 which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st
December, 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material

accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31st December, 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

martters.

Valuation of investment properties

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the assets and involvement of the

management judgement and estimation in determining the fair value.

The fair value of investment properties (which included commercial
properties, residential properties and industrial properties in Shanghai
of the People’s Republic of China (the “Mainland China”)) at 31st
December, 2023 was HK$6,993,381,000 with loss on fair value
changes recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss of
HK$109,255,000 for the year then ended.

As disclosed in Notes 4 and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements, in estimating the fair value of these investment properties,
the Group engaged a professional independent valuer (the “Valuer”) to
establish and determine the appropriate valuation technique and inputs
to the valuation. The valuation was arrived by capitalising the net
rental income derived from existing tenancies with due allowance for
reversionary income potential of the properties on a recurring basis.
This involves making certain assumptions and the use of estimates in
respect of the reversionary yield by the Valuer. A slight increase in the
reversionary yield would result in a significant decrease in fair value,

and vice versa.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment properties

included:

. Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
Valuer;
. Obtaining an understanding of the valuation process and

significant assumptions and critical judgement areas from the
management to assess if the investment approach is appropriate

for the respective properties and industry norms;

. Evaluating the appropriateness of the estimations used, in
particular, the underlying assumptions and methodologies,
based on our knowledge of the properties market of the relevant

locations; and

*  Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs used by the
Valuer in the valuation model, including the reversionary yield,
net rental income derived from existing tenancies and annual
unit market rental by comparing them against current market

data and entity specific information on a sample basis.

Provision for land appreciation tax

We identified the provision for land appreciation tax (“LAT”)
calculations as a key audit matter since significant judgement and
estimation are required in determining the amount of LAT to be

paid by the Group within each of the property development projects.

The Group is subject to LAT in the Mainland China. As disclosed in
Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements, the Mainland China
LAT of HK$111,150,000 was recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss for the year ended 31st December, 2023. The Group
had provision for LAT payable amounted to HK$3,729,394,000 as at
31st December, 2023.

LAT has been provided at ranges of progressive rates of the
appreciation value, with certain allowable deductions including land
costs, borrowing costs and the relevant property development
expenditures, which are the key inputs in the calculation of the LAT

based on the management’s best estimates.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Our procedures in relation to the provision for LAT included:

. Obtaining an understanding from the management of the

Group about the basis adopted in arriving at the provision for

LAT;

e Assessing the Group’s provision for LAT computation prepared
by the management of the Group with reference to relevant

rules and regulations with the assistance of our tax specialists;

and

. Checking the financial information, including land costs,
borrowing costs and relevant development expenditures, used in
the calculation of provision for LAT to the Group’s historical

financial data.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have

no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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. Obrtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh

the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent

auditor’s report is Wan Wai Nga.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
26th March, 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

ik 8

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % — &% =4+ " H =+—H L FE

2023 2022
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 T T T T
Gross proceeds from operations K8 A% 25 A AR 5&6 567,364 533,078
Revenue A 5 513,810 460,049
Cost of sales B AR (156,303) (145,710)
Gross profit £ ) 357,507 314,339
Net gain on financial assets at fair value AP EFAEGEZ
through profit or loss PA S &R 2 W i VT AR 2,287 8,161
Other income HoAh e A 117,503 136,081
Other gains and losses HAth i 75 M 518 8 (5,324) (27,605)
Selling expenses HE#E (95,578) (86,300)
Administrative expenses 17 B H (134,372) (112,547)
Loss on fair value changes of P& W) 20N 118 5 B Iy
investment properties EEZ R 15 (109,255) (75,204)
Finance costs fil & 2 (18,204) (14,835)
114,564 142,084
Share of results of associates JRE A\ B 5 N F 2 SR A (2,044) (234)
Share of result of a joint venture I — R G EREL
Ey 22,645 (15,289)
Profit before taxation ¥ Bt BT Vas A1) 10 135,165 126,561
Taxation BLIA 12 (90,201) (107,806)
Profit for the year A 1 ¥ ) 44,964 18,755
Profit for the year attributable to: JRE A 4F B i R AR R
Owners of the Company Z/NEIL E RS RSN 42,684 17,168
Non-controlling interests FE 2 B 1B R 4 2,280 1,587
44,964 18,755
Earnings per share (HK cents) g I B A (s A1) 14
— Basic — Rk 2.12 0.87
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
f oy TR A B LAt 4 1 6

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #(%F — &% =4+ " H =+—H L FE

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$°000
T # U T #E T

Profit for the year 4 8 i A1) 44,964 18,755
Other comprehensive (expense) income oA % v (BH 32 ) W%
Items that may be subsequently reclassified H A 7] F i E

to profit or loss: Aa#ZIHHA -
Exchange difference arising from translation of: i B IRE 2 AR 2 e S 22 R

— subsidiaries — [t Jg§ 2 (380,156) (1,055,229)

— a joint venture ——RXEERE (4,947) (14,822)

— associates — 8 ) (175) (804)
Reclassification adjustment from foreign BN 58, 46 ok A TR S A

currencies translation reserves:

— release upon liquidation of an associate —RVE S — B A B

fifE B - (27)

Item that will not be reclassitied to AEA AR

profit or loss: A K ZHA -
Fair value (loss) gain on equity instrument F 8 FAE w2 T i AR 2

at fair value through other comprehensive A TR Z A FE (18)

income (net of deferred tax) Wi g (8 Bk 4% S Bl TE) (6,316) 33,180
Other comprehensive expense for the year A i HAth 4w B 3 (391,594) (1,037,702)
Total comprehensive expense for the year A1 B 4 i B 57 48 (346,630) (1,018,947)
Total comprehensive expense attributable to:  JE A A B L AR -
Owners of the Company EN/NREE ETRS RSN (344,029) (1,004,197)
Non-controlling interests I 12 J e R 45 (2,601) (14,750)

(346,630) (1,018,947)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e MBIR L £

At 31st December, 2023 A —E " =4+_"H=+—H

2023 2022
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
! T# T T
Non-Current Assets I B E
Fixed assets ] 7 &
— Investment properties —HEYWE 15 6,993,381 7,794,927
— Property, plant and equipment L/ E BN & ] 16 357,656 378,119
Goodwill R 18 33,288 33,288
Interests in associates TAE 4 N T 2 HE R 19 7,003 9,222
Interest in a joint venture R—REEREZ A 20 170,734 153,036
Club debentures & & 25 515 515
Equity instrument at fair value through N SFAE wH A H A 4 T
other comprehensive income Wt 2 A T H 21 293,949 312,824
Pledged bank deposit TSR AT 4 3K 36 39,130 55,143
Other receivable At 1 Wi R 3K 2,301 -
7,897,957 8,737,074
Current Assets B & R
Properties under development R 17 5,012,781 4,420,814
Properties held for sale HEWE 1,275,663 1,410,039
Trade and other receivables and FEUL & 5 B3k~ HoAth
prepayments JE MR AR S BRI 24(a) 137,113 208,876
Financial assets at fair value through WA EFEA I Z
profit or loss P& 22 49,257 36,724
Inventories HeE 24(b) 3,195 3,369
Bank deposit SRATAE K 24(c) 11,934 12,347
Cash and bank balances 4 MR AT 45 8% 24(c) 3,526,296 3,966,071
10,016,239 10,058,240
Assets classified as held for sale N ERE 23 447,015 -
10,463,254 10,058,240
Current Liabilities i B 1R
Trade and other payables and accruals JEAS 5 5 HR R~ HoAth
MEAHIR K R TR 24(d) 1,065,997 796,136
Lease liability THE & 25 6,401 4,209
Contract liability ER A fE 24(e) - 121,653
Tax liabilities Bl TH £ 8 3,749,466 3,796,411
Borrowings EE 27 193,539 26,939
5,015,403 4,745,348
Liabilities associated with assets classified DR RBTREEEZ
as held for sale AH BE £ & 23 84,183 -
5,099,586 4,745,348
Net Current Assets i B A 5,363,668 5,312,892
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities H8 A s DU B L 13,261,625 14,049,966
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BRI R

At 31st December, 2023 jf — & =4+ _H=+—H

2023 2022
CE = —Ez
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 54 T¥#c T T
Capital and Reserves B A B il e
Share capital %N 26 1,026,073 985,512
Share premium and reserves J& A3 Y A I At A 10,980,487 11,402,835
Equity attributable to owners KAFRERFFA A
of the Company R A HE 4 12,006,560 12,388,347
Non-controlling interests IF 12 1 B SRORE 2 136,611 318,235
Total Equity A8 R 12,143,171 12,706,582
Non-Current Liabilities I i B 115
Other payables At JE A5 B K 24(d) 15,089 15,544
Lease liability fHE A & 25 11,084 —
Borrowing R 27 182,272 215,512
Deferred tax liabilities A% SiE B IH A K 28 910,009 1,112,328
1,118,454 1,343,384

13,261,625 14,049,966

The consolidated financial statements are approved and authorised GAAMBHRENR T WFE=H K
for issue by the Board of Directors on 26th March, 2024 and are H &S o8 45 R L HE G S ME ) 8% > I il B

signed on its behalf by: Y ERAREE
Hsu Feng Albert Tong
. RG]
Chairman Vice-Chairman
B e

| Tomson Group Limited %y B AL [ A PR 7
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

Notes:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

The special reserves of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) arose from the difference between
the aggregate amount of the then share capital and share
premium account of Tomson Investment Limited, the former
holding company of the Group, and the nominal amount of
the Company’s shares issued pursuant to a scheme of

arrangement in 1989.

Capital redemption reserve arose from repurchase of shares.
The amounts represent the nominal amount of the shares

repurchased.

The enterprises expansion reserve is an appropriation from
retained earnings in relation to tax concession granted by the
relevant government authorities. This reserve is only used for
the future development or expansion of that company where

concession is granted.

The statutory surplus reserve (“SSR”) is an appropriation from
retained earnings by subsidiaries of the Company in the
Mainland of the People’s Republic of China (“Mainland
China”). In accordance with the Company Law of the
Mainland China, the Mainland China subsidiaries of the
Company are required to allocate 10% of their profit after tax
to the SSR until such reserve reaches 50% of the registered
capital of that subsidiary. The SSR may be converted to
increase capital subject to certain restrictions set out in the

Company Law of the Mainland China.

Of the retained earnings of HK$9,585,651,000 (2022:
HK$9,410,846,000), retained earnings of HK$18,369,000
(2022: accumulated losses of HK$4,276,000) and
accumulated losses of HK$6,369,000 (2022: HK$4,325,000)
are attributable to a joint venture and associates of the Group

respectively.

(a)

(b)

(0

(d)

(e)

Ay w) B HL R S E] (R T A
B 1) 22 e Ak A4 2 7 4 T S i 22 4
e 2 w5 B BB A PR 7] 2 R A
A B By v 1 MR A RR B 2y W] R
— JUN U ARGE — T Wi kw81 384T
ety  THIE 2 2258 -

A S [ A R T R A o R% 5
< L2 B 1] ) A7 5 T (EL B R o

1> 36 5% J (it A 7 T A B BORT M6 R A
T BB O R AR R R A o bk
i R B RS (8 2 A R AR B AR
BREEEREZA -

BB RN FAEPHEAR
S [ A b T A A ) e o A
A AE PR B T P B4 Y 3KOE o AR PR
B A 2 (S JED > AR J Y R
A b 6 oG 2 ) 2 3 T ok B AR s A 1Y
10% % 2 F Bl > B2 %A
EH M E A AN EMEAD
50% ° V5 E 0k o A T s DLIR
BB AR > M ZE 3R R B R (A
Al ) BT 2 TR 1

PR B s #9,585,651,000% o6 (=
K 4F 1 9,410,846,0004 0C) H
AEE Al EMN— K EERERE
i #118,369,000% 76 (= F = 4 -
25t 5 184,276,000% 0) K B
A 2 516,369,000 0T (&
TR 14,325,000 0T) o

Annual Report 2023 A FEAF R |




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

o BleiEL

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #; %

T A= —HIEFE

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
T # 5t T W IT

OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEW
Profit before taxation I Ao il i A 135,165 126,561
Adjustments for: BPAT JHEE -
Share of results of associates JE A B 25 N ] 2 SE AR 2,044 234
Share of result of a joint venture JEIE—F 5 EAEZ EH (22,645) 15,289
Interest expenses ) B B 52 18,204 14,835
Depreciation of property, plant and Yy ~ g 5s Kos i i 8

equipment 36,900 39,755
Net impairment losses on trade and other  # [0 FE it & &) M 3K K

receivables reversed A B i B 3k 2 T8 (L M 4R T AR (583) (964)
Net loss on write off/disposal of property, — fifi§H, I EW % ~ fE Kk 2

plant and equipment Ji5 48 1 - 19
Loss on fair value changes of investment WEWENTFEHEB R ELEZ

properties &5 18 109,255 75,204
Gain on fair value changes of financial assets %A F-{H 7t A 18 45 < W B & &

at fair value through profit or loss 1B 5 B R E A 2 I AR (430) (388)
Gain on liquidation of an associate HE— KBE N A 2 I 4 - (27)
Interest income F Bl A (72,633) (70,210)
Dividend from equity instrument at 28 TR R A 2 T U 4 2

fair value through other comprehensive A TH 2 BB A

income (18,470) (22,054)
Operating cash flows before movements in % % & < 58 &) {ij 2 82 Bl & i

working capital 186,807 178,254
Decrease in properties held for sale (S L7 S 105,895 70,076
Decrease in trade and other receivables and M B 5 BE 3 ~ . Aith 1A olie BE 3k M2

prepayments AR D 63,617 3,630
(Increase) decrease in financial assets at fair %A F{EFH A B 2 W% & &

value through profit or loss (¥ 3k > (12,103) 60,977
Decrease in inventories e SR 61 67
Increase in trade and other payables and JREAS B2 ) Bk~ L At B A AR R &

accruals TE R 2 58 78,428 186,707
Decrease in contract liability EHAE D (117,588) (104,628)
Increase in properties under development % by 2E (513,479) (86,689)
Cash (used in) from operations RE¥ER (R EAZBE (208,362) 308,394
Income taxes paid SENPIEEY (91,541) (193,547)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM REXRH () EEZ

OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEm# (299,903) 114,847

| Tomson Group Limited 5 B 4 8] 4 BR A 7




For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #; %

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HAEBREmER
EoZ4HEF A= —HIRERE

2023 2022
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
B 5E T# T T Wt
INVESTING ACTIVITIES HE B
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposit & U AR AT SR AT A7 K 14,170 21,896
Purchase of property, plant and equipment [ &4 3 ~ 5 B a% (2,420) (206,647)
Interest received SR &IPS 72,272 69,743
Dividend from equity instrument at i/ [ =i NS = 1 ]
fair value through other comprehensive Wiz AT HZ
income JBE B A 18,470 22,054
Cash inflow from liquidation of BEE RS ANAZ
an associate BERA - 3,702
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEWE - WE K
plant and equipment Z Fi 45 3K IE 318 —
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) BREWHEA () Z
INVESTING ACTIVITIES B&E3 102,810 (89,252)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES il & T B
New borrowing raised B 1 i K 31 167,500 -
Repayment of borrowing 1818 & 2k 31 (26,039) (26,564)
Interest paid EENR PSS 31 (18,204) (14,835)
Cash dividend paid EATBRERE (37,758) (108,406)
Repayment of lease liability fEEAE A A 31 (7,079) (7,536)
Dividend paid to non-controlling 2 AT I 2 JR R R A S
shareholder (3,000) (4,500)
Return of capital to non-controlling 1] JF 3 B B AR 4 i A
shareholder (176,023) -
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING il G B Bl 2
ACTIVITIES B&wE (100,603) (161,841)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND BeRB&%HEEH
CASH EQUIVALENTS T WA (297,696) (136,246)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—H—-HZB&R
AT 1ST JANUARY ReSMEEH 3,966,071 4,445,869
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE A RE RE % 5% B) 3 B
RATE CHANGES (127,335) (343,552)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RT+-HA=+—HzZ
AT 31ST DECEMBER ReEkBeSFMEEA 3,541,040 3,966,071
Analysis of balance of cash and e h#He%HEEH
cash equivalents: EERREZ AT
Cash and bank balances 4 R AT &5 i 3,526,296 3,966,071
Cash and bank balances classified NEEGEZHE R
as held for sale SRAT 45 Bk 23 14,744 -
3,541,040 3,966,071
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 3 SO 05 e A P e

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #(%F — &% =4+ " H =+—H L FE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate

Information of the annual report.

The principal activities of the Group for the year were
property development and investment, hospitality and leisure
business, securities trading, as well as operation of and

investment in media and entertainment business.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HKD?”), which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
period beginning on or after Ist January, 2023 for the

preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

HKEFRS 17 (including the
October 2020 and February 2022
Amendments to HKFRS 17)

Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform-Pillar
Two model Rules

Amendments to HKAS 1 and

HKEFRS Practice Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

| Tomson Group Limited %y B AL [ A PR 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fok £ B 5 A W

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set

out in these consolidated financial statements.

Impact on application of Amendments to Hong
Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) 1
“Presentation of Financial Statements” and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 “Making
Materiality Judgements” (the “Practice
Statement”) Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in
the current year. HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances
of the term “significant accounting policies” with “material
accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with
other information included in an entity’s financial statements,
it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make on

the basis of those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if the
amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy
information relating to material transactions, other events or
conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose
immaterial accounting policy information, such information

must not obscure material accounting policy information.

The Practice Statement is also amended to illustrate how an
entity applies the “four-step materiality process” to accounting
policy disclosures and to judge whether information about an
accounting policy is material to its financial statements.

Guidance and examples are added to the Practice Statement.

Eééﬁi%ﬁﬂ((%‘i%ﬂﬁ%%&*
@E'J>>&A Z nTzl((fm)

BRSOt 3 Ah > A AR B 2
A (i v B 5 ot 2 R S B T
7 S A AR (R A A ] A A A ] 2
5 R UL e R BL e % S Ak B
B ¥R T 2 A R I KR

W& (A o ot Y ) S8 1 9%
[0 85 ¥ 3 2 9] | B K 8 S 5
i oy 1 S0 BB Rk SR 29R [ 4E
OB ([ B e )&
at BOR 9 88 (1557 A) Z 5%

7 B2 B A AR AR B UOE T % S5 B T
Ao (FH G ERD B 19E A LT E
Rt B R BT A R & T &
TE st UK ] — W Z R o 'R
BRSO R A B R 2 K
ftb R — 0F %5 R - AT BLTE
SBE M B BB R 2 B
R R S B R T AR 2 B
o ARERBRERMBEL -

% S B AT AR O B o R 4 B A
Ko AH € G EUR BRI AT RE 2 R A
BH 52 o~ Ho At 2 R SR DL 2 1R T
B EE R o SR > 3z I BT A B K
Lo~ HAFHFSGRILA B 2 &5
B BB AR By 34 B TR o ik B
B EEAEE LR ERE
B ZEEHNABEEERERE
HERL -

BB il IR RSB AT o DL W A
AR 5H [ 04 2 B S P2 7 ) 8 P &
SR B 57 K DL A B e R EOR
{19 SR B 5 Rk SR T S R T
Ko BB A T MG 51 K #E ) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fok £ B85 A W

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Impact on application of Amendments to Hong
Kong Accounting Standard 1 “Presentation of
Financial Statements” and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 “Making Materiality Judgements™
Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Continued)

The application of the amendments had no material impact
on the Group’s financial positions and performance but has
affected the disclosures of the Group’s accounting policies set

out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

Change in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) — Long
Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism
in Hong Kong

The Company is operating in Hong Kong which is obliged to
pay LSP to employees under certain circumstances. Meanwhile,
the Company makes mandatory MPF contributions to the
trustee who administers the assets held in a trust solely for the
retirement benefits of each individual employee. Offsetting of
LSP against an employee’s accrued retirement benefits derived
from employerss MPF contributions was allowed under the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance (Cap.57). In June 2022,
the Hong Kong Government gazetted the Employment and
Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement)
(Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the “Amendment Ordinance”)
which abolishes the use of the accrued benefits derived from
employers’ mandatory MPF contributions to offset severance
payment and LSP (the “Abolition”). The Abolition will
officially take effect on 1st May, 2025 (the “Transition Date”).
In addition, under the Amendment Ordinance, the last
month’s salary immediately preceding the Transition Date
(instead of the date of termination of employment) is used to
calculate the portion of LSP in respect of the employment

period before the Transition Date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Change in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund — Long Service
Payment offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong
(Continued)

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPE-LSP offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong” which provides guidance for the
accounting for the offsetting mechanism and the impact
arising from abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism
in Hong Kong. In light of this, the Group has implemented
the guidance published by the HKICPA in connection with
the LSP obligation retrospectively so as to provide more
reliable and more relevant information about the effects of the

offsetting mechanism and the Abolition.

The Group considered the accrued benefits arising from
employer MPF contributions that have been vested with the
employee and which could be used to offset the employee’s
LSP benefits as a deemed contribution by the employee
towards the LSP. Historically, the Group has been applying
the practical expedient in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19
“Employee Benefits” to account for the deemed employee
contributions as a reduction of the service cost in the period
in which the related service is rendered. A detailed review has
been performed, the Amendment Ordinance does not have
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial

position and performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
and HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or

Joint Venture!
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-Current and related amendments

to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)*

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-Current Liabilities with Covenants?
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements®
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist January, 2024.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist January, 2025.
The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all above amendments to HKFRSs will have no material

impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements in

the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by HKICPA. For the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

The Directors of the Company have, at the time of approving
the consolidated financial statements, a reasonable expectation
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus they
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in

preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair

values, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

B BB R T % IR T
OB A 2 R i U5 i o A R A
o AR AR A MBS IR E o i
ARER A HEENEYBEEMM
FAEH M RE - QA B BB B
HER o WAL AR A B ORISR
It = Bt g o b BRI (TR B
HID 1) B A KO R R Bl B B2 2
0 e IH

AR ) HE A AR BB R SR
o HE TR Y A A T A A B R A
AT LR AR R A AL o L H
BARMFHELEN G LR R
EoRER R R

IR Bl g wEOR Pl A AR A RS
T2 T 4 IR S0 AR TR A o M
BOE W B T e TR AR A
at B ERAN o

JBE S B AS — MR 45 T o R A 2 R
P A AQAE 22 2 (1 7 E

Annual Report 2023 4F FE4F |




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases”,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
“Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of
Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the

asset in its highest and best use.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

J Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
*  Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and
. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one

or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. The results of subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss from the date of the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the

subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in

line with those used by the Group.

All significant inter-group transactions, balances, income and

expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interest entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries

upon liquidation.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and
operations of another entity for which the agreement date is
before 1st January, 2005 represents the excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the relevant acquiree at the

date of acquisition.

From 1st January, 2005 onward, the Group will carry

goodwill at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is presented

separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition.
A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. An impairment loss

for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in

the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

¥

2

L% AY

N

3}

B B 5 3% g o L U
HREGTBRER )

X

[k o

PRI WA S 5 — B MR O O O R
AR R (R A A
THAE—H—HHAD - J5 16 s
AT S R A G R A AR
e B 2% ) 2 n R & B A
- (B HE £ A9 22 B o

AoZFHF A HBELE A%
V5145 T R 2 B AR Bk 25 A AT 2R Bk
s tRAR -

W i85 S 5 T EE AR Y B AR AR A IS
RV B 251 -

NG SR NITREIRN S R e o ]
By i = T A O B E A [
Rt 32 B 2 A B B A B B
ZWMBREELEN - HER AL
b2 e Sl O VA S o R
il o KR A R B BEUR 5% B A RE
3R 308 (L B AT 9 B0 Rl o ol B
B TR WO 7 AR L TR S TR
Fiv 73 e 2 B 4 78 A B 8 R 5% W L
AF JBE 45 R A A AT 8 (E B o i B
A LS 2 T ] SRR D HL R T
(B > S0 36k (0 s 18 8 55 1 AR BB AR AT Ao
OrBCE R AL B MR (E - H
75 B 3% 5% B 7R 4% TH L MR T 2
EE 1) 73 TiE 2 % LA 2 HoA - AR
B E R R E R & S 14
RN - WA EE RS g R E
72 400 [H] 3¢ [m]

T AR B AR R B 4 2R B B

HCHE AL B AL P B R LA
E 2 R SR o

Annual Report 2023 4F FE4F




Notes to the Cons‘olidated Financial Statements
&5 A S R

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Interests in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but

not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities

require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, investments in associates or joint ventures are
carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture, less any identified impairment loss.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint
venture exceeds its interest in that associate or joint venture
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or
joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payment on behalf of that associate or

joint venture.

The associate’s and joint venture’s financial statements used
J

for the application of equity method of accounting are

prepared using uniform accounting policies with the Group

for transactions and events in similar circumstances.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Interests in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in associates or joint ventures may be impaired.
When any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any asset,
including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the

recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the
cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits or losses are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant associate or joint

venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Interests in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate or joint venture and the
retained interest is a financial asset within the scope of
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture
and the fair value of any retained interest, and any proceeds
from disposing of the relevant interests is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate
or joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts for all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that associate or joint venture on the same basis
as would be required if that associate or joint venture had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore,
if a gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate or joint venture would be reclassified
to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity
to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon
disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate or joint

venture.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised
in the consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related

to the Group.

ﬂ | Tomson Group Limited %y B AL [ A PR 7

3.

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

By S 5 0 6 0 L O
W% 0 K 7 st 5 B (0

REEAFRGTEREZ
WE 2% (47%)

HALEEBHE ARG ERER
FHAHERDER > MARS AN E
FZWBRE LA G B
W g BRRG 4R A 18 45 P D o AR
P £ B T R s R B E AR SE R
fEan ez R B e iy — THCH B
By WE L) S50 5% [l T R | i [
W B RIS L % H
B~ F(E AR % IR R AR - T a%
8 T B U R R B 4 oF
{H - B A wl a4 36 2 MR fE
T AT AT £ B8 HE 4 2 28 1 BELAE AT i
BB SR BT IS A HZ 2 g
fEEHEZBHE ARG ERRL
W it B 4R R REA o BB Ak > A SR
1% 5 i E At 4 T i B A A% I
N A B AR TR 2 A S BA
i > REUEHLZHEE A R BA B AR
T R R B B R R BT R
HF o DR - il 3% g 2 8 Rl B
A 3 5 I R H A 2 AT i A R R
W 35 B 1R > & AR AR B R
HBEFEG M ERS  AEEE
T BT B A R W N ] R
A 3 IR i BUR R ol A i
B BERE EREHRIBHE) -

A ) LA A g D
FEMIET > EEE N
B B A 3L 5 B AR 2 48 i R
B O W) B A 3 I B i B AR 4R
V] S B Ry > 7 T o B S R AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fok £ B 5 A W

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or
disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly
probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed

sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of
control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group will
retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after

the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
disposal of an investment, or a portion of an investment, in
an associate or a joint venture, the investment or the portion
of the investment that will be disposed of is classified as held
for sale when the criteria described above are met, and the
Group discontinues the use of the equity method in relation
to the portion that is classified as held for sale from the time

when the investment (or a portion of the investment) is

classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for
sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying

amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 7 B s e W

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the financial instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the

market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in

the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest

on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is not held

for trading.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

*  on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term

profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 7 B s e W

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (Continued)
(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset from the next reporting period. If
the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the

asset is no longer credit-impaired.

(ii) Equity instruments designated as at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”)

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment reserve and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity

investments, and will be transferred to retained earnings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (Continued)

(ii) Equity instruments designated as at fair value through

other comprehensive income (Continued)

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established, unless the dividends clearly represent a

recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

(iii) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or designated as FVTOCI
are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss includes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is

included in the “Net gain on financial assets at FVTPL”.
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Notes to the Cons‘olidated Financial Statements
&5 B S R B

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit losses (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including
trade and other receivables, amount due from an associate,
pledged bank deposit, bank deposit and bank balances) which
are subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect

changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment is done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the

reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade

receivables individually.

For other financial assets, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a

default occurring since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking

information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account

when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread

or the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its

debt obligations;

* an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor; and

. an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Cons‘olidated Financial Statements
&5 A S R

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and

supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in

credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by the
Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when the financial instrument is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default

criterion is more appropriate.

| Tomson Group Limited %y B AL [ A PR 7

By S 5 0 6 0 L O
W% 0 K 7 st 5 B (0

b T H 41)
A & B (4
e B L i 2 25 5 (A7)

Y e T SR e TR N
Ea 30 H o A 4R J 3 i E
5 B R B B YRR DL AR B 3 1
s B IR A G MR 5 B RCH SR
P2 BRI H A UL

7 5 7 ) B 0T £ LB
75 B 3 T R AR - Al
IRy 35 17 BUAE AT A BB > LU fR I
A JA 7 S TE i 0 T 9 LA L o
HR e

B2 IE

LA B A B B B o ik AT
578 A S AR PR A 2 B R BEUR
BB N A K AT fE i HAEARE N (B4R
A2 ) BB AR OR 5 AR 4R B 17
B ZAEATHEA ) o RAS SRR
EBARENEN -

AL Eam T RO @
#WooH - AIE REEAEL > BRIEA
EHAEAGH LA ERB
BB /5 Wi A5 2 B A MBI S5 8 o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes

observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;
(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are

recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Cons‘olidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based on
historical data and forward-looking information. Estimation
of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of default

occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition. For a lease receivable, the cash flows used
for determining the ECL is consistent with the cash flows

used in measuring the lease receivable in accordance with

HKEFRS 16.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated

based on the amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade and other receivables and amount due from
an associate where the corresponding adjustment is recognised

through a loss allowance account.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the

risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is

recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure
at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investment reserve is not reclassified to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, but is transferred to

retained earnings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 7 B s e W

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial

liability and an equity instrument.
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instrument is
recognised and deducted directly in share capital for par value
and in share premium for total amount paid in excess of par
value. The same amount recognised in share capital will be
transferred from share premium to capital redemption reserve.
No gain or loss is recognised in consolidated statement of
profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the

Company’s own equity instruments.
Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and
borrowing) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using

the effective interest method.
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair values.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use or no future economic benefits is expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year in

which the property is derecognised.
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including leasehold land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,

if any.

If a property becomes an investment property because its use
has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of
that item (including the relevant leasehold land classified as
right-of-use assets) at the date of transfer is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the property,
the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to

retained earnings.
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Notes to the Cons‘olidated Financial Statements
&5 A S R

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,

using the straight-line method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year in which the item is

derecognised.
Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the

relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “right-of-use assets” under
property, plant and equipment in the consolidated statement
of financial position except for those that are classified and
accounted for as investment properties under the fair value
model. When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided interest in
the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are

classified as property, plant and equipment.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases
The Group as a lessee

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of premises that have lease terms of 12 months or less
from the commencement dates and do not contain purchase
option. Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as

expense on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components, including contract for acquisition of
ownership interests of a property which includes both
leasehold land and non-lease building components, unless

such allocation cannot be made reliably.

The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liabilities;
. any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date, less any lease incentives received;

. any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group is
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to be condition required by the terms

and conditions of the lease.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
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STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases (Continued) & )

The Group as a lessee (Continued) ANEEAEEFRMAN (42)

Except for those that are classified as investment properties W 5% 55 9 o B 5 B & W 30N 4 AT

and measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets are HEAFENEEI > AL E

measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and Fie B AR W AT o] B 51T 8 K (E

impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of i~ i o= AR TN = = K = R G

lease liabilities. AT B A A o

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over o6 PR RE B e L A 3 R A A F ]

the shorter of their estimated useful lives and the lease terms. FHAF 91 B AE 0 2 M) 2 B AR A
% o

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property, plant and KEBIETWE - BB RKFEMH] (2

equipment”, the same line item within which the FIFHBEE (WEEAR) WA EH)

corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they W 251 R o

were owned.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under O A o] 4R | FH B e iR 3R (GRS Bt

HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to 5 e LD 55998 AR » Wl Rk A

fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional FEFNE o B RERZ N FEMW

lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets. R AN A R AMH B K E > A EFA
i M O TRAS

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises RS HY > AEFELZH R

and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease B A AH B K JE A B e R et AR

payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the BAEE - A ERIE R B -

present value of lease payments, the Group uses the MAHENESHRA G EE > REH

incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if HI & A FHL 5 B 4 BOHA 0% 385 6 1 3R

the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily REH o FH & AT 3 FE e AT O

determinable. The lease payments include fixed payments less AT o] JE Wi LB 4 L o

any lease incentives receivables.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

After the commencement dates of the leases, lease liabilities

are adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
when the lease term has changed, in such case the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the date of
reassessment. The Group presents leases liabilities as a separate

line item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets and the
consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone

price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective

date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant
right-of-use asset. When the modified contract contains a
lease component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the modified contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and

the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee. All other leases

are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the terms of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and such
costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term except for investment properties measured

under fair value model.

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not part
of the original terms and conditions are accounted for as lease
modifications, including lease incentives provided through

forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKEFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional

lease payments from lessees.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new

lease.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Impairment losses on fixed assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its fixed assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the extent

of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amounts of its fixed assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the

asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates

of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Impairment losses on fixed assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the
Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that
group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount
of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero
value. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata
to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Properties held for sale/properties under
development (current asset)

Except for the leasehold land element which is measured at
cost model in accordance with the accounting policies of
right-of-use assets, properties held for sale/properties under
development (current asset) are stated at the lower of cost/
deemed cost and estimated net realisable value. Cost is
determined on a specific identification basis including
allocation of the related development expenditure incurred
and where appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the
sale. Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental
costs directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental
costs which the Group must incur to make the sale. No
depreciation charge is made on the leasehold lands included in
the properties held for sale/properties under development
(current asset). Properties under development which are
intended for sale in the ordinary course of business upon

completion are classified as current assets.

Properties under development are transferred to properties

held for sale upon completion.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready

for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the
related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included in
the general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation
rate on general borrowings. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 7 B s e W

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Borrowing costs (Continued)

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year in which they are

incurred.
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is

transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a goods or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of

distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of

the following criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the

Group performs;

. the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset

that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed

to date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct goods or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is

due) from customer.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value of the goods or services transferred to the customer to
date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract, that best depict the Group’s performance

in transferring control of goods or services.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that
the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had not been

obtained.

The Group recognises sales commissions as an asset if it
expects to recover these costs. The asset so recognised is
subsequently charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss when the Group transfers to the customer of the

relevant goods to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within

one year.
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Notes to the Cons‘olidated Financial Statements
&5 A S R

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity “foreign currencies” are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates

prevailing at that date.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which
they arise except for exchange differences on monetary items
receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore
forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation),
which are recognised initially in other comprehensive income
and reclassified from equity to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the Group’s

interest in associates/a joint venture.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period, and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case,
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of foreign currencies translation reserves
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate). Such
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operations attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in

the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Taxation

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax is not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and interests
in associates and joint ventures, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseceable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable

future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 7 B s e W

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and

liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with the
general principles set out in HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” (i.e.
based on the expected manner as to how the properties will be

recovered).

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation

authority.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised to other comprehensive
income, in which case the current and deferred tax are also

recognised in other comprehensive income.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and held at
call deposits with banks with original maturities of three

months or less.

Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting
short-term cash commitments rather than for investment or

other purposes.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the Directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results

may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.
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Notes to the Cons‘olidated Financial Statements
&5 A S R

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.
Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the Directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded that
the certain Group’s investment properties are held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s
deferred taxation on investment properties, the Directors of
the Company have determined whether the presumption that
the carrying amounts of investment properties measured using
the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is
rebutted and the Group has recognised deferred tax on
changes in fair value of investment properties on the basis that
the deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that will follow
from the manner in which the Group expects at the end of
the reporting period to recover the carrying amount of the
investment properties. Deferred taxation on changes in fair

value of investment properties please refer to Note 28.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumption concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the date of
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT>)

The Group is subject to LAT in the Mainland China.
However, the implementation and settlement of the tax vary
amongst different jurisdictions in various cities in the
Mainland China and certain subsidiaries of the Group have
not finalised its LAT calculation and payments with local tax
authorities in the Mainland China. Accordingly, significant
judgement is required in determining the amount of the LAT
and its related income tax provisions. LAT has been provided
at ranges of progressive rates of the appreciation value, with
certain allowable deductions including land costs, borrowing
costs and the relevant property development expenditures,
which are the key inputs in the calculation of the LAT, the
Group recognised the LAT based on the management’s best
estimates. The final tax outcome could be different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, and these differences
will have impact on the income tax provisions in the periods
in which such tax is finalised with local tax authorities. The
carrying amount of Group’s LAT provision at 31st December,
2023 was HK$3,729,394,000 (2022: HK$3,765,303,000).

Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated statement
of financial position at 31st December, 2023 at their fair
values, details of which are disclosed in Note 15. The fair value
of the investment properties was determined by reference to
valuations conducted on these properties by an independent
firm of qualified professional valuers (the “Valuer”) using
investment approach which is reflective of current market
conditions. Property valuation techniques involve key inputs
including reversionary yield, net rental income derived from
existing tenancies and annual unit market rentals. This
involves making certain assumptions and the use of estimates

in respect of the reversionary yield by the Valuer.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Valuation of investment properties (Continued)

The Group considers these valuations are the best estimates.
Changes to these assumptions may result in changes in the
fair value of the Group’s investment properties and
corresponding adjustments to the changes in fair value
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
The carrying amount of Group’s investment properties
at 31st December, 2023 was HK$6,993,381,000 (2022:
HK$7,794,927,000).

Valuation of unlisted equity instrument

Unlisted equity instrument is measured at fair values being
determined based on valuation techniques that involve
unobservable inputs with reference to the market capitalisation
of listed entities in similar industries with consideration of
marketability discount of 25% and adjustment of idle cash.
Judgements and estimation are required in establishing the
relevant valuation techniques and the relevant inputs thereof.
The Group considers these valuations are the best estimates.
Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could affect
the reported fair values of the instruments. The carrying
amount of Group’s unlisted equity instrument at 31st December,
2023 was HK$293,949,000 (2022: HK$312,824,000).
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

GROSS PROCEEDS FROM
OPERATIONS AND REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregate of revenue under the

following headings:
(i) Property investment

= represents revenue from property management and

rental income
(ii) Property development and trading

= represents gross revenue received and receivable

from sale of properties
(iii) Leisure

= represents the income from golf club operations

and its related services
(iv) Media and entertainment

—  represents the gross revenue received and receivable
from investment in the production of live
entertainment shows, film distribution and related

income

Gross proceeds from operations include the gross proceeds
from sale of and dividend income received and receivable
from financial assets at FVTPL under the business of
securities trading, in addition to the above aggregated

revenue.
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Notes to the Cons‘olidated Financial Statements
&5 A S R

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

5. GROSS PROCEEDS FROM 5. KREWmBAEMEBA @)
OPERATIONS AND REVENUE (Continued)
Revenue and gross proceeds from each type of business consist R ZETS 2 W A B BB R 45 AEER A
of the following: & T 5 & 11 -
2023 2022
TR = =
HK$’000 HK$000
T T T T
Revenue from sale of properties HEWEZ WA 219,606 164,374
Revenue from rendering of services from BBk Rt
golf club operations R 2 e A 51,361 44,994
Revenue from property management fee YEEME Z A 32,011 31,428
Revenue from media and entertainment T R 5 48 2 2 U A
business 2,579 367
Revenue from contracts with customers KAREFEAGHZBA 305,557 241,163
Revenue from lease payments that are fixed BT AT 2 e A 208,253 218,886
Total revenue I A 513,810 460,049
Gross proceeds from sale of and dividend N FEFIAEZG 2
income from financial assets at FVTPL W& E 2 B I i
R By H R Bl A 53,554 73,029
Gross proceeds from operations R W ok A8 7R 567,364 533,078
The Group’s revenue from contracts with customers are REMHKAEFSHZ WA FEER
mainly derived from the Mainland China except for revenue A s ME AR B S Y S
from media and entertainment business which is derived in i 4 SE WA BR AL o
Hong Kong.

| Tomson Group Limited %y B AL [ A PR 7




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fok £ B 5 A W

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

5. GROSS PROCEEDS FROM

OPERATIONS AND REVENUE (Continued)

Performance obligation for contracts with
customers

Revenue from property management fee is recognised over
time as income when the services and facilities are provided.
Other revenue from contracts with customers are recognised
at a point in time when customer obtains control of the
distinct goods and services. For the revenue from sale of
properties, the payment term is less than one year upon

signing the sales and purchase agreement.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

Except for the revenue from property management fee, all
other revenue from contracts with customers are contracted

for periods of one year or less.

Contracts for property management services typically have
more than one year non-cancellable term in which the Group

bills a fixed amount each month according to the terms.

5.
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Notes to the Cons‘olidated Financial Statements
&5 A S R

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. 7GR
A4 B 2 R R R AT R
V4 B T S A AT AN BT 1
YR (DA S 7l 47 3 3) 7 3l
HZERE o BRI EESG) £ (v)
Ab 5 A4 AR 0B (R s A S 95
) S5 858 [ 25 8 40 | R A 2 5
AL TR A TR AR 2

The Group’s operating and reportable segments are based on
information reported to the chief operating decision makers,
the Executive Directors of the Company, for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment. In addition
to those set out in Note 5(i) to (iv), the Group’s operating
segments under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” include

securities trading segment which is dealing in financial assets

at FVTPL. MHEEZBHREENH -
Property
Property  Development Media and Securities
Investment  and Trading Leisure Entertainment Trading Total
ES B Rk
WERE REE  MWEE 0 WEER  RHHE Hit
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T T i i i i
2023 e S
GROSS PROCEEDS FROM BEhasas
OPERATIONS
- SEGMENT REVENUE - R A 240,264 219,606 51,361 2,579 53,554 567,364
RESULTS S
Segment profit (loss) AREH (B8 54,091 44,994 (4132) (276) 2,104 96,781
Other unallocated income EATHERA 117,503
Unallocated expenses AT HER X (81,516)
Finance costs MEER (18,204)
114,564
Share of results of associates BB EA 25 (2,044)
Share of result of a joint venture Eli-%albEs¥5 2,645
Profit before taxation W 8 i 1 135,165
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemeqts
&5 I R Bk

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. THER @)
Property
Property  Development Media and Securities
Investment ~ and Trading Leisure  Entertainment Trading Total
WEER KR

VESS heE WREE  REEE ERRE it
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000
THIL T T T T T

2022 B S
GROSS PROCEEDS FROM BEhasas

OPERATIONS

- SEGMENT REVENUE L LI 250,314 164,374 44,994 367 73,029 533,078
RESULTS |
Segment profit (loss) AR (BE) 947780 4,048 (8923) (650) 7,984 97,039
Other unallocated income EATHERA 136,108
Unallocated expenses AT HER X (76,428)
Finance costs MEER (14,835)

142,084

Share of results of associates 3l - ONGPE S (234)
Share of result of  joint venture Bl-RAELE £ (15,289)
Profit before taxation BB ARl 126,561
Except for the presentation of segment revenue which is different BR o JEUR A B 4% 6 18 45 % P 1
from the reported revenue in the consolidated statement of profit WAz 23 XORFE A > 2% 58 5 41
or loss, the accounting policies of the operating segments are the Z & R B B 3 A A 4R
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3. For GEFBURAME o £ BEFIRAN
details of revenue from each type of business and reconciliation of RE N Mo Bl A B SR I A
segment revenue to the Group’s revenue of HK$513,810,000 513,810,000% oo (— & — —
(2022: HK$460,049,000), please refer to Note 5. 460,049,000 J0) 2 ¥ IR 5F 15 # 7R

W3S

Annual Report 2023 4F FE4F |




Notes to the Cons‘olidated Financial Statements
&5 A S R

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. FEER )

Segment profit (loss) represents the results by each segment o8 (E18) 18 & BN A
without allocation of central administration costs, directors’ AR A wEA T RAT B ~ E
salaries, share of results of associates and a joint venture, other B~ BEAREBE S AN F R —REER ¥
non-recurring income and expenses and finance costs. This is Z R HA I SH Ml A B B X
the measure reported to the Executive Directors for the DR RE R - I m it EH 2
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment. OB R B K E ST R R o
Segment assets and liabilities are not presented as the chief FEEBFERIKEFREAER 555
operating decision makers review the consolidated financial WA AR UL DA SAS o K B R
position of the Group as a whole to assess their performance. KB > M HES T HEE KA
The management focuses more on the results of the Group. - BB AETEALEE Y EH -
Note: The land use right of the leisure operating segment will BfaE - 3 TR o S £ b i
expire on 30th April, 2024. The Group is communicating BEN A —F U4 H =+
with relevant local government authorities about the H 2 A o 7 45 13 1F B AH B Hh
renewal of the land use right and the operation of the 77 BURE FB Pk - A A
golf course after expiration of the land use right. The R K A T RE B 4%
Group will continue to operate the golf course until R ORER S S
the arrangement of the relevant local government T8 o 7S 48 1B 6 A A A
authorities is informed. A RIKY AR R

77 BUR 69 22 PE 2 1k o

Other Information H At & Bl
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss: R HE R 2 SR A
Property
Property  Development Mediaand  Securities
Investment ~ and Trading Leisure Entertainment Trading  Unallocated Total
BT 3 )

WREE  RME O WERE  BRRE  EENE ATAE it
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HES000  HKS000  HKS'000
Tin  Ti#x  TEx  T#xn TEx Ti#n T

2023 ZEIEE

Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #7% % Rakfiir

equipment 5,302 2,281 19,649 - - 9,668 36,900
Impairment losses on trade and BRI A R R A

other receivables reversed Rl 3 2 BB - - - 583 - - 583
Loss on fair value changes of REWEATERG

investment properties EEZER 109,255 - - - - - 109,255
Gain on far value changes of TATHEAAREZ

financial assets at FVTPL B EEATHES R

B2 - - - - 40 - 40
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemeqts
&5 B S e B

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. THEPR »)
Property
Property  Development Media and Securities
Investment ~ and Trading Leisure  Entertainment Trading ~ Unallocated Toal
L KRR

ERE  REE WREE REER O BRRE FTAE &3
HKSO0  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
Tn  féx  FEx  FEx  FEx  FEx FiEx

200 “EICE

Depreciation of property, plancand  #7% % Kok fiir

equipment 5,433 5,384 18,958 = - 9,980 39,75
Impairment losses on trade and B B 7 MRS B f

other receivables reversed TR 52 B R 382 - - 582 = - 964
Loss on fair value changes of REMENTHEG K

investment properties EEZER 75,204 - - = = = 75,204
Gain on far value changes of HAFEF ARG Z

financial assets at FVTPL BHAEATHES N

Bzl - - - - 388 - 388

Information about major customers FRTFEEPZEH
For the year ended 31st December, 2023, revenue from two BE__E - =#+_"_H=+—H1k
single customers in property development and trading R ) EEE R R s B Pk
segment amounted to HK$145,566,000 and HK$69,923,000 B E—FF 2 ARA &
which contributed to approximately 28.33% and 13.61% 145,566,000 7C £ 69,923,000 7T
respectively of the Group’s total revenue. gr FlAG A 5 B 2 A8l A B R &)

28.33% /% 13.61% -

For the year ended 31st December, 2022, revenue from one gE_LX "+ -_H=1+—HIE
single customer in property development and trading segment R TR SE TR R TS o B Pk
amounted to HK$147,523,000 which contributed to H— ¥ —&FF2ZWKRAZS
approximately 32.07%, of the Group’s total revenue. 147,523,000%5 7C > {1 A< 48 |3 2 # i

AE K #132.07% ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 7 B s e W

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, Macau

and Mainland China.

The Group’s revenue from external customers based on the
location of the operations and information about its
non-current assets (excluding amount due from an associate
and a joint venture, club debentures, other receivable, pledged
bank deposit and equity instrument at FVTOCI) by

geographical location of the assets are detailed below:

Revenue from

external customers

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

6. rMER )

Hb [ 53 JE & B

A B2 B 2 SEHS (SR B A L A
LY o

e KL B 31 s AS 4R B B BANR
F 2 WA Bt B B S R A
B HC R B A OF 6L 45 18
F—REERERK > GgIfESF -
At R A R A BRAT A R e 4%
PNFEFEA A 4 T g 2 A T
H) gk Ry

Non-current assets

HHHEIIEFZRBRA Ik o B B
2023 2022 2023 2022
R O=EE E ZERCO=EE E
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Tt T T T TC
Hong Kong 7 s 2,579 367 252,502 241,671
Macau 1 FY - = 3 =
The Mainland China FR A 511,231 459,682 7,299,543 8,116,907
513,810 460,049 7,552,048 8,358,578

Analysis of the Group’s revenue by each type of business is set

out in Note 5.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemen‘t‘s
&5 B S e B

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

OTHER INCOME 7. HABWA
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T W T
Other income included: HA g A 145 -
Interest income FIE A 72,633 70,210
Dividend from unlisted equity instrument at 208 P E A H A
FVTOCI 2milas 2k Bl
A T HZ R
WA 18,470 22,054
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. M W 4k K & 4R
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$000
Tt T
Impairment losses on trade and other receivables 4 [F] JE U B B B Rk M
reversed At B A B K 2 TR (B
18 583 964
Net loss on write off/disposal of property, plant (&4, E ¥ % - F 5
and equipment P st 2 s 18 1 - (19)
Net exchange loss [EE 50, s 48 1 A1 (5,907) (28,577)
Gain on liquidation of an associate BERE—ZRXEEAAZ
g - 27
(5,324) (27,605)
FINANCE COSTS 9. ¥ #H
2023 2022
TR = TR TR
HK$’000 HK$000
Tt AP
Interest on borrowings RS 17,845 14,583
Interest on lease liability & A EFLE 359 252
18,204 14,835
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10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Notes to the Cons‘olidated Financial Statements
&5 B S R B

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

10. B Bt Hi & A

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$000
Tt T
Profit before taxation has been arrived at I o A 368 A1) 2 S0 BR
after charging:
Staff costs B LA 58,760 62,279
Retirement benefits scheme contributions B ARAE A w3 4t 3K 5,339 5,332
Total staff costs B T A
(including Directors’ emoluments) (05 = H &) 64,099 67,611
Auditor’s remuneration 7% B R P 4 3,268 3,204
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ 3 ~ W5 K 5 M 8 36,900 39,755
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses PR R AR E A 107,988 99,221
and after crediting: I EFFA
Gross rental income from investment properties % & ¥ £ FH 4 It A 4448 208,253 218,886
Less: direct operating expenses from investment ¥ : 4F N & A4 H 4 kA
properties that generated rental income ZHREYEL
during the year HEEEE T (19,361) (17,569)
Net rental income from investment properties &Y M WA T 188,892 201,317
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemeqts
&5 B S e B

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 11. % 3 K@ B &
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to Directors of the Company ELAT SR AT T AR B S 2 4 0
as follows: T
Salaries,  Employer’s
allowances contribution
and other to pension Total
benefits scheme emoluments
Fees (Note)

e Bk Bz

HAb A Bkt B
Name of Director EFRA FUE (M) fit 3k T 4 48
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T# 5t T# 7t T#t

2023 “EROZE
Executive Directors WiTEH
Madam Hsu Feng fr Mat
(Managing Director) (S - 14,232 - 14,232
Mr Albert Tong RGP i - 3,722 18 3,740
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles BTEEE - 8,294 18 8,312
Independent Non-Executive Directors BykpfiEs
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar sI6F A 181 - - 181
Mr Lee Chan Fai R 181 - - 181
Mr Ng Chi Him % AL 181 - - 181
Mr Sean S ] Wang (retired) o8l %k (1) 78 - - 78
621 26,248 36 26,905
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Notes to the Cons‘olidated Financial Statements
&5 A S R

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 11. &= 5 K8 B Ml & )
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Salaries,  Employer’s
allowances  contribution
and other to pension Total
benefits scheme  emoluments
Fees (Note)

e Bk EEz

oA 45 A L
Name of Director HEMAY il (Hf7t) it 3% T 4 48 %
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T T T T T

2022 B St
Executive Directors HirES
Madam Hsu Feng fr Mt
(Managing Director) (EFELH) - 14,807 - 14,807
Mr Albert Tong RAEbiR - 3,695 18 3,713
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles LT EELE - 8,105 18 8,123

Independent Non-Executive Directors BykpfiEs

Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar sRI6F A 177 - - 177
Mr Lee Chan Fai FRERE 177 - - 177
Mr Sean S ] Wang B i 177 - - 177
531 26,607 36 27,174
Note: Other benefits include the market rentals of directors’ quarters HifaE o H AR A AR SRRt TR G
occupied by Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong Chi Kar HE Ko F 3R B A AL 0 B AL BT Y
Charles as their residence. A -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fok £ B 5 A W

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

No Director waived any emoluments for both years.

There has been no inducement for Directors to join the

Group or compensation for the loss of office for both years.

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Group. The Independent Non-Executive
Directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services as

Directors of the Company.

Senior management only comprises the Executive Directors
listed above, so no separate disclosure for remuneration of

senior management is presented.

During the year, the five highest paid individuals of the
Group included three (2022: three) Executive Directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. Of
the emoluments of the remaining two highest paid
individuals, one fell within the band from HK$1,500,001 to
HK$2,000,000 and the other one (2022: two) fell within the
band from HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000 are as follows:

11. =5 KBB4 )

i TS 8] 4 7 A 5 = i AT AT

é:Zo

A T A 4F B A AR 4 3 5 R A A 4R
5] 22 38 AT {2 JBh o 3B 2 2 o Sk A
P2 AEAT fo] 48 £ -

bR AT P e R 1S A B
B A 4R o s O 4R R ) B T S
fit o RS AT E S M R
AR S5 M AL A 20 ] #E g P 4R I IR
B SCAF o

AR BN B AR S 2 B
Frass > S 08 o B 5 R AR B
N B ZHH -

FN AEFEALESHFMALE
W= (OB =) U7 E
HHEZMEC R X R
B o % N W 4 fm BN Lo
~%Zﬁﬂl4ﬁ\ﬁ‘ﬁﬂ1,soo,001ﬂ§m§
2,000,000% JC #i [# > 5 — & (
TR W) Z & %1000000
s JC ££1,500,000%5 T #i F > 7% a0
T

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000

T T T T

Salaries, allowances and other benefits B4 > HAh K H At AE 2,633 2,557
Retirement benefits scheme contributions B ARG A FHE L 36 36
2,669 2,593
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Notes to the Cons‘olidated Financial Statements
&5 A S R

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

12. TAXATION 12. B IH
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T T4 70
The charge (credit) comprises: S (A BLHE -
Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax FRER A AR 2 T A5 B
(“EIT”) 55,862 55,745
Mainland China LAT o IR A L - b 3 (B 111,150 75,495
Dividend withholding tax skl ¢l 1,112 5,222
Underprovision in prior years AT AR N R
— Mainland China EIT — P A b A S
B 38 6,516 5,781
174,640 142,243
Deferred tax credit (Note 28) A S Bl TEA A (B 5E28) (84,439) (34,437)
Total tax charges for the year 4F B2 B IH B S A 90,201 107,806
The Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2022: 7 s A 15 Bl BT HE A 2 B R £516.5%
16.5%). No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been (T 7 4 1 16.5%) o i R
made since the assessable profit is wholly absorbed by tax AF B R SRR v A B R AT B A S 1R A
losses brought forward for both years. THD HIC 8 > ] 0k 7 A 25 7 s A5 B4R
A o
The income tax rate of the subsidiaries in the Mainland China TE H B A 2 B 2 D B A5 R B
is 25% (2022: 25%). F525% (ZF T4 1 25%) o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #; %

12. TAXATION (Continued)

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemeqts
&5 I R Bk
E+_H=1+—HILFEE

Z—=

T

12. BéJH (4

A B 3 BRLAR  9R i AR 2 BR B A i

taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as Mz BWERMAE -
follows:
2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$ 000
T# T4 7T
Profit before taxation (excluding share of W Bt 11 Y A1) (O 6L 45
results of associates and a joint venture) JRE Ak B 4 N )
—REBRREZES) 114,564 142,084
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 25% i 1 iy A5 BB % 25%
(2022: 25%) (Note) (ZF 7 1 25%)
wt 3 BLAE (M 7t) 28,641 35,521
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RMERBIHE R Z
BLHs w2 1,558 1,246
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 155 7 JE SR es A IRE
in determining taxable profit AAESIBLB S22
BLHs R 2 19,245 35,259
Tax effect of income that is not assessable in 155 7 JE SR es A IRE
determining taxable profit THEMERBRA Z
L5 5 2B (8,177) (10,540)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not ) e Hi R iR 2
recognised i JE i 12 (6,924) (1,171)
Underprovision of income taxes in prior years — #& {£ 4% & iF 15 Bl
A L2 6,516 5,781
Effect on Mainland China LAT R A b L o B (E AL 2
b2 48,230 36,488
Dividend withholding tax % 50 i 1,112 5,222
Tax charges for the year 4 J B T B 3 90,201 107,806

Details of deferred taxation are set out in Note 28.

A T 2 15 O A 528 o

Note: Vi

TS BB A AR AR I RS TR
i A I 2 T AR BB o

The domestic income tax rate is the income tax rate of the jurisdiction where

the major operations of the Group are based.
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Notes to the Cons‘olidated Financial Statements
&5 A S R

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

13.

14.

DIVIDEND

In 2023, a dividend of approximately HK$167,537,000
(2022: HK$108,406,000) in aggregate was paid to
shareholders in respect of the interim dividend for the year
ended 31st December, 2022 (2022: interim dividend for the
year ended 31st December, 2021). Of the dividend paid
during 2023, approximately HK$129,779,000 were settled in
fully paid shares under the Company’s scrip dividend scheme
approved by the Board on 30th March, 2023.

Subsequent to the end of reporting period, the Directors have
declared payment of an interim dividend of 10 HK cents per

13.

Jit &

R F D FRNCRMEE ZF
VYAt —HIEFEEZS
WRE (CF 4 B RMEE
R A=t —HIEFEE
Z R E) A3 4167,537,000%
JC (3 T TU4F 1 108,406,00085 9T)
TR - RBEEFRH _-F =

=H=THH#HEARRN R Z AR
FHE O AR EHACTRE T
129,779,000%5 7T LA 2 4502 & 43 75 X
XAt e

REREARE > EFEREE -F
=Y A=t —HIEFEEZF

share (2022: 8.50 HK cents per share) amounting to ﬁﬁ BB A oAl (—F —
approximately HK$205,215,000 (2022: HK$167,537,000) g ks.s0u i) - & %‘E 5
for the year ended 31st December, 2023. 205,215,000 o (= F — — 4 ¢
167,537,000% 7C) ©
EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. 7 i £ A
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to A A HE R AR A N AL B IR AR
the owners of the Company is based on the following data: FITIHBE AT ERLFHA ¢
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$°000
T# o T T
Earnings B
Profit for the year attributable to owners of N UG B AR
the Company for the purposes of basic B 2 A w A
earnings per share SREPN X 42,684 17,168
Number of shares Ji& 4 81 H
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AR REAREGRZ
for the purpose of basic earnings per share o788 % 0 RE ST 24 2,015,253,318 1,971,025,125

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there was no

potential ordinary share in issue during both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15. - EW¥E

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T T4 70
AT FAIR VALUE % P

At 1st January w—H—H 7,794,927 8,598,847

Loss on fair value changes NV HBBEREA 2
i 18 (109,255) (75,204)
Reclassified as held for sale (Note 23) TR ATRE (M5E23) (431,811) -
Exchange adjustments i 5, 3] (260,480) (728,716)
At 31st December wt-ZH=+—H 6,993,381 7,794,927

The Group’s investment properties are held outside Hong

Kong and are held under operating leases.
The fair value hierarchy of investment properties is Level 3.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31st
December, 2023 has been arrived at on the basis of a
valuation as at that date carried out by the Valuer not
connected with the Group. The valuation was arrived by
capitalising the net rental income derived from existing
tenancies with due allowance for reversionary income
potential of the properties on a recurring basis. This involves
making certain assumptions and the use of estimates in respect
of the reversionary yield by the Valuer. As a result of the
valuation, an unrealised loss on property valuation of
approximately HK$109,255,000 (2022: HK$75,204,000) was
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
year ended 31st December, 2023.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and

best use of the properties is their current use.

The Group’s property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for

as investment properties.

A4 B BE W) SR W A
o WIHEHERA -

BEY RN FEER AT = -

RN SIS = AE B =K
P

AEBZEREWER _F ==
+ A=t HZ AP E R EA
£ [ AR e [ R 1Y Ak (EL BT HEE AT 95 H
A B 2 8 AR o A ()7 58 8 4 58
WHREEARERBEAREZH
S AFREAE W M EE X ) 18
WA BIYE S o B0 K Ak A1
TR 5% K fd R A B A B AR R 2 A
Ao RIEAMEZ &R > WEMEZ
7 5 B 5 18 £9109,255,0009 JC (-
E T AF 1 75,204,000% 76) B R
FoRCEHFTA=Z1T—HIEE
e BEE RPN -

fEEH Y2 A TER - WEZRE
B s ARG 2 H AT A e

AL AEHERA - U
AR EANE AR LR )Y
N EBEEHE S 30 B FAE
FBUEY S o
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #% 2 — =

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E+H=1+—HIL4EE

15. & WE @)

RN R E BB AT E

determination of the fair values of the investment properties: Z AL E AT -
Fair value Reversionary yield
AR 15 5 R
Description 2023 2022 Valuation techniques 2023 2022
e W CROEE ZFCF AN RO ZFCF
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt T 7T
Commercial properties Investment approach
- not developed by the Group 308,126 326,636 2.75% 2.75%
[Eiik7/ES 58-I
— 3 JF i A AR R
Commercial properties Investment approach
— developed by the Group 1,249,646 1,322,932 7.25%-8.50%  7.25%-8.50%
ik 7/ES BEH A
— iy A £ A 5

Residential properties 5,435,609 5,623,527 Investment approach 0.75% 0.75%

fFEY%E #E 7K

Industrial properties - 521,832 Investment approach N/A 6.75%

T¥YE BE K AR

6,993,381 7,794,927

Notes: et -

(i) The key inputs of investment approach are: (a) reversionary yield; (b) (1) a2 FEMAEIES  QER
net rental income derived from existing tenancies; and (c) annual unit Yot % s bR BBAMEZHES KA
market rental. TRAH 5 B (o) AT 5 4R B 4 o

(if)  Reversionary yield takes into account annual unit market rental and () B A R O R BT B 2 A
unit market value of the comparable properties and adjustment factors T 355 4F AR < B B TS5 B (E - AR
for location and other individual factors such as road frontage, size of JIT 7 Hh 1D A R 2R e LAt AR R R 2
property and facilities. [ 157 2 B~ W) SR/ BB LT o

(iii)  The slight increase in the reversionary yield would result in a (iii) 18 B i A R 0 M A b TS R SO T{E
significant decrease in fair value, and vice versa. KiETE > R ZIRR -

(iv)  The increase in annual unit market rental would result in an increase (iv) BTG FEEME LT ESA TE

in fair value, and vice versa.

| Tomson Group Limited %y B AL [ A PR 7
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #5222 — =

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

o 5 S 25 R B
it H =t HIREE

16. Y13 ~ W M wk i

Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold equipment
land and Plant and and motor
buildings equipment vehicles Total
R %8
HE L W3 B
Rt Wi B ik A R B ¥
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T# 1 T# 1 T
At cost ﬁﬁﬂi
At 1st January, 2022 R-Z-—%#—A—H 735,139 26,641 138,819 900,599
Additions ﬁﬁ 202,747 - 3,900 206,647
Written off ik = = (195) (199)
Exchange adjustments HE 1 4 % (63,604) (2,258) (10,576) (76,438)
At 31st December, 2022 e S Sy
=t+—H 874,282 24,383 131,948 1,030,613
Additions NE 20,355 111 2,309 22,775
Disposals & - - (1,953) (1,953)
Written off g8 (22,389) - (125) (22,514)
Reclassified as held for sale (Note 23) 7M1 A 75 8 (i E23) - - (1,997) (1,997)
Exchange adjustments [ o, 77 % (22,956) (814) (3,836) (27,6006)
At 31st December, 2023 REZZ=F+ A
=t—H 849,292 23,680 126,346 999,318
Accumulated depreciation 2ot R
and impairment
At Ist January, 2022 R-F__HE—f—H 539,403 23,542 107,922 670,867
Provided for the year LA 31,430 151 8,174 39,755
Eliminated on written off B 2 £ - - (176) (176)
Exchange adjustments & i % (47,801) (1,995) (8,156) (57,952)
At 31st December, 2022 REF-FEF+ A
=t—H 523,032 21,698 107,764 652,494
Provided for the year B B 31,920 102 4,878 36,900
Eliminated on disposals ERH - - (1,635) (1,635)
Eliminated on written off Jil 4 5 4 8 (22,389) - (125) (22,514)
Reclassified as held for sale (Note 23) M B 5 (Fif223) - - (1,769) (1,769)
Exchange adjustments HE i o (18,026) (725) (3,063) (21,814)
At 31st December, 2023 R-F_=H+ZA
=t—H 514,537 21,075 106,050 641,662
Carrying values I T £
At 31st December, 2023 A S ey
=+—H 334,755 2,605 20,296 357,656
At 31st December, 2022 REFZZF+ZA
=t+—H 351,250 2,685 24,184 378,119
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Notes to the Cons‘olidated Financial Statements
&5 A S R

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  16. %3 ~ Wi 55 S ikl o)

(Continued)
The Group’s leasechold land is situated in Hong Kong and AR H 2 A0 A R A P
Mainland China. A Hb, o
Depreciation of the above property, plant and equipment is bl 3~ R BS Be k  TG H HA R
provided to their cost less residual values over their estimated Al AR > DL A AR AE ) SOER
useful lives by equal annual instalments at the following rates HALF R E S B s iR 8 - AE R
per annum: T ¢
Leasehold land and 2% to 4% or over the terms of THE T H 2% E4%5 A
buildings the relevant leases, whichever is T HEZHEM
the shorter (DL 9 o 5 i)
Plant and equipment 9% to 13% T 75 B i A 9% % 13%
Furniture, fixtures and 18% to 40% BAH - B 18%F40%
equipment and G PSER ]
motor vehicles
The Group as lessee A B AR 25 AR AL
Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant HHEEE GEAME - BB R
and equipment) X i)
Leasehold Leasehold
lands buildings Total
ME L e k]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T # T T # T Tt
As at 31st December, 2023 W =
+=-A=+—H
Carrying amount W T 3,010 17,528 20,538
As at 31st December, 2022 A —
+—-HA=+—H
Carrying amount AR THI (E 5,379 4,353 9,732
For the year ended e —
31st December, 2023 +—-H=+—H
1E 4 B
Depreciation charge 185 B X 2,130 7,180 9,310
For the year ended wE _F
31st December, 2022 +—-H=+—H
1k B
Depreciation charge 31 85 B X 5,638 7,463 13,101
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant
and equipment) (Continued)

fok £ B 5 A W

16. V3£ ~ W5 Bk i an)

A 4R A1 B AR AL (4)

16 BE & & (Gt AW 36 > B &

Total cash outflow for leases HEZHE]

During the year, the Group entered into new lease agreement
for its operation with three years lease terms. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis with different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which

the contract is enforceable.

In addition, lease liability of HK$17,485,000 (2022:
HK$4,209,000) were recognised with related right-of-use
assets of HK$17,528,000 (2022: HK$4,353,000) as at 31st
December, 2023. The lease agreements did not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets
that were held by the lessors. Leased assets may not be used as

security for borrowing purposes.
y g

e i) (4
2023 2022
SRS SF
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#x TH#T
0% 7,438 7,788

JRAS AR BE 5 A% 4R [ L R T SR
HESK B A =4 - HERKXK
T i 25 AN [R) A 3R B A A o3 B B
T o A R S AEL A % A A T SR
Rk > AEEM &M E
7l /i 7 A R AT A R 2 I

o > R F =T H=1—H >
. it w8 B F HE 517,528,000
IO (& 4 1 4,353,000% 70) AH
B 2 & # 1E17,485,000% o0 (&
TUTUAE 14,209,000 9T) o FHLE W
i I Bl o0 AT AT 256 > Mk S AR N BT
B 2 B G 2 1P 2R PR A o
B G EANBIERERER -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

17. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 17. 3% @3
2023 2022
SR OTAE B

HKS$’000 HK$ 000
Tt Tt
At 1st January, at cost r—H—H > A 4,420,814 4,734,530
Additions wE 739,695 87,515
Exchange adjustments e 5, 3 & (147,728) (401,231)

At 31st December, at cost wt+—_H=+—H -
7 B A 5,012,781 4,420,814

Properties under development under current assets of
approximately HK$588,620,000 (2022: Nil) are expected to
be completed within twelve months from the end of reporting

MEBEERNMNBRYY EL
588,620,000% JC (& — 4 @ IE)
TSR SRR M A RN

period. VERL o
18. GOODWILL 18. &
HK$°000
T # 0
Cost and carrying value FRAS Be Vi 1 AE
At 1st January, 2022, 31st December, 2022 and JAZ_F -4 —H—H »
31st December, 2023 SE Y A=+ —HR
—ER =+ -A=+—H 33,288

Goodwill is allocated to the cash-generating unit of a wholly
owned subsidiary which is engaged in property development
and trading activities.

During the years ended 31st December, 2023 and 2022, the
management of the Group determined that there was no
impairment of the cash-generating unit containing goodwill.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit was
measured based on fair value less costs to disposal calculation
by reference to observable market price using market
comparable approach for similar properties, adjusted for
location and other individual factors such as road frontage
and size. It was determined by the management’s past
experience, based on the estimated gross profit from selling of
properties, taking into the consideration prevailing market
price.

| Tomson Group Limited %y B AL [ A PR 7
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #; %

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o 5 S 25 R B
e Y S e 2

19. i Wi 5 o W) 2 AR

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$ 000
T T T
Cost of unlisted investments in associates R EHBE AR Z
& A 2,706 2,706
Share of post-acquisition losses, net of JEAS Ik 1% s 18 -
dividend received 2R B ik ik B (6,369) (4,325)
Exchange difference arising from translation BB N TR A 2
of associates REE 58, 7 %H 1,165 1,340
(2,498) (279)
Amount due from an associate e L YN 9,501 9,501
7,003 9,222

The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest free

and have no fixed repayment terms.

In the opinion of the Directors, the amount due from an
associate will not be repayable within twelve months from the

end of the reporting period and accordingly, the amounts

— ZWh N R KR TS AR - R
Iz S5 [F) 5 9 3 o

HHRBL —XBEEARRZAE
s AR M A mEE -
R > 5%k B E 5 /EIE ) & E o

have been classified as non-current assets.

Details of principal associates at 31st December, 2023 are

included in Note 40.

TR

AAR_FE_=%+"A

= H ZRE S O B 40 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s

associates that are not individually material is set out below.

The summarised financial information below represents

amounts shown in the associates’ financial statements

prepared in accordance with HKFRS:s.

The associates are accounted for using the equity method in

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

19. Wi 2 2 v 2 HE SR o)

A7 B A 2R B A JEB AR ] A g
N F A RS R BB AR o LA
A SRR 1 S R AR BB
i v B 5 i o 4 ) A 8 1 B 5

KRITRE®E -

A% 5 T I

UL £

these consolidated financial statements. EARR -
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$°000
T # o T T
Total assets W R E 18,847 27,260
Total liabilities M R (32,402) (32,451)
Net liabilities L (13,555) (5,191)
Group’s share of associates’ net liabilities NG E RN E - /NS
Z AR (2,498) (279)
Revenue A 1,324 2,778
Loss for the year FE (7,705) (929)
Other comprehensive expense S Ath, 4 T BH 32 (658) (2,584)
Group’s share of associates’ loss for the year A £E B A R A W
NEIZER (2,044) (234)
Group’s share of associates’ other comprehensive 7% £E [H] 4 B & {i B
expense for the year s T 22 A 4 T B S (175) (804)
Group’s share of associates’ total comprehensive A< 48 [ 4F Ji i 4k B 2%
expense for the year 2N R) 2 A2 TH BH S HE (2,219) (1,038)
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

20. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 20 R —HKEEREZ R

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$°000
T # 0 T T
Cost of unlisted investments in a joint venture A — XK I L i HERZE
Z B WA 130,185 130,185
Share of post-acquisition profits (losses), JFEE A 05 B 4% i )
net of dividend received (E18) > Tk
SR 9 =) 18,369 (4,276)
Exchange difference arising from translation WMHE—REENER
of a joint venture B 2T AR 21,667 26,614
170,221 152,523
Amount due from a joint venture —REBEMERK 513 513
170,734 153,036
The amount due from a joint venture is unsecured, interest — KB BB ER S IR - A8
free and has no fixed repayment terms. A [ 7 22 SO o
In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the amount AAFERRE > —KEERLERX
due from a joint venture will not be repayable within twelve POE A g RS ARES + @A
months of the end of the reporting period and accordingly, INEMER > B SZREC 8 5
the amount has been classified as non-current assets. FEREERE -
Details of a joint venture at 31st December, 2023 are ATE - ZHEF A=t —HW—
included in Note 40. XA AR FETE G WO M EE40 o
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s AR LG E AR BB & R
joint venture is set out below. The summarised financial BHEGAT o LN B E R E TS
information below represents amounts shown in the joint B A A E MR R G W B R 15 e
venture’s financial statements prepared in accordance with BIF) 4 34 0% B 55 3R T s B o
HKEFRS:s.
The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in AREAMBEMERMEGESEUESR
these consolidated financial statements. HENER o
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Notes to the Cons‘olidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

20. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 20 R —HKEEREZ R
(Continued) ()
Shanghai Jinjiang Tomson Hotel Co., Ltd. MG R KRBERRAH
2023 2022
SR =g DR
HK$’000 HK$000
T # T T
Current assets B & 169,071 277,389
Non-current assets FEME & E 229,462 65,268
Current liabilities T A R 58,092 37,612
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the EatEE RAEEFHEE Y& IE
following:
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$000
Tt T
Cash and cash equivalents BHae kB e%MEER 78,255 259,103
Current financial liabilities (excluding U B 5 AR
trade and other payable and accruals) (NEIEEASE 5
MR~ HoAh A R 3K
KERER) 4,078 610
Revenue A 165,558 53,039
Profit (loss) for the year R A (1) 45,290 (30,578)
Other comprehensive expense for the year AF B H A 4 T B <2 (9,894) (29,645)
Total comprehensive income (expense) A B A IR R (B SZ)
for the year R 35,396 (60,223)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemeqts
&5 B S e B

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

20. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 20 R —HKEEREZ R

(Continued) (#)

Shanghai Jinjiang Tomson Hotel Co., Ltd. b I B R )E A PR 2w
(Continued) (#)

EA A B A (1R LS T 5145 0H

The above profit (loss) for the year includes the following:

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$000

T # T T

Depreciation Pree 516 1,126
Interest income FLE A 7,177 8,897

3 BB AR R LS A T S R
RN Z & &4 2 M4 1Y IR T

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information

to the carrying amount of the interest in the joint venture

recognised in the consolidated financial statements: {82 R -
2023 2022
TEROEE CFE A
HK$°000 HK$’000
T # T Tt
Net assets FEE 340,441 305,045
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest ALEE A
1 2i L 191 50% 50%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest A 2 [ HE 2 2 MR T (E 170,221 152,523
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21. EQUITY INSTRUMENT AT FAIR

21.

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

%

VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

L4

2023 2022
E = S
HK$’000 HK$ 000
Tt T Wt
Equity instrument at FVTOCI (Note (i)): WA EFTAHAL 2 E
Wi 2 AR TR
(HIFEE)) -
Unlisted equity investment (Note (ii)) A AR E
(Bt 7t (i) 293,949 312,824
Notes: Mt
(i) The above equity investment is not held for trading, instead, they are (i) bl A SN IR E R E o R

held for long-term strategic purposes. The Directors of the Company
have elected to designate this investment in equity instrument as at

FVTOCI.

(if)  The unlisted equity investment represent investment in private entities
incorporated in the Mainland China mainly engaging in property
development and investment business. The valuation techniques and
assumptions used in the determination of the fair value is set out in

Note 30(c).

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

ERMKM B - AN FHESE OB
W %5 1B A E A e T E R A A
S 2 A T H o

() LTS B A 1A A R
T S7. Ko T TAK 2 ) S R R e BT
B RN AR o fEE N TETRAZ
Ak B 52 il % AR R IR B 5E30(c)

Financial assets at FVTPL represented equity securities held BATE RN AR 5 2 B0 B 46
for trading which are listed in Hong Kong. F LW B RARES
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

23. ASSETS AND RELATED LIABILITIES

CLASSIFIED AS HELD-FOR-SALE

In September 2023, the Group entered into an equity transfer
agreement with an independent third party to dispose of 100%
equity interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary, Shanghai Cheng
Qi Technology Limited (“Cheng Qi”) and a supplemental
agreement was made in December 2023 to fix the consideration
of approximately RMB405,843,000. As at 31st December,
2023, a deposit of approximately RMB81,169,000 has been
received and the transaction is expected to complete in April
2024.

The related assets and liabilities of Cheng Qi have been
classified as held for sale and are separately presented in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

The major classes of assets and liabilities of Cheng Qi

classified as held for sale are as follow:

23. 53 7 1 4 BB B R B

=K

AEFBEBIE =R _F =

JUR > RTSL KRR RE 38 1 ) Hh B &
&R A ) b IR LR R A
(M H 1) Z2100%A% fE > 3F A —F
CEFT S ABIET (AR o
EAE A B N R 5405,843,0007T °
RoFE =P HA=+T—H B
e B 2 A N R H81,169,0007C >
TEREAC H A — 2 VU 4E 0 H SE AL ©

W Z AR & E kR ABC B AR
o R A5 S B IR DL AR b B 2
5 o

WHEEPBAFENEE LAR
LU

2023
HK$’000
T # 50

Assets & e
Investment property BEYE 431,811
Property, plant and equipment Y~ R E B 228
Other receivables and prepayments At JRE g B 3k K% T A5 BOE 232
Cash and bank balances fﬁi B SRAT &5 R 14,744
447,015

Liabilities =R
Other payables and accruals JFC A B AT R 5 B T A 2 4,821
Tax liabilities JE HE fH 410
Deferred tax liabilities R A 5 T £ 1R 78,952
84,183
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Notes to the Cons‘olidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

24. i B & E T
(a) MEWCE 5 MRk - HAl

24. NET CURRENT ASSETS

(a) Trade and other receivables and prepayments

The general credit term of the Group given to trade

customers is 60 days. A longer credit period may be

granted to customers with long business relationship.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its

outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk.

Included in trade and other receivables and prepayments

are trade receivables, net of allowance for credit losses

and their aged analysis based on invoice date as at the

end of the reporting period is as follows:

OB WAC B sk B FELA5F sk JHL

AEHGTHESGEFZ K
FEMAANTH - ALK E
MTARMEFRIRZEF K
RZEEH - A% G Eal
AT BRI W R e B A DA
K A5 R B o

T RE W 5 5 R~ HLAth 1B i iR
X I TEA O R L R W R 5
MRk (REFNERMR B ) -
Hor s IR RIZE R A2
HR#E AT ANE

2023 2022
—EBOEE E
HKS$’000 HK$000
Tt T T
0 — 3 months E & =i H 533 339

Movement in the allowance for credit losses on trade

receivables:

e 50 5% B 2 s s SRR A
2 5

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$000

Tt T

Balance at beginning of the year SRR A R 3,287 4,373
Impairment losses reversed B 43 ] 22 W (E s (583) (941)
Written off A (383) =
Exchange adjustments [ b3, 3 & (47) (145)
Balance at end of the year AR 2,274 3,287
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

24. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued) 24. i B & A HHE )
(a) Trade and other receivables and prepayments (a) MEWCHE 5 MRk ~ HoAt

(Continued) @%Eﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁ (%)
Details of impairment assessment of other receivables are At JE AR 3K 2 M BT A R
set out in Note 30(b). HR M EE30(b)

During the year ended 31st December, 2023, included in wEE_ZF =4+ _H
the other receivables and prepayments of HK$61,600,000 =+ —H1EFE > HARE U IR
(2022: HK$26,103,000) and HK$42,809,000 (2022: 0 % VA A5 5 AL EE 4 P AT B 4
HK$44,011,000) related to value added tax and prepaid {HFi61,600,000% 76 (—F —.—
sale tax respectively. 4F 1 26,103,000%5 70) B TEAT 5

B Fi42,809,00045 ¢ (—F
4 1 44,011,00087T)

(b) Inventories b) #E
Details of inventories are as follows: FEFHBEWT :
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$ 000
T T T C
Packaging materials and accessories A0, 26 B RE I e A4 3,195 3,369
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24. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued)

(c) Bank deposit and cash and bank balances

Bank deposit comprised the time deposit with an

original maturity over three months.

Included in cash and bank balances are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the

functional currency of the entities to which they relate:

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

24. MEVE EH1H ()

(o SRATE DA KB& R
SRAT %% R

AT EAEEE A =M/ A
DAk B %E A e

TEH & RMRATHEBR N - ABRHE
B ohRe B LU BT

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$000

Tt AP

United States Dollars (“USD”) Eo 56,519 56,661
Renminbi (“RMB”) AR¥ 1,312 1,461

Details of impairment assessment of bank deposit and

bank balances are set out in Note 30(b).
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&5 I R Bk

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

24. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued) 24, Wi B E e o)

(d) Trade and other payables and accruals (d) EME SR - Hit

Included in trade and other payables and accruals are
trade payables and their aged analysis based on invoice

date as at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

VB A ke sk Je ¥R 92 8

TE MEAH B2 o MR~ HL At B A+ R
AR TR R A4 A
AR R > HL R i R AR A 9 5

H A Z BREE o #ran s -

2023 2022

—EO=EE E
HK$’000 HK$ 000
Tt Tt
0 — 3 months & =1 H 263,059 24,125
4 — 6 months P % S| A 7 22
7 — 12 months i S 1= 1,188 49
Over 1 year —4ERL | 56,919 79,121
321,173 103,317

The credit period on purchases is 90 days. The Group
has financial risk management policies in place to ensure

that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

Included in the other payables and accruals of
HK$251,971,000 (2022: HK$261,557,000) and
HK$163,634,000 (2022: HK$162,878,000) related to
the refundable deposit for golf course and accrued land

use tax respectively.

Other payables of HK$54,106,000 (2022:
HK$67,509,000) represent the refundable rental
deposits received and out of which HK$15,089,000
(2022: HK$15,544,000) is included in non-current
other payables.

WEZEEMA TR - AL
P S T Je o B BB A
DR BT AT B AT AR R 3 TR A 3
AL -

L th 8 AT B K R R AR B R
& 73 Il A B = AT O Bk iy 2 TR
2 0 4:251,971,000% 70 (&
T TAF 1 261,557,000% 8) K
T £ Hb A F Bl 163,634,000
J6 (. F T4 162,878,000
WIn) o

H Ath, FE £5F B 3K54,106,000%5 JC
(& "4 1 67,509,000%5 7C)
ez R R SRS B
H15,089,000% o6 (=& — —
4 115,544,000 0) 5FAJE R
By A E A R 3K -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

24. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Concinued) 24, BN E A E
(e) Contract liability (e BRIAM

Contract liability of HK$121,653,000 and HK$208,603,000
represented the deposits received from sales of properties
as at 31st December, 2022 and 1st January, 2022

respectively.

The Group receives 20% to 30% of the contract value as
deposits from customers when they sign the sale and
purchase agreement. The deposits will be recognised as
revenue when the customer obtains control of the

completed property.

During the year ended 31st December, 2023, the
amount of HK$121,653,000 (2022: HK$155,109,000)
included in the contract liability balance at the

beginning of the year was recognised as revenue.

o T _H=1+—H
FZFEZ_F—H—H > G#
B E 4 B 5 Bl £5121,653,0005
JG 2208,603,000 JC > T4 & B
YW Z 5T 4 -

AL FA % P AT R ek
1] A8 45 WG IR 5 40 1 (B 2 20% 2
30%1F /4 T 4 o 7% 5 BT i
ST R TY 32 P
B e 5 5 WA

WERE_F_=4F1+_H
=t+—HIEFE > BIEEFEY
A K A K2 R e #
121,653,000%5 70 ( 2 = " 4F
155,109,000%5 JG) £ ffE 52 2 I
A ©

25. LEASE LIABILITY 25. & A&
2023 2022
&R = R
HK$°000 HK$°000
T # 0 T T
Lease liability payable: JEAH 2 T A A
Within one year —4E R 6,401 4,209
Within a period more than one year but not —4EDL E{EN A
exceeding two years T 4F 2 3 ] 7,016 -
Within a period more than two years but not W4F DL E B i
exceeding five years hAE 2 HAH 4,068 -
17,485 4,209
The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to fﬂ% A7 BT HE ) 2 i RE ST 24 18 & i
lease liability was 5.08% (2022: 3.02%) per annum. PR R Fs5.08)H (& -
3.02)H)
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. it A
Number of shares Amount
it 0 H &%
2023 2022 2023 2022
“ECEE N S —E =R TR
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each % it 1 (E0.507 7T 2
gl
Authorised e
— Balance as at 1st January and -R—=H—HBk
31st December mnt—HA
=t+—HZ&% 3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000 1,500,000 1,500,000
Issued and fully paid CHIRCHR
— Balance as at Ist January —-R—HA—H
ZH R 1,971,025,125 1,971,025,125 985,512 985,512
— Scrip dividend (Note) — IR (i) 81,122,062 — 40,561 -
— Balance as at 31st December - A
“t—HZ&H 2,052,147,187 1,971,025,125 1,026,073 985,512
Note: MaE -
On 15th June, 2023, 81,122,062 new shares of the Company were allotted RANFN ZF =ZFNHA +H B LSRR
and issued at HK$1.5998 per share to the sharcholders, who elected to 31,5998 TC [7] 358 45 Wie I 13 119 i 3R i 2% %
receive shares in lieu of cash for the interim dividend for the year ended 31st BEA781,122,062/B H I iy AU B 2 —F
December, 2022. These shares rank pari passu in all respects with the shares ST A=t HIEFENBE S R
then in issue. B U8 o 5% AE I A i T A 5 T B E B 2 B AT

JBe A =2 A (] 45 LA

Annual Report 2023 4F FE4F |




Notes to the Cons‘olidated Financial Statements
&5 A S R

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

27. BORROWINGS 27. 1w
2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$000
T # o T #5 7T
Short-term borrowings, secured AR R - A 167,500 =
Current portion of long-term borrowings, UG R Z B AE A
secured B A 26,039 26,939
Total amount due within one year shown RIRE A E TSR Z R
under current liabilities — 4R B 2 A 193,539 26,939
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities IR E A E TR
& 182,272 215,512
375,811 242,451
Carrying amount repayable: JEME R Z BRIEE
Within one year —FER 193,539 26,939
Within a period more than one year —4E DA _EAE RS R
but not exceeding two years A 2 B 26,039 26,939
Within a period more than two years WA RL B AR
but not exceeding five years TLAEZ JHH 78,117 80,817
More than five years HAE F 78,116 107,756
375,811 242,451

AR B A i AR A 2 R I R
36 K FF

The borrowings were secured by assets of the Group as
disclosed in Note 36.

18 3K 5 77 B R A 3K375,811,0005
JG (5 4 1 242,451,000%
J6) 5 AEF R F5.02)E £6.82)E (—
F T4 1 5.390H) o

Borrowings were floating-rate borrowings of HK$375,811,000
(2022: HK$242,451,000) which carried interest rate at 5.02%
to 6.82% (2022: 5.39%) per annum.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

28. DEFERRED TAXATION 8. & %t Pt JE

Accelerated Exchange  Dividend
tax  Revaluation difference  withholding
depreciation ~ of properties LAT  recognition tax  Tax losses Others Total
i il iR (3] 133}
BESE  WEEE  EHR  EREZ nAE REER it it
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HEKS$'000
T#x  T#x  THx  TEx  T#x  T#x  T#x  Ti#x
Balance as at R-F__F
It January, 2022 -A-f Z%‘ﬁ% (187,996)  (1,944,933) 1,006,199 (51,554) (1,091) - (69402) (1,248,777)
(Charge) credit to consolidared A5 A
statement of profit or loss B % (1)
for the year i (12,769) 61,581 4,694 - (27,980) 9,711 (800) 34,437
Charge to other comprehensive A H Al 2 i B X
expense 11 - - - - - - (11,0600 (11,060)
Exchange adjustments EiAE 15933 172,066 (86,270) 4370 9 - 6381 113,072
Balance as at e ——i
31st December, 2022 TZRZ+—H
VA i (184,832)  (1,711,286) 924,623 (47,184) (28,979) 9,711 (74,381)  (1,112,328)
(Charge) credit to consolidated ~ RAFEL A
statement of profit or loss Ba & (1
for the year o (12,343) 89,89 5,086 129 484 1,963 (774) 84439
Credit to other comprehensive 7T AFM2TE
expense X - - - - - - 2,105 2,105
Reclassified as held for sale MEREE
(Note 23) (Wit2s) BB 98 (356) - - - - T899
Exchange adjustments et R 6176 55280 (31,508) 1,576 968 (329) 4654 36823
Balance as at R_F_ZE
31st December, 2023 TZAZ+—H
VA (157,764)  (1,516,828) 894,636 (45479)  (27,577) 11,349 (68,396)  (910,009)
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

28. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred

tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

28.

9 At B IH (42)

MBI GG EMBIRWEM S > & T
EIEBIHE E K BHE TR - U
S i R ) S B T A
BRI

2023 2022
- e -
HK$’000 HK$ 000
T # T T T
Deferred tax liabilities % JE Bl TH A R 910,009 1,112,328

At 31st December, 2023, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$473.32 million (2022: HK$498.21 million) available to
offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of such losses to the extent of HK$45.40
million (2022: HK$38.84 million). No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses of
HK$427.92 million (2022: HK$459.36 million) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. At 31st December,
2022, included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$26.76 million which will expire within five years. Other

losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At 31st December, 2023, except the amount of distributable
earnings of HK$550.54 million (2022: HK$579.58 million),
the aggregate amount of distributable earnings of the Group’s
Mainland China subsidiaries in respect of which the Group
has not provided for dividend withholding tax amounted to
approximately HK$5,042.63 million (2022: HK$5,136.91
million). No deferred tax has been recognised in respect of
these amounts because the Group is in a position to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it
is probable that such differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.
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WoFZ=FTZHA=+—H &
45 18 W] A K B R 2l s A 2 oK B
i TH 5 18 %7 £5473,320,000% 0T (=
T 4 1 498,210,000% J6) > 3f
C ot a% 55 s I iR R ﬁlﬁ\%‘?
45,400,000% o0 (=& = —
38,840,000 7T) © ﬁAﬂ@Mﬁﬂ%
B R A FE I o RORE R AR R B
JH Ji5 $8427,920,000% 76 (&
1 459,360,000%5 JC) filE 58 4E ZE Bi
H&EE N _F 4+ A
=+t—H > KERBEERT > 4
26,760,000% JG Z 5 18 1% 1A 1L 4FE N
Jiet o o LA s 48 T 4 BR A 4% i o

A B =ZHE+A=+—H K
Al 43 Uk 2 F 550,540,000 J6 (=
x4 1 579,580,000% Jt) Ab >
ZIK%EIF'H%EJE Hh B (A b B B 2
A 43 UK 4 48 4H #5,042,630,000
«%m TR T T 5,136,910,000%
) o AE B S BB A o R
7 4L [ G RE 7 PR 4 1 R 2
Iy ] I 5% 55 22 B n] BEAS & A LR
5‘51‘?‘@ .ltt]fﬁﬁjﬁnsz Iﬁﬁ%wu
ARIEBLIA o



29.

30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fok £ B 5 A W

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in Note 27 and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued

share capital, share premium, reserves and retained earnings.

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically by considering the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. When necessary, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as

well as the issue of new debt or the repayment of existing

debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

29.

30.

B A A i A B

4 ] A T L e (R A AR
1 170 B 3 T R AR S 5 OB
S0 A S M 2 5 B 5 I TR o
Bk ] 4 o A 45 [ K 0 s B
4 B R R o

A 2 B AR EE (H T
AL A A R B RE27 90 88) Je AR 2 7
e FF A NG (BF 2 81T
e A ~ Wy s~ ol A % IR B R
) o

Ap v EBEEMM AT EAGNE  H
L1 5 R AN A B B A
il e B 7 2 S B - WA G B AR
VR 7 325 3 IR A BC UL~ R AT T I I
73 1m0 3 > DA% 38 A7 5 B AH R B
A B AT HRE R AR A

St T H
(a) “xPhTHZHR

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$°000
T# T4 7T
Financial assets W% & E
Financial assets at FVTPL e N PEHFIA B 2
WA S B 49,257 36,724
Financial assets at amortised cost B SE A TR 2
B 3,616,042 4,169,739
Equity instrument at FVTOCI OB R A H At 2 T
W g 2 A T A 293,949 312,824
Financial liabilities 8 B AR
At amortised cost e 48 B i AR 1,266,474 861,664
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 30. ﬁ ﬁfh T E\‘ (%)

(b) %5 Jl b A BE H AR K

(b) Financial risks management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
instrument at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL, trade
and other receivables, amount due from an associate,
pledged bank deposit, bank deposit, bank balances, trade
and other payables and borrowings. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented in a timely and effective manner. There
has been no significant change to the Group’s exposure
to financial risks or the manner in which it manages and

measures the risks.

Market risks

(i) Currency risk

Certain bank balances of the Group are denominated
in USD and RMB which are foreign currencies
other than functional currency (i.e. HKD) of the
relevant group entities (see Note 24(c)). The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the

need arise.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risks management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

@)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to currency risk

at the end of the reporting period.

No analysis is presented on HKD against USD as
HKD is pegged to USD and the management of
the Company believes the foreign exchange

exposure is insignificant.

The following details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% (2022: 5%) appreciation/depreciation in HKD
against RMB.

e Profit for the year ended 31st December,
2023 would decrease/increase by HK$66,000
(2022: HK$73,000).

fok £ B 5 A W

30. & T H )

(b) A% Rl B 4% PR H A K&
W3R (47

T 5 JE B ()
() R ()
IR E A

3 2 U E o A TS L
T o R 2 B R L B

FH S 6 o B SE ST b >
i 4 2 51 3 T ik 3k T
Z 0¥ A R HLE
A fz 4 28 O A EE SR B

N B HE R A 4
o N R FHE 2 (EH5%
(ZF 4 0 5%) B

e AHEHEEZE_ZF
=+ = A
=+—HLEEEZ
T A WD 88
66,000 6 (=&
Z T 173,000
Jo)
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 30. ﬁ ﬁfh T E\‘ (%)

(b) Financial risks management objectives and (b) BA %5 )m B 45 PR H B %

policies (Continued)
Market risks (Continued)

(ii) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to bank deposit and lease liability (see
Notes 24(c) and 25 respectively for details). The
Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to bank deposit, bank balances, pledged
bank deposit and variable-rate borrowings (see
Note 27 for details of borrowings). It is the Group’s
policy to keep its borrowings at variable-rate of
interest so as to minimise the fair value interest rate
risk. The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should

the need arise.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of the market
deposit rate and the Mainland China official
lending rate and Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate arising from the Group’s RMB borrowing and
HKD borrowing respectively.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates risks for
pledged bank deposit, bank balances and variable-rate
borrowings. The analysis is prepared on the
balances at the end of reporting period. 100 basis
points (2022: 100 basis points) increase or decrease
is used which represents the management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in

interest rates.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 30. &t T H )
(b) Financial risks management objectives and (b) 75 B 4% B H AR %
policies (Continued) BUEK (45)
Market risks (Continued) T 85 JE\ B (A
(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued) (i) Y F T (4
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) 5 1K JE A ()
In relation to the Group’s exposure to interest rates A B A 5 T B AR AT 45

risk on bank balances and pledged bank deposit, if
interest rates had been 100 basis points (2022: 100
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s profit for the year
ended 31st December, 2023 would increase/decrease

by HK$27,715,000 (2022: HK$30,734,000).

Furthermore, in relation to the Group’s exposure
to interest rates risk on its variable-rate borrowings,
if interest rates had been 100 basis points
(2022: 100 basis points) higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s
profit for the year ended 31st December, 2023
would decrease/increase by HK$2,961,000 (2022:
HK$1,818,000).

(iii) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its equity instruments measured at FVTPL quoted
in the Stock Exchange. For equity instruments
measured at FVTPL quoted in the Stock Exchange,
the management intends to manage this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk profiles. In addition, the Group also
invested in certain unquoted equity instrument for
long term strategic purposes which had been
designed as FVTOCI. The Directors of the
Company closely manage the price risk by regularly
reviewing the performance of the unquoted equity
instruments.

ik M 9 88 4T A7 3K A R
JEBE o AR BTN B
1005 B (= F = — 4 ¢
1005 B) > i Br A5 H b
AT 4 R R AR N A > HIIA
LEHEHEE T =
+ - A=+—HILFEE
2 s R B W b
27,715,000% oC ( &
T 130,734,000
JG) °

BEAL > A B A S ] iy
7 B AR 5w B - Ak A

R ETH T Ek1003 8 (—
F A 100888 o T

B A At v] 5 R R HERE
g MIAEEEZ —F
= +=H=+—H
1F4F B 2 % A A% b
14 912,961,000% ¢ (—F
T4 11,818,000 70) o

(iii) &2 18 15 B

A A ] R g 52 P
B 3% 24 - E 5 AR 2
Z e A TR i H R %
AAE A JEL B o BEA% NP {E
P A B - AR E S B
2 BA TR 4 2 Bt
75 3 A — 8 W R T
JE B A2 2 % E AL A AR
2 1 A Bl LB o Be b - A
LB LERE TR
Uil g E N R A
/A SR (=14 AN W ]
Wt 2 JF E A TR -
A ox w2 E WA B R
EWBRA TR L > %
DA BB A B o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 30. % ﬁfh T E\‘ (%)
(b) Financial risks management objectives and (b) BA %5 )m B 45 PR H B %

policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(iii) Equity price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the
end of reporting period for equity instruments.
Sensitivity analysis for unlisted equity security with
fair value measurement categorised within Level 3
is disclosed in Note 30(c).

If the prices of the respective equity instruments
had been 10% (2022: 10%) higher/lower:

e profit for the year ended 31st December,
2023 would increase/decrease by HK$4,926,000
(2022: HK$3,672,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of financial assets at

FVTPL; and

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity
analysis is not representative of the Group’s equity
price risk as it only reflects the impact of equity
price changes to equity securities held at the year

end but not the exposure during the year.

| Tomson Group Limited %y B AL [ A PR 7

B (47)
i 35 JE B ()

(iii) HE A 16 4% il By (7))

IR E A

B 2 SRR B Ay B T AR
B s R 2 A T
B2 A A A R B A
TR E - AN TEF R
B E = Hm Ik b s
AT S 2 R o b B
8 I Bt 5E30(c) ©

fili A BE B A T B 2 8 4%
EF S FE10% (%
TAE T 10%) o A

e HWZE _ZF =
+=—HA=+—H1
A E 2 AR R R
NV EFFABGZ
B & E N EE
Lo/ TR | e
4,926,000 7C (&
Z T4 13,672,000
o) 5 K&

G RE A o R U E
o3 M 1 RE S B R 4F JE £
A 2 A 5 I A AE
1% S BN 2 B> TR
Bk AR 2 L o TR
R A R BRI R A £
P 2 T 2 BB fE A SRR -
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&5 I R Bk

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 30. ﬁ ﬁfh T E\‘ (%)

(b) B %5 Ja\ B 4 B H A2 &

(b) Financial risks management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment
p

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management will monitor the payment status of
customers and perform necessary procedures to ensure

that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.

The credit risk on bank balances, pledged bank deposit
and bank deposit with original maturity over three
months is limited because the counterparties are banks
with good reputation. The Group uses 12m ECL to
perform the assessment under ECL model individually.
The impairment yet to be recognised is insignificant.
Other than concentration of credit risk on bank
balances, pledged bank deposit and bank deposit with
original maturity over three months which are deposited
with several banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies, the Group does not

have any other significant concentration of credit risk.

W3R (47
fis B JE\ B B Dok AT R A

A 42 1 R 22 5 3 7 R B AT R
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P AT > LAREAR B B BU#
B A SR AT B8l A [ A R A
fR# -

B 7% 58 5y 75 2 B R P 4R
17> WOERAT 45 BR  HR AT SRAT A7
AR B =8 H LA
747 3 A5 B LB A BR - AR 4R
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Slf7 8 A T JH A KR 4 o A5 B

I;?E’O

Annual Report 2023 4F FE4F |




Notes to the Cons‘olidated Financial Statements
&5 A S R

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 30. % ﬁfh T E\‘ (%)
(b) Financial risks management objectives and (b) BA %5 )m B 45 PR H B %

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

The Directors of the Company regularly reviewed and
assessed the gross amount of the Group’s trade
receivables of HK$2,807,000 (2022: HK$3,626,000) for
impairment under lifetime ECL using reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue
cost or effort in accordance with requirements of
HKFRS 9. Since the balances of the trade receivables are
insignificant, no further disclosure on the impairment

was made.

For other receivables and amount due from an associate,
the Directors of the Company regularly reviewed and
assessed the credit quality of the counterparties. The
Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model individually. In this regard, the Directors of the
Company consider the exposure of credit risk, historical
settlement and other forward-looking information. No
losses under lifetime ECL (2022: HK$6,000) are

recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #; %

o 5 S 25 R B
e Y S e 2

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 30. & T H )

(b) Financial risks management objectives and (b)
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment

comprises the following categories:

Internal credit

rating Description

M AR R BEREA Wi

S % R B A PR H AR K
W3R (47

e 8 g B 9 AL W B (A

A B 0 P 5 LR A 4
B 45 LR

Amount due from an
associate and other

receivables

— BB A Kk &
L fth R W R 5k

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not
any past-due amounts

(950 5 77 WY 3E K Ja\ B A - EL 3G SR A fr 2 3 ROE

Watch list Debtor usually settles after due date

WAL R AR I F A B

Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since
initial recognition through information developed

internally or external resources

have 12m ECL

1218 A M5 H i E

12m ECL
121 A 1 {5 Bk

Lifetime ECL

(not credit-impaired)

175 75 N R A ST B R B AN E IR B UOHERR DA AR MG R
BT B Y (R AEME BWRAE)
Loss There is evidence indicating that the asset is credit-impaired  Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired)
[} AR PERUR & HBUE B 2 W HE MG B R
(A B WE)
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written off

financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic pro

of recovery

& A RE PR B (S A B R S A 5 I
H R AT ] 2 e 22

spect

47 2 S
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Notes to the Cons‘olidated Financial Statements
&5 A S R

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 30. &t T H 4)
(b) Financial risks management objectives and (b) 75 B 4% B H AR %
policies (Continued) BUR (48)
Credit risk and impairment assessment fa B B K AR R A (A7)
(Continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the TR A W R 2 I
Group’s pledged bank deposit, bank deposit and bank B i 18 7l 2 SR SR AT A K
balances, amount due from an associate and other SRITAF KDL R RAT R - — K
receivables, which are subject to ECL assessment: gt 7 2 ) R e H Al R AR K
Z A5 B E B
External Internal 12m or Gross carrying amount
credit rating  credit rating  lifetime ECL P i 48 £
bbb R 128 A 82 1) 2023 22
i B P 4 fii B 8 91 £ B i 4 ZRIEE DR DF
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T TiC

Financial assets at
amortised cost

R AGEZ
W &
Other receivables N/A Low risk 12m ECL 3,180 1,403
At JRE A R K A 5 = B 121 A BH(E B E
Watch list 12m ECL 7,668 9,547
ERLH 1218 H 15 B4
Doubtful Lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired) 17,800 115,388
fr5E 2B EER
(RIEfE B BE)
Loss Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired) 2,647 3,707
fi 18 2 ME NG SR
(CIEEEBE)
31,295 130,045
Amount due from N/A Doubtful Lifetime ECL
an associate (not credit-impaired) 9,501 9,501
—XZBEARRK  AEH fr5E 2B EER
(RIEfE B BE)
Pledged bank deposit, BB+ or above ~ N/A 12m ECL
bank deposit and
bank balances 3,577,360 4,033,561
AT - 17 BB+EMA b A 121 A B BS54
T3k SR AT 45 B
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risks management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The following tables show reconciliation of loss

allowances that has been recognised for other receivables:

fok £ B 5 A W

30. & T H )

(b) A% Rl B 4% PR H A K&
W3R (47

e B L B B kAL wF A (A7)
T RS 7 i A R Wi R e
Z e R 2 E IR

Lifetime ECL

(credit-impaired)

2 W H
v B 18
(B AEf5 8 W)
HK$’000
Tt
As at 1st January, 2022 Ao E T AHE—H—H 4,024
Changes due to financial instruments recognised A -F "4 —H —HMERZ
as at st January, 2022: W TEPrs s 58
— Impairment losses recognised — L ERR 2 YR (E s 15 6
— Impairment losses reversed — OB [ 2 1R (29)
— Exchange adjustments — [ifE b, i & (294)
As at 31st December, 2022 WoE A+ H=+—H 3,707
Changes due to financial instruments recognised i — &~ =4F—H — HfER 2
as at 1st January, 2023: AR T HprEs 2 sE) -
— Weritten off — (949)
— Exchange adjustments — [ 5, 3 % (111)
As at 31st December, 2023 RoE - =E=FE+ " H=+—H 2,647

In accordance with HKFRS 9, the management has
assessed the impairment in relation to pledged bank
deposit, bank deposit, bank balances, the amount due
from an associate and other receivables which are
categorised under 12m ECL and lifetime ECL (not
credit impaired). The impairment yet to be recognised is

insignificant.

HR A5 T o B 5 i o Y D) 2R 9
8 B IR O oW R R AT A
Ao RAT AR RATHER - —
SR O ) ORI B A B WA MR
KA BE > H M A AR 12
5 H FE A5 B 1R M A ) FH
FEEE CREE & BE) -
1) A B 8 B (E < S REL DL
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Notes to the Cons‘olidated Financial Statements
&5 A S R

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 30. ﬁ ﬁfh T E\‘ (%)

(b) B %5 Ja\ B 4 B H A2 &

(b) Financial risks management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk

The Group is not exposed to any significant liquidity
risk as it has sufficient funds to meet its financial

obligations when they fall due.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents generated from operations which are deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and to mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows. The Group will consider to raise bank

borrowing when it is necessary.
Liquidity risk table

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at

the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemeqts
&5 I R Bk

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 30. & T H )

(b) Financial risks management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

(b) A% Rl B 4% PR H A K&
W3R (47

B & & by ()

Liquidity risk table (Continued) B & 5 B (4
Weighted
average  On demand Total Total
effective orlessthan 3 months 7 months undiscounted  carrying
interestrate 3 months to 6months  to 1year overlyear  cash flows amount
miEry  RERE  ZHAE t#A AR S
ERAZE =ZHANUM ~#A g —EJE O REME  REME
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS$000
T#x  T#x  T#x  T#x  T#x  Ti#x
As at 31st December, 2023 R-Z "=
+ZAZt—H
Non-derivative financial  JE 77t i £ &
liabilities
Trade and other payables  FEfH G 5 R
S ARt - 864490 - - 26173 890663 890,663
Leases liability g 473% 1,914 1,914 3315 11,546 18,689 17,485
Borrowings - variable rate {3~ 5 5.63% 6,405 172,484 31,318 251,043 461,250 375,811
872,809 174,398 34,633 288,762 1,370,602 1,283,959
As at 31st December, 2022 R-Z =&
tZAZ+-A
Non-derivative financial ~ JEfiik MH A &
liabilities
Trade and other payables — FEf1E 5 i &
S AR - 603,669 - - S 6923 619213
Leases liability figsRE 3.02% 2,124 1,416 708 - 4,248 4209
Borrowing - variable rate  ft — 1% & 5.39% 3,604 3,263 33,127 296,825 336,819 242,451
609,397 4,679 33,835 312,369 960,280 865,873
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risks management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity risk table (Continued)

The above undiscounted cash flows amounts could
change if there are movements in floating interest rates

subsequent to the reporting period.

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period on a
recurring basis. The following table gives information
about how the fair values of these financial instruments
are determined (in particular, the valuation techniques

and inputs used).

| Tomson Group Limited %y B AL [ A PR 7

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

30. & T H )

(b) B %5 Ja\ B 4 B H A2 &

(c)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemeqts
&5 I R Bk

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 30. &Rt T H )
(c) Fair value measurements of financial () & THZAFMHEZE
instruments (Continued) (#)

Fair value as at
31st December

BR+-H=+—HZ

! Fair value Valuation techniques
Financial assets 2023 2022 hierarchy and key inputs
W B & e —ERO=F —“F 0T AR X< 5 A8 35 i S
HK$°000 HK$000 % 4% F i A B
Tt T4 7T
Financial assets at FVTPL 49,257 36,724 Level 1 Quoted prices in an active
market
AP EFE A Z % A T 35 2 A
W5 B
Equity instrument at
FVTOCI
FE 0N P AE RN H A 2 T
Wi i 2 e As T B
— Unlisted equity 293,949 312,824 Level 3 Market approach for
investment business enterprises
valuation with reference
to the market
capitalisation of listed
entities in similar
industries with
consideration of
marketability discount
of 25% and adjustment
of idle cash
I B RAERE %= SZEFUATERN BT
B8 Y T (B 5 R
25% 11 355 Uit 488 VE 3
J A B 4 R A%
7 3 A 2E AT A (B )
Wi 7 ik
343,206 349,548
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Notes to the Cons‘olidated Financial Statements
&5 A S R

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 30. & T H )

(c) Fair value measurements of financial (c)
instruments (Continued)

Note:
A slight increase in the marketability discount used in valuation would
result in a significant decrease in the fair value measurement of the

private equity investment, and vice versa.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no Level 2 fair

value measurements financial instruments.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 1 and Level 3 during the

year.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

Unlisted equity investment measured at FVTOCI

ST Z 2Pt &
(4)

Wit -
G R T TR
385 S ORL B A 80 24 -5 B

FHWD > 2RI -

TR AR > A 4R I 40 25 — A N
HFHE ST H o

G BEMREA S — MR B S R
R = R
B Pt B2 Bk

#% 4 P A1 at A A 2 i ak
ZH LA #E

HK$’000

F#

As at 1st January, 2022 WoEFE A —H—H 293,452
Fair value gain recognised in other T LAt 2 T 0 25 R R 2

comprehensive income OB %R 44,240

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes I REE e 26 5 )y 2 5% (24,868)

As at 31st December, 2022 N FE++H=+—H 312,824

Fair value loss recognised in other T At A T Uk 25 e ER

comprehensive income A AR (8,421)

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes A1 e B % 5 1)) 2 5 2 (10,454)

As at 31st December, 2023 AN X - =H+_H=+—H 293,949

Except the financial assets that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis, the Directors of the Company
consider that financial assets and financial liabilities
carried at amortised cost recognised in the consolidated

financial statements approximate their fair values.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

31. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 31. e i B Ak 2 AR IR
ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TERAFAEFEMEFES ELE A
arising from financing activities, including both cash and B > AR e KIEHR & s .
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing are those MESEHEE ABEIIERLBEESR
from which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, B CRRB SR BN AEBLGESH
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows SRERT OB AME RS EEZ
as cash flows from financing activities. RenszafE -

Interest payable

(included in
trade and

Lease  other payables

Borrowings liability and accruals) Total
JE A 1 &
(it AR B 5
MRk ~ HAt
JEE £5F M 3k o
fif HEAR HiE &) it
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Tt T# T#7t Tt
At Ist January, 2022 WoFE__F—H—H 294,333 11,745 - 306,078
Financing cash flows MERERE (26,564) (7,788) (14,583) (48,935)
Interest expenses BB 32 = 252 14,583 14,835
Effect of foreign exchange M TE R ) 2 % 2
rate changes (25,318) = = (25,318)
At 31st December, 2022 I S
+ZA=Z+—H 242,451 4,209 - 246,660
Financing cash flows MEH SR E (26,039) (7,438) (17,845) (51,322)
Interest expenses BB 52 - 359 17,845 18,204
New lease entered Rl g - 20,355 - 20,355
New borrowing Bk 167,500 - - 167,500
Effect of foreign exchange O T R Y 2 Y
rate changes (8,101) - - (8,101)
At 31st December, 2023 WoB =4
+ZA=+—H 375,811 17,485 - 393,296
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32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no material

contingent liabilities for both years.

33. COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the

following material commitments:

(a) Commitments in relation to expenditure on properties
under development:

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

32. R AR A1

T A R o A 4 B T A 4 B

33. Ak i

R AR > AL 2 EEARYE W
T

() A B S 2R

2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$°000
T # 0 T 7T
Properties under development R Y
— Contracted but not provided for — BRI 4B R 2,308,957 384,951

(b) Operating lease arrangements:
The Group as lessor
The properties held have committed tenants from the
majority of one year up to the maximum of seven years

(2022: eight years).

Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as

follows:

(b) HEMELHE:
AEMEEL BN
ESEIE Pl W & iR
Kezh—F &EHLFE (=
T ) o

HEZRIBERAEESMT

2023 2022

RO EE CFE

HK$°000 HK$°000

T # T T #E T

— Within one year —4FN 118,070 158,772
— In the second year e 40,933 43,866
— In the third year %= 17,005 23,795
— In the fourth year o U 4F 13,992 8,248
— In the fifth year BILF 10,895 6,831
— After five years TARR 7,659 5,856
208,554 247,368
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fok £ B 5 A W

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group participates in a MPF Scheme established under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under
the control of an independent trustee. Under the rules of the
MPF Scheme, the employer and the employees are obliged to
make contributions at the specified rate under the scheme.

The contributions arising from the MPF Scheme charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss represent
contributions paid and payable to the fund by the Group at

rates specified in the rules of the scheme.

The employees in the Mainland China are members of
respective state-managed defined contribution retirement
benefits schemes operated by the local governments. The
employers and the employees are obliged to make contributions
at a certain percentage of the payroll under rules of the schemes.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement

benefit schemes is to make the specified contributions.

RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

The Group had the following significant transactions with
related and connected parties:

(a) A substantial shareholder of Rivera (Holdings) Limited
(“RHL”) together with her close family members control
the Company and that shareholder has significant
influence over RHL. Accordingly, RHL and its wholly
owned subsidiaries are considered as related parties of
the Company. The Company agreed to share
administrative resources and office premises with RHL
and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong, and in return, RHL
or its wholly owned subsidiary is required to share an
attributable portion of the administrative expense of the
Company on a cost basis. During the year ended 31st
December, 2023, the administrative expenses of the
Company shared by RHL and its wholly owned
subsidiary were totally amounted to HK$3,199,000
(2022: RHL amounted to HK$4,164,000). As at 31st
December, 2023 and 2022, no outstanding balance was
owed by RHL and its wholly owned subsidiary.

34.

35.

A8 I8 i A 5T

AEER _FFFTET ARER
e o o 1k B < B Ak 1)) 22 B —
JH MR AR & wt # o A Bk B 2 EE
SLA G 2 By B A I DL
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A FAEE R BET I L SR AR sk

T #6718 4 R AT BR 2 0 5 A < T
FE A 2 B R AR AR T w8 A B
i1 2 B AT R AT T e 2 i

=+
K o

Hh B A LR BG4 B T BUR
e 2 1B R B 5 E 3t OB AR AR A R
# 2 B o MREEREEAE A - R E &
BEWAREEHFeZ A TANLL
A H B o AR 4R T 3 4R PR AR A T
B 2 A AT 2 1F AT Ik

o 5 B Bl BN 2 5

A 4 B 5B B BN LA DL
RS

AN ) i ] e 4R T A BR A R
(TN 1) — 7 3 B o e Hoat
PR > T R% 4 R B A
HARFET o Bt > I & H
2EME AR RN Z
B T o AR\ ][] B A s B
U] B L g 2 &) 3R] 4 A7
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- BME_F_=F+_H
=+ —HIEFE S I A
B A R AR N R 2 AT I
A R 453,199,000 o6 (—
T I 4,164,000 5
JC) M EZ=ZF R F
TS AZ+—H o
T L 4 T Jag 2 ) Sl 4 R A AR
O FAT ] A AE 2= A % o

(a)
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35. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

35. BT BN LR 5

TRANSACTIONS (Continued) (#%)
(a) (Continued) (a) (%)
The above transaction constitutes a continuing L B A8 55 W AR N | 2 FR 48
connected transaction of the Company but is exempted ARG SR SECET
from disclosure and independent shareholders’ approval A Z B 58 K J8 57 % o HE HE
requirements under the Listing Rules. ZHLE ©
(b) Compensation of key management personnel b)) FEEHABZME
The remuneration of Directors of the Company during ERNARNBERZIHFMUT -
the year was as follows:
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$000
T T T T
Short-term benefits 5 3 48 A 26,869 27,138
Post-employment benefits [ER Nl 36 36
26,905 27,174
The remuneration of Directors is determined by the ERFMIIHESRFE (BB
Board (or under the authorisation of the shareholders of AN TR 2 FEhE s 0 I m
the Company as the case may be) by reference to market ) 2% 5 FH K - R
terms, individual responsibilities and performance, and NLEZBEREH DI RESR
recommendation from the remuneration committee of JHHE T 2 HE % 8 & 2 #Em
the Board. fE E ©
(c) The balances due from an associate and a joint venture () MR B —FKBiE N

at the end of the reporting period are set out in Notes

19 and 20 respectively.
The above transactions were conducted in accordance

with terms mutually agreed between the Group and the

respective related parties.
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36.

37.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fok £ B 5 A W

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Assets with the following carrying amounts have been pledged
to secure the Group’s borrowing of HK$375.81 million
(2022: HK$242.45 million):

36.

¥ i 2 A

AR AE 2 EE B ISR A
5 HE#) £5375,810,000% 7 (&
TUUAE 1 242,450,000 08) R AR

2023 2022
—E R —E
HK$°000 HK$°000
T # o T #5 T
Property, plant and equipment Y3 - s K 202,747 -
Properties held for sale R E 407,103 421,178
Pledged bank deposit (Note) HEAH ERAT A7 3K (ML) 39,130 55,143
648,980 476,321

Note: MiaE -
The deposit of HK$39,130,000 (2022: HK$55,143,000) has been pledged to 17 339,130,000 JC ( — &F — — 4 :

secure long-term borrowing and was therefore classified as non-current asset.
The pledged bank deposit pledged to secure the Group’s borrowing carries
interest at rate of 0.2% (2022: 0.25%) per annum.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31st December, 2023, the Company
issued 81,122,062 new shares as scrip dividend of
HK$129,779,000 for the year ended 31st December, 2022 as
set out in Notes 13 and 26.

During the year ended 31st December, 2023, the Group
entered into new lease agreement with three years lease terms.
On the date of new lease agreement entered, the Group
recognised right-of-use assets and lease liability of
HK$20,355,000 respectively as set out in Notes 16 and 25.

37.

55,143,000 6) T FE K40 - DL O 1= 30 1%
A BRI A R BN A E o BB R AE
VR AT S 47 ) 2 IS4 $RAT A7 3 #5245 R %R0.2
JE(ZF 4R - 0.25/8) 5HE o

FERIEBHERZ S

RERE_E =4+ _H=1+—H
1E4EBE > A\ R #E 4T 181,122,062
A EREE —F
+ " HA=+—HItEEFEZKRE
129,779,000 Jo (# 7 Bt 513 &
26) °

REE_Z_=#+_H=+—H
IR > REEFTT L HE A =FR
HHERK - RET L E S &5
H o> 7 4 [ 5 Bl e 5200 ) HE 8 7 I
& £ & £520,355,000% 70 > #F 1H
WA B R 16525 °
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Notes to the Cons‘olidated Financial Statements
&5 A S R

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

38. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF 38. A H] 2 M B & Bl
THE COMPANY
The Company’s Statement of Financial Position is as follows: RNE Z BRI FMT ¢
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$000
Tt T
Non-Current Assets Ik B & e
Investments in subsidiaries Kt &g s w2 & 476,904 476,904
Amounts due from subsidiaries JAEE Wi BfF J 2 ] K IE 2,492,410 2,591,743
Right-of-use asset o6 A O 17,528 4,353
Club debenture o i 25 315 315
Other receivable L Ath B AT B 3K 2,301 -
2,989,458 3,073,315
Current Assets B E
Amounts due from subsidiaries JAEE Wi BfF G 2 D K IE 412,494 331,232
Other receivables and prepayments A B8 WA R K K FELAST
KIH 1,905 3,233
Cash and bank balances B4 KRAT 45 R 196,461 92,650
610,860 427,115
Current Liabilities i B A
Amounts due to subsidiaries JRE A5 i J& 2 ) @ IE 407,784 407,790
Other payables and accruals A JE A5 BR 3k &% TE 2
# 1,813 1,772
Lease liability & A fE 6,401 4,209
Borrowing &3k 167,500 -
583,498 413,771
Net Current Assets B A 27,362 13,344
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities H8% 2 U B A 3,016,820 3,086,659
Capital and Reserves & A ik s
Share capital il 1,026,073 985,512
Share premium and reserves J Ay Yk A I At A 1,979,663 2,101,147
Total Equity HaHE 3,005,736 3,086,659
Non-Current Liability FE i B £1 5
Lease liability THE A& 11,084 -
3,016,820 3,086,659
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemeqts
&5 B S e B

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

39. COMPANY’S SHARE PREMIUM AND 39. A 2w B A i 18 B o
RESERVES
Capital
Share redemption Contributed  Retained
premium reserve surplus earnings Total
S9N

Bty RS BARE  REEN GE
HK$’000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HKS$’000
T Tt T Tt Ti#

Balance at st January, 2022 A ——

—H—HZ &% 451,755 72,014 327,645 992,615 1,844,029
Profit for the year A B Y | - — - 365,524 365,524
Dividend paid for 2021 B ZF - — 4

g5 (108,406) = = - (108,406)

Balance at 31st December, 2022 A& = T4

+-HA=+—H
Z &5 343,349 72,014 327,645 1,358,139 2,101,147
Loss for the year R - - - (43,165) (43,165
Issue of shares under scrip AR DA B 5T 8
dividend scheme BT I 89,218 - - - 89,218
Dividend paid for 2022 RN R - FE
[ 9s) (167,537) - - - (167,537)
Balance at 31st December, 2023 it =& — =4F
+=A=+—H
ZHR 265,030 72,014 327,645 1,314,974 1,979,663
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Notes to the Cons‘olidated Financial Statements
&5 A S R

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 40. T ZERE 2w\l - S A
ASSOCIATES AND A JOINT VENTURE k—RKEGE&ERE
Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2023 W oE =+ H=+—H

Z - EERHE A W]
Proportion of
issued share capital/
Paid up issued voting power/
Place of incorporation ~ ordinary share capital/ effective interest in registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
KAARACEGRA/
kB B BROBITEER S/ G A
W I 2 44 BB T /G 1 A -1 e FEER
Directly Indirectly
HE ] %
% %
Charlesville Limited British Virgin Islands US$100 100 - Investment holding
AEETR RS 100% 7T REHER
Classic Era Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 Investment holding
EHAERAR i BT HEHR
Everfine Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100 Investment holding
FRARAH ik 1T REHR
Farskill Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 Investment holding
HEERARAT i BT HEHR
Garland Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100 Investment holding
RARAH Ei 10,0004 HEHER
Grand Lion Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 Investment holding
EEHRAH Tk BT HEHR
Grand View Property Management Mainland China U5$500,000 - 100 Property management
(Shanghai) Co., Led. (Note (1))
EMEEE (Hi) ARA R 7 4 500,0003 YEER
(Wita)
Humphreys Estate (Strawberry Houses) Hong Kong HK$200 = 100 Securities trading
Limited
it 20047 wAHE
Ideal Movement Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Property holding
BRARAH i 2T WERF
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #5222 — =

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND A JOINT VENTURE

(Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemeqts
&7 A S e B

E+H=1+—HIL4EE

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2023

40. T ZEPR R 2 v - BB 2 ]
R—XEERE @)

R_-F_=#1+"H=1+—H

(Continued) Z R A )
Proportion of
issued share capital/
Paid up issued voting power/
Place of incorporation ~ ordinary share capital/ effective interest in registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
AAAEHCRIT A/
kb3 K MROHLLER BRI g A
W A 4 B ek / kg A T B EERH
Directly Indirectly
H#% fil %
% %
Island Sky Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Property holding
REARAF & 1T WERA
Kuto Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
A PR Ei 2k BE B
Maxi Charm Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands US§1 - 100 Investment holding
ERAEMRIEE 1%70 RERMR
MHK (Penha Hill) Limited British Virgin Islands US5$30,000 - 70 Property development
KBRS 30,000 72 ES T
Model Year Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
HEARA A i 2T BERR
Multiclassic Investments Inc. British Virgin Islands U5$40,200,000 = 100 Investment holding
KBRS 40,200,000% ¢ fatEh
Owina Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
Rk ARAR i 2T BEER
Shanghai Cheng Qi Technology Mainland China US$15,000,000 - 100 Property development
Limited (Note (1))
ESHAREA R (M G) B A 15,000,000% ¢ HES S
Shanghai Tomson Huangpu Mainland China US$18,500,000 - 100 Property development
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(Note (1))
LEGEEREREREARAT MBI 18,500,000% 7& BT
(Wit
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Notes to the Cons‘olidated Financial Statements
&5 A S R

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 40. = EEMHE A\ > BE A A]
ASSOCIATES AND A JOINT VENTURE B—XEERE @)

(Continued)

R_-F_=#1+"H=1+—H

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2023

(Continued) Z R A )
Proportion of
issued share capital/
Paid up issued voting power/
Place of incorporation ~ ordinary share capital/ effective interest in registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
AATHACHITRA/
GALY AN MROHTEER S VRN
Wi 2 ) % Bang T/t A RS % EEEH
Directly Indirectly
H#% fil #%
% %
Shanghai Tomson Investment Management ~ Mainland China RMB1,000,000 = 100 Investment holding
Co. Limited (Note (i7)
LR A EAARAR (i) SRR AR H1,000,0007C RE R
Shanghai Tomson Real Estate Mainland China U$$100,000,000 - 100 Property development and
Investment & Development investment holding
Co., Ltd. (Note (1))
b b BB TR o B A A 100,000,000% & WRERRREEER
(Wit@)
Toben Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment
BRARAT Eifs 2 fH R
Tomson Administration Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Providing administrative
services to the Group and
property holding
B 10,0004 7T 7 P 8 1 17 AR
YTESLH
Tomson (China) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 Tnvestment holding
Vb (R ) A PR ) il 2T HEHER
Tomson Corporate (LP.) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 - Trademark holding
W () A RA A &t 2T i A
Tomson Corporation British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
EBETRRE Eyr HEHER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemeqts
&5 B S e B

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 40. L Z M E A W] > BiE A
ASSOCIATES AND A JOINT VENTURE B—XEERE @)
(Continued)

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2023 NR_F_=#+"_H=+—H
(Continued) ZEEWE A )
Proportion of
issued share capital/
Paid up issued voting power/
Place of incorporation ~ ordinary share capital/ effective interest in registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
AARBHCEGRA/
Ak AL BRCRITEER HHE /G A
W I 2 ) 2 R R A /R & A EHERILE FEEH
Directly Indirectly
H# fil £
% %

Tomson Empire View Co. Limited British Virgin Islands 15$65,010,000 = 100 Investment holding
GENRERARAA KBAER RS 65,010,000% ¢ fEHER
Tomson Financial Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100 Investment holding
HEMEREARAA ik 10,0001 70 BEER
Tomson Golf (Shanghai) Limited Mainland China US5$40,000,000 = 100 Golf course and club operation,

(Note (1)) and property development
BESREK (L) BERAE Hitn) PRI 40,000,000% ¢ ARG RIS

PYLIE S 4

Tomson Group Garland (Shanghai) Housing ~ Mainland China US816,000,000 - 100 Property development

& Estate Ltd. (Note (i)
GEEEEN (L) i B 16,000,000% 70 ES

RWRAT (Hito)
Tomson Group (Nominees) Limited Hong Kong HK$20 = 100 Providing nominee services to

the Group

R (RBEAN)ARA ik 20T e UL YN &
Tomson Haijing Garden Mainland China US5§58,200,000 - 100 Property development

(Shanghai Pudong New Area)
Co., Ltd. (Note (1)

i g E (L R ) B 58,200,000% 7 YEER
HIRAF (i)
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Notes to the Cons‘olidated Financial Statements
&5 A S R

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 40. = EEMHE A\ > BE A A]
ASSOCIATES AND A JOINT VENTURE B—XEERE @)
(Continued)

R_-F_=#1+"H=1+—H

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2023

(Continued) ZEEWE A )
Proportion of
issued share capital/
Paid up issued voting power/
Place of incorporation ~ ordinary share capital/ effective interest in registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
KAARFHCHEGRA/
kB B BRCHITEER B/ G A
I 2 ] 44 R JA /G 1 A 1 e FEEH
Directly Indirectly
HE fi] #%
% %
Tomson International Entertainment Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 Investment holding and
Company Limited investment in live
entertainment shows
business
Vi i B R PR i BT REH KRB GRS
F I H R
Tomson International Entertainment Hong Kong HKS1 = 100 Film distribution
Distribution Limited
Yk B AR TR R A i 17T AR )
Tomson International Trade Building Mainland China US$16,800,000 - 100 Property development
(Shanghai) Co., Led. (Noe (i)
Vo B K (L) A PR ) i 3t 16,800,000 7 B
(Wit i)
Tomson Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS$3 100 - Investment holding
WEREARAH i 3T B
TPR Secretarial Services Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Providing secretarial services to
the Group and investment
holding
Hik 10,000 76 RAEE R T
FEBRBEER
Yamako Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 Investment holding
JROCH R H Hil 2T RE LR

| Tomson Group Limited %y B AL [ A PR 7




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND A JOINT VENTURE
(Continued)

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2023
(Continued)

Notes:

For those subsidiaries established in the Mainland China, their classification

of establishment is as follows:

(1) limited liability company (solely funded by Taiwan, Hong Kong or

Macau corporate)
(if)  limited liability company solely funded by a foreign invested enterprise

(iii)  limited liability company (Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau equity joint

venture)

Except for the liquidation of Shanghai Tomson Pudong Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. in current year, there have been
no material changes on the details of the principal subsidiaries
for both years 2022 and 2023.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding

at the end of the year, or at any time during the year.

fok £ B 5 A W

R_-F_=#1+"H=1+—H
Z B 2w ()

Wfat -

TP P R A S B PR T A R > HCRST A
() AREELAFE(ABEREARE

(i) SrEEEAEEANBEARITELF

(i) ARITERXF (BEREE)

% L 96 3 B i SRt E B B RS
FIRAFEREERN > £ F "
Lo % AR W AR AR E R

- VA Ja8 23 w4 & H BCAE AT AT ey
[H] L 488 A e 18 oA A 9 2 (5 /6 0
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Notes to the Cons‘olidated Financial Statements
&5 A S R

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 40. KB A\~ B A ]
ASSOCIATES AND A JOINT VENTURE B—XEERE @)
(Continued)

e ey S R 8 B
2 LW 2 7 (40

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2023
(Continued)

A7 B A= 42 ) A7 R 42 BB R
Z IF 2 Wi AN T 2 B R
IR o LAT BB R Y 1
2 1) [] 36 6 T S o

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
non-wholly owned subsidiary that has material non-controlling
interest is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts before intergroup
eliminations.

MHK (Penha Hill) Limited MHK (Penha Hill) Limited

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$000
Tt T #5C
Properties held for sale Yk 457,230 457,230
Other current assets HoAth 37 Bh 15,008 31,314
Total current assets Q) 472,238 488,544
Non-current assets I E A E 3 =
Current liabilities T A R (16,904) (16,909)
Equity attributable to owner of RN FEMERTFEA A
the Company JRE A BE 4 318,736 330,144
Non-controlling interest IE ¥E i B SROME 4 136,601 141,491
Revenue A - =
Expenses l57a (6,298) (2,691)
Loss for the year AT 5 18 (6,298) (2,691)
Loss and total comprehensive expense JE A N 18 K & T
attributable to: B SR INR ¢
Owner of the Company EN/NEIL E=XS RSN (4,408) (1,884)
Non-controlling interest I 122 B 3t TR 2 (1,890) (807)
(6,298) (2,691)
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40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

ASSOCIATES AND A JOINT VENTURE

(Continued)

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2023

(Continued)

MHK (Penha Hill) Limited (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemeqts
&5 B S e B

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

R_-F_=#1+"H=1+—H

Z F TR 2 v (4)

MHK (Penha Hill) Limited (#)

2023 2022

HK$°000 HK$ 000

T c T #5 7T

Net cash outflows from operating activities R B (6,313) (8,400)
Net cash inflows from investing activities 8 B B4 AR 7 8
Net cash outflows from financing activities il I ) B < U o TR AR (10,000) (15,000)
Net cash outflows for the year FEEHR AR A (16,3006) (23,392)

The Directors of the Company are of the opinion that a
complete list of the particulars of all subsidiaries would be of
excessive length and therefore the above list contains only the

particulars of those subsidiaries which significantly affect the

results or assets of the Group.

Ko

AN F AR e B B A KT R
RAIZENGEHRFERRITE
b RAR B 5% 55 A B I S AR
EEMNERZEZMBLARZE
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Notes to the Cons‘olidated Financial Statements
&5 A S R

For the year ended 31st December, 2023 # % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 40. LM 23 W) ~ Wi o W)
ASSOCIATES AND A JOINT VENTURE B—XEERE @)
(Continued)

Associates as at 31st December, 2023 W2 =#+"H=+—H
Z WiE A
Proportion of
issued share capital/
Paid up voting power/
Place of issued ordinary effective interest in
Form of incorporation share capital/ registered capital
Name of associate business structure and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
BRCHIT ARESHCEARA/
kM & BEBERA SRR A
B o w4118 ABEMEA  AENE ik M A THHE G L % FERH
Directly Indirectly
HH#% (F3
% %
Roma Era Limited Incorporated Hong Kong HK$3,935,206 - 267 Investment holding
ERARAR AL AT Fi 3,935,206 ¢ e
Tomson Entertainment Incorporated Taiwan NTD25,000,000 = 45 Investment in film, television and
Co. Limited entertainment businesses
GERERBERAR AL qE 25,000,000% 5 REER  BHRBRERH
There have been no material charges on the details of the TR T AR R T = AR AR
associates for both years 2022 and 2023. B N B N B SRS 0 A T R A ) o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2023 #( % —&F =4+ " H =+—H ILFE

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ASSOCIATES AND A JOINT VENTURE

(Continued)

A joint venture as at 31st December, 2023

for B WA 5 W e M

R-EZ=#1+"H=+—H
ZRAERE

Proportion of

Place of effective interest in
Name of Form of business  incorporation ~ Paid up registered registered capital
joint venture structure and operation  capital held by the Company Principal activities
sk ML K AR AR I A
FREELH AHGMEL  HRNE B kMR A W i b % RERH
Directly Indirectly
H# fil %
% %
Shanghai Jinjiang Tomson ~ Limited liability =~ Mainland China ~ US$24,340,000 - 50  Hotel owning and operation
Hotel Co., Ltd. company (Taiwan,
Hong Kong or
Macau and
domestic equity
joint venture)
EESIHERAEE  AREEAR  PEAM 24,340,000% ¢ WA R AL

AR (RIERA
HNEE)

There have been no material changes on the details of the

joint venture for both years 2022 and 2023.

EZE D CER CE D FEWMEAE
BEA— Z 5 B AR S R 5 I 4 R
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Schedule of Principal Properties

ERWER

At 31st December, 2023 A & =

F+-A=t+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

Investment Properties

AEMFH W3
BE W%

Approximate Gross

Description Lot Number Term of Lease Floor Area (Sq.m.)  Use Group’s Interest
A4 4 i
it i Ho B 4 9% H CEhkR) & AR 2 B
The whole of basement level 1, Lot 2-2-1 Medium term 19,521 for offices ~ Commercial ~ 100%
part of the level 1 and the whole of Lujiazui Finance and and podium;
level 2 to 5 of the commercial podium Trade Zone 7,594 for car parks
and 141 car parking spaces of
Tomson Commercial Building,
710 Dongfang Road,
Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
i\ RALAIE L it PERE S HE 5 R iR WARRES Rk 100%
R R L 2 A [ 22-1H B 19,520F 97K
FBE710%% TR
RN ] 7,594F Ik
WS 12
EEZEA P& LV C VEX DY Y
141{RA A
The whole of level 1 to 3 of Lot C3-001 Medium term 36,082 for offices Commercial ~ 100%
the commercial podium, Waigaogiao Free and podium; 4,299
4/F., 9/F. to 12/F., 17/F. to 25/F. and Trade Zone for car parks
part of 7/F. to 8/F., 12A/F. and 14/F. of the
office tower and 105 car parking spaces of
Tomson International Trade Building,
No.1 Jilong Road,
Waigaogiao Free Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
GiEINGE S AR SR RBLE i G YT R 100%
R I S R R C3-001 55 B 36,082°F 77K
KRR 19% THHLA
EL U IN. | 4,299F Ik
HHE 153 G2
WA KB4

IEE1M - I7THESEEER
TREZSKE - 1AM 4B
105 A=A
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Schedule of Principa! Properties
FEYER

At 31st December, 2023 it — & =4+ _H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP KEFMFERHZWE @)
(Continued)
Investment Properties (Continued) BE&EWE )

Approximate Gross

Description Lot Number Term of Lease Floor Area (Sq.m.) Use Group’s Interest
T 24 A v

it 1 o B 440 5% ik CEhkR) & .34 P4 §
Whole of level 1 to 4 of the commercial podium Lot 1/1, Medium term 11,903 for offices Commercial ~ 100%

and 136 car parking spaces of 244 Street, and podium; 5,054

Tomson Business Centre, Weifangxincunjiedao, for car parks

158, 188, 228 Zhangyang Road, Lujiazui Finance

Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone, and Trade Zone

Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China

thiE N RALAIE b i BERWRRE S R thi WARRES Rk 100%
T SR R e X W B 5 By B e 11,903 F 75K 5
sRBIH 158 ~ 188~ 228%% 244t THE A
VRN | 5,054k
FaH 1 2 R4 28 K
136 HLAi
Tower B, Tomson Riviera, Lot No.1, Long-term 35,423 Residential 100%
28 Huayuanshigiao Road, 17 Jiefang,
Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone, Meiyuan Road

Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China

i \ R g AR 8% 1748 =3l 35423 fEE 100%
R EEAE ST S & 1958 B

e Gk 285F

ki — B
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FERVIER

At 31st December, 2023 it — & — =

A=t H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

(Continued)

Investment Properties (Continued)

AL ZWE )

BE&WE ()

Approximate Gross

Description Lot Number Term of Lease Floor Area (Sq.m.) Use Group’s Interest
A4 0 i
it fi o B 440 5% ik CEhkR) & .34 P4 §
Tomson Waigaogiao Industrial Park, Lot 1/1 & 1/4, 19 Jiefang, Medium term 108,561 Industrial 100%
No. 381, 383, 1 Futexi Road, Waigaogiao Free Trade
27 & 29 Huashen Road, Zone
358 Futebei Road,
Waigaogiao Free Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
GE N AR S RBLE i 108,561  T¥% 100%
T SROHT 1 1 (R L 1983 1/1
R — 381 38355 - R1/4f
IR R29%% - BARILEE358%%
W ANE AR LER R
72/F., Shanghai World Financial Center, Lot 1, 20 Jiefang, Medium term 3,222 Commercial ~ 100%
No. 100, Century Avenue, Meiyuan Xincun Jiedao,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai, Pudong New Area
People’s Republic of China
i INi i A R il 300 W% 100%
WA R AR 10098 i B A i
LiBRRE M 0728 0fH91E
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PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

Schedule of Principal Properties

At 31st December, 2023 it — & =4+ _H=+—H

ERYIEE

KEFMFERHZWE @)

(Continued)
Golf Course W& R Bk
Approximate
Gross
Floor Area Group’s
Description Term of Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest
A0 A i i
it 1 HL (Fhk) Mg AAE 2 B A
Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club, Medium term 12,652 for club houses, driving range An 18-hole 100%
No.1 Long Dong Avenue, and maintenance room with  golf course
Pudong New Area, Shanghai, site area of 952,154
People’s Republic of China
GEINE I R i G WWAREEG L 18R EWK 100%
E R [ R SR KA 1 BER12652FK B
B LW R AW AR E (M8 TR 24952, 154°F 75 K)
Properties under Development Ry E
Approximate
Gross Gross Estimated
Site Area  Floor Area Group’s  Stage of Date of
Description Lot Number (Sq.m.) (Sqm.)  Use Interest Completion Completion
WRATE  ABEEE fhitz
it S B 4 (k) (k) i AEBZHER TRRE SEH H
Three land lots near the Lot 10/11 & 10/40, 328,687 496,041 Residential 100% The land lots will be ~ Phase I - 2024
junction of Loushan Road 2 Jiefang and lot 3/10, developed in 6 phases.
and Long Dong Avenue, 5 Jiefang Jingiao Town Superstructure for
Jingiao Town, Pudong New Area Phase [ and revised
Pudong New Area, Phase V was topped
Shanghai, out in December
People’s Republic of China 2014
firfiehdE A RIEAIER R MRS 38,687 496,041 frE 100% FFLfasE H-H-
LT R 250 R i ) S L2
£ 10/40E R WS
A B L0 B R sEs3N0E “E-WEFZA
TRZ =T TRAHHE
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FERVIER

At 31st December, 2023 A & — =

Schedule of Principal Properties

F£+-H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

(Continued)

Properties Held for Sale

KEFMFERHZWE @)

rF &Mk

Approximate

Gross Floor Area

Description Lot Number Term of Lease (Sq.m.)  Use Group’s Interest
T 40 A i
G o B 44 % ik (k) Mg AR T 2 i
Part of 6/F., 7/F., 10/F., 11/F., 17/F. Lot 2-2-1 Lujiazui Medium term 3,039  Commercial 100%
of Tomson Commercial Building, Finance and
710 Dongfang Road, Trade Zone
Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
A R ALAIE 3 i R R EAEEHESE Bl 3,039 W 100%
EXAEEHE SR 22-15f B
RO B 7105
HEEMAE
GIE ~ 7HE - 108 - 1R RI7EZ B
Part of 5/F., 6/F., 15/F., and 16/F. Lot C3-001 Medium term 4,035  Commercial 100%
of Tomson International Trade Building, ~Waigaoqiao Free
No.1 Jilong Road, Trade Zone
Waigaogiao Free Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
i \ RSB T R R Bhies 1 R AL I i 4,035 ¥ 100%
B R AR R L C3-001 94 B
g1
LB 5 K
SHE~ oM~ 15K 16k b
Part of Towers A & C & Tower D, Lot No.1 17 Jiefang, Long-term 27,111 Residential 100%
Tomson Riviera, Meiyuan Road
28 Huayuanshigiao Road,
Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
L INSE I BRI V) H B B 174 4 =2 7,111 FE 100%
PEZ WG 5 L 5 IR 1R B
AR R
BB —
ABR S CIR 2 4 DA R DB
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Schedule of Principal‘ Properties
FEYER

At 31st December, 2023 it — & =4+ _H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP AEFEFHA 2Pk @)
(Continued)
Properties Held for Sale (Continued) HEYE &)
Approximate
Gross Floor Area
Description Lot Number Term of Lease (Sq.m.)  Use Group’s Interest
40 A i
Gl B B 4 5% L CPAX) i AEM2Z R
Phases VI, VIII and IX, Lot 23/10 Long-term 1,327  Residential 100%
Tomson Golf Villas, Tong Le Cun,
1 Long Dong Avenue, Hua Mu Xiang

Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China

o A RSB L fe R4 =21 1327 HE 100%
3P SR [ R K A 1 IR 4444 23/10 2
o . 8 7 % B
A HARE M

Part of Block B & F and Lot 47/1, Long-term 363 for residential; ~ Residential 100%
131 car parking spaces of Zhangbang Cun, 3,576 for car parks
Tomson Golf Garden, Jingiaozhen,
1 Long Dong Avenue Pudong New Area

(2 of North District),
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China

SE YN ] T R R R E H#Z 100%
T R R R SR 1% (20 SR EREN 363 F 71K 5
o b e K AE 4711k YA LA
BREREZ# » DA R 13 1E A 3,576°F I K

Part of One Penha Hill, No. 22356 folio 100,  Long-term 9,240 for residential;  Residential 70%
Travessa do Colégio No.7 e Book B16K 3,244 for car parks

Calcada do Bom Parto No.2,
Macao Special Administrative Region,

People’s Republic of China

o N A R A T B16K# fit £l kE #% 70%
B AR TE BOK M A 258 H100E 9,240°F K 5
BEERILEHEZH 0 a4 9522356 YA fi
3,244 F K
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Schedule of Principal Properties
FERVIER

At 31st December, 2023 j® —E =44+ _H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY

—RXAELERAZIE

A JOINT VENTURE
Properties Held for Investment FIEREZWE
Approximate
Gross Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number Term of Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest
40 A v
Gl o B 4 5% AL (FJiK) Mg AR%HE
InterContinental Shanghai Pudong hotel, Lot 12 Medium term 52,622 Hotel 50%
777 Zhangyang Road, Zhangyang Road
Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone, Commercial District
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
i \ RAEAIE b Tl R bk T b 52,622 i 50%
RS ME 5 R 125 B
R 777%;
iR3 R b YN)
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Five-Year Financial Summary

hAE A B

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF GaiEmE
PROFIT OR LOSS

Year Ended 31st December
BRETZ-A=Z+—HILEE
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
“E-NE ZBIFRE - R TE ZEFIEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
THE 7T THE T THE T T 0 Ti# T

Gross proceeds from KeA ks A0

operations 938,057 936,303 787,012 533,078 567,364
Profit before taxation I ot T i ) 391,398 406,761 588,500 126,561 135,165
Taxation FiIH (160,855) (226,639) (297,027) (107,8006) (90,201)
Profit for the year A JE Ui 230,543 180,122 291,473 18,755 44,964
Attributable to: FEARUNE
Owners of the Company AN ERERITA A 172,513 174,993 283,448 17,168 42,684
Non-controlling interests T 12 B B AR 4 58,030 5,129 8,025 1,587 2,280

230,543 180,122 291,473 18,755 44,964
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Five-Year Financial Summary

oA B B
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF %50 B IR Ol 3R
FINANCIAL POSITION
At 31st December
R+—_H=+—H
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
TR -NE ZEFEFE R AE DR T RS
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
T 7T Tt T T T 70 T 0
Fixed assets IE] 7 8,048,908 8,569,841 8,828,579 8,173,046 7,351,037
Goodwill [ 33,288 33,288 33,288 33,288 33,288
Deferred tax assets IR SE R TE & 35,503 37,941 = = -
Interests in associates and ARG N T e —F
a joint venture GR-Ehe A £ 195,575 189,965 197,109 162,258 177,737
Other receivable A R i B = 2,361 2,361 = 2,301
Equity instruments at A TERT A HA
fair value through other R4 Z
comprehensive income A T B 389,399 408,816 293,452 312,824 293,949
Club debentures 7T ES% 515 515 515 515 515
Pledged bank deposits ERATIEK 627,778 218,721 84,172 55,143 39,130
Net current assets L) 7 5,359,329 5,297,736 5,940,039 5,312,892 5,363,668
14,690,295 14,759,184 15,379,515 14,049,966 13,261,625
Equity attributable to owners ANFIER A N
of the Company JRE {5 1 A 12,259,425 12,888,642 13,500,950 12,388,347 12,006,560
Non-controlling interests I 2 5 5 SRR i 312,388 327,732 337,485 318,235 136,611
Total equity MR 12,571,813 13,216,374 13,838,435 12,706,582 12,143,171
Other payables and At A RN B
lease liabilities HEARE 14,166 24,286 27,403 15,544 26,173
Borrowings 58 785,302 284,495 264,900 215,512 182,272
Deferred tax liabilities R HE i JE A A 1,319,014 1,234,029 1,248,777 1,112,328 910,009
14,690,295 14,759,184 15,379,515 14,049,966 13,261,625
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